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[DATE]

Dear Shareholder:

I am pleased to write to you regarding our agreement to acquire all of the ordinary shares (the “CWC Shares) of Cable & Wireless Communications
Plc (“CWC”), a public company listed on the London Stock Exchange (the “Acquisition”). CWC is a provider of telecommunications-based services,
including mobile and high-speed broadband, focused in the Caribbean and Latin America.

The combination of CWC with Liberty Global’s LiLAC Group assets, VIR in Chile and Liberty Cablevision in Puerto Rico, will create the leading
consumer and business-to-business communications provider across the Latin America and Caribbean region, with strong market positions, triple- and
quadruple-play and business-to-business upside, underpinned by high-quality broadband, terrestrial and submarine networks. Liberty Global expects the
Acquisition will enhance the long-term equity value for both the Liberty Global Group and LiLLAC Group shareholders.

We are sending the accompanying proxy statement to you as a shareholder of Liberty Global to consider and vote upon the following matters:

»  the proposed issuance of Liberty Global Class A Ordinary Shares, Liberty Global Class C Ordinary Shares, LiLAC Class A Ordinary Shares and
LiLAC Class C Ordinary Shares to CWC shareholders as consideration for the Acquisition, on the terms described in the accompanying proxy
statement (the “Share Issuance Proposal”); and

+ the proposed acquisition by Liberty Global of the CWC Shares held by Columbus Holding LLC (“CHLLC?”), an entity that owns approximately
13% of the CWC Shares and is controlled by John C. Malone, the chairman of the board of directors of Liberty Global, in the Acquisition (the
“Substantial Property Transaction Proposal”).

Each of the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal is required by applicable law or listing standards because of
Mr. Malone’s indirect interests in CWC through his control of CHLLC.

We are also asking you to vote in favor of a proposal to adjourn the general meeting for a period of not more than 10 business days, if necessary or
appropriate, to solicit additional proxies in the event that there are insufficient votes at the time of such adjournment to approve the Share Issuance Proposal
and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal (the “Adjournment Proposal®).

A general meeting of shareholders of Liberty Global plc (“Liberty Global”) to vote on these proposals will be held at [TIME] London time ([TIME]
Eastern time), on [DATE], at [ 1.

Under the terms of the Acquisition, upon the closing of the Acquisition, we will issue to CWC shareholders up to, in the aggregate:
* 31,651,616 Liberty Global Class A Ordinary Shares;
+ 77,488,978 Liberty Global Class C Ordinary Shares;
* 3,648,524 LiLAC Class A Ordinary Shares; and
* 8,939,328 LiLAC Class C Ordinary Shares.
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CWC shareholders will also be entitled to receive a special dividend from CWC of 3 pence per CWC Share promptly following the closing of the
Acquisition.

Following completion of the Acquisition, Liberty Global will attribute CWC to Liberty Global’s LiLAC Group, with Liberty Global’s Liberty Global
Group being granted an inter-group interest in the LiLAC Group. Based on the fully-diluted numbers of Liberty Global Class A, Class B and Class C
Ordinary Shares (collectively, “Liberty Global Shares”), LILAC Class A, Class B and Class C Ordinary Shares (collectively, “LiLAC Shares”) and CWC
Shares outstanding on November 16, 2015, the date we announced the terms of the Acquisition, after giving effect to the Acquisition and such attribution, and
treating the Liberty Global Group’s inter-group interest in the LiLAC Group as being represented by additional LiLAC Shares:

*  CWC shareholders will own approximately 11% of the total number of Liberty Global Class A Ordinary Shares and Liberty Global Class C
Ordinary Shares;

+  CWC shareholders will own approximately 7.21% of the total number of LiLAC Shares;
»  Existing LILAC Group shareholders will own approximately 25.44% of the total number of LiLAC Shares; and

»  The remaining approximately 67.35% of the total number of LiLAC Shares will be represented by the inter-group interest in favor of the Liberty
Global Group.

After careful consideration, the board of directors of Liberty Global unanimously (excluding Mr. Malone, who recused himself from all deliberations
and voting on such matters) (A) determined that the Acquisition and the proposed issuance of Liberty Global shares and LiL AC shares to CWC shareholders
as consideration for the Acquisition, in each case, on the terms set forth in the accompanying proxy statement, are in the best interests of Liberty Global and
its shareholders and (B) recommends that you vote “FOR” the Share Issuance Proposal, “FOR” the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal and “FOR”
the Adjournment Proposal.

Each of our directors and executive officers holding voting shares has informed us that he or she intends (and in the case of Mr. Malone, is
contractually committed, subject to certain exceptions) to vote his or her shares in favor of the proposals.

The accompanying proxy statement provides detailed information about the general meeting, the Acquisition, the Share Issuance Proposal, the
Substantial Property Transaction Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal. We encourage you to read the proxy statement and its annexes carefully and in their
entirety. You may also obtain more information about Liberty Global from documents we file with the US Securities and Exchange Commission from time to
time.

Your vote is important, regardless of the number of shares you own. Whether or not you plan to attend the general meeting, please submit your proxy as
soon as possible to make sure that your shares are represented. You may submit your proxy either over the internet or by signing, dating and returning the
enclosed proxy card in the envelope provided. If you have any questions or need assistance voting your shares, please contact [ 1, our proxy
solicitor, by calling [ 1.

On behalf of the board of directors of Liberty Global, I thank you for your support and appreciate your consideration of these important matters.
Sincerely,

[Signature]

Michael T. Fries
President and Chief Executive Officer
Liberty Global plc
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We are not asking for a proxy from CWC shareholders. CWC shareholders who are not shareholders of Liberty Global Class A or Class B
Ordinary Shares or LiLAC Class A or Class B Ordinary Shares are not entitled to vote on the matters described above. The accompanying proxy
statement is not intended to and does not constitute a prospectus or prospectus equivalent document or otherwise form part of any offer to sell or
subscribe for, or any invitation to purchase or subscribe for, or the solicitation of an offer to purchase or otherwise subscribe for, any securities, or
the solicitation of any vote or approval of the Acquisition in any jurisdiction, nor shall there be any sale, issuance or transfer of securities of Liberty
Global or CWC in any jurisdiction in contravention of applicable laws. The Acquisition will be made solely pursuant to the Scheme Document (or
offer document, as the case may be) to be provided by CWC to CWC shareholders separately, as described in the proxy statement.

Neither the US Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities regulatory agency has approved or disapproved the transactions
described in this document, including the Acquisition, and the issuance of Liberty Global Shares or LiLAC Shares to CWC shareholders as
consideration for the Acquisition, or determined if the information contained in this document is accurate or adequate. Any representation to the
contrary is a criminal offense.

The accompanying proxy statement is dated [DATE] and, together with the enclosed form of proxy card, is first being mailed to shareholders of Liberty
Global on or about [DATE].
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notice of General Meeting of Shareholders to be Held on [DATE]

A general meeting of shareholders of Liberty Global plc (“Liberty Global”) will be held at [TIME] London time ([TIME] Eastern time), on [DATE], at
[ ], for the following purposes:

1. To approve the issuance of Liberty Global Class A Ordinary Shares, Liberty Global Class C Ordinary Shares, LILAC Class A Ordinary Shares
and LiLAC Class C Ordinary Shares to shareholders of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc (“CWC”) in connection with the proposed
acquisition (the “Acquisition”) by Liberty Global of all of the ordinary shares of CWC (the “CWC Shares”) on the terms set forth in the
announcement (the “Rule 2.7 Announcement”) issued by Liberty Global on November 16, 2015, pursuant to Rule 2.7 of the UK City Code on
Takeovers and Mergers, as described in this proxy statement and the Rule 2.7 Announcement (together with such modifications as the board of
directors of Liberty Global may in its absolute discretion think fit) (the “Share Issuance Proposal”). The Share Issuance Proposal requires the
approval of Liberty Global shareholders under Rule 5635(a)(2) of the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules because the issuance will result in an
increase in Liberty Global’s outstanding ordinary shares in excess of 5% and approximately 13% of the CWC Shares to be acquired are held by
Columbus Holding LLC (“CHLLC”), an entity controlled by John C. Malone, the chairman of the Liberty Global board of directors.

2. To approve the acquisition by Liberty Global of the CWC Shares held by CHLLC in the Acquisition (the “Substantial Property Transaction
Proposal”). The Substantial Property Transaction Proposal requires the approval of Liberty Global shareholders because it constitutes a
“substantial property transaction” under Section 190 of the UK Companies Act 2006, as amended.

3. To adjourn the general meeting for a period of not more than 10 business days, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies in the
event there are insufficient votes at the time of such adjournment to approve the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction
Proposal (the “Adjournment Proposal®).

After careful consideration, the board of directors of Liberty Global unanimously (excluding Mr. Malone, who recused himself from all deliberations
and voting on such matters) (A) determined that the Acquisition and the proposed issuance of Liberty Global Class A Ordinary Shares, Liberty Global
Class C Ordinary Shares, LiLAC Class A Ordinary Shares and LiLAC Class C Ordinary Shares to CWC shareholders as consideration for the Acquisition, in
each case, on the terms set forth in the Rule 2.7 Announcement, are advisable and in the best interests of Liberty Global and its shareholders and
(B) recommends that you vote “FOR” the Share Issuance Proposal, “FOR” the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal and “FOR” the Adjournment
Proposal.

All shareholders of Liberty Global are cordially invited to attend the general meeting, but only holders of record of Liberty Global Class A Ordinary
Shares, Liberty Global Class B Ordinary Shares, LiLAC Class A Ordinary Shares or LiLAC Class B Ordinary Shares (which we refer to collectively as our
voting shares) as of the close of business on [DATE], which is the record date for the general meeting, are entitled to vote at the general meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

The holders of our voting shares will vote together as a single class on each of the proposals to be voted upon at the general meeting.
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Your vote is very important, regardless of the number of shares that you own. The affirmative vote of a simple majority of the votes cast by the
holders of our voting shares (voting together as a single class) is required to approve each of the proposals. Abstentions or votes withheld, although counted
for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum, will not be treated as votes cast at the general meeting and accordingly will not be taken into account
in determining the outcome on any of the proposals. If you are a holder of record, the failure to submit a signed proxy card, appoint a proxy electronically
over the internet or to vote in person by ballot at the general meeting, or, if you hold your shares in “street name”, the failure to instruct your broker, bank, or
other nominee on how to vote your shares, will have no effect on the outcome of the votes for such items.

If you are a shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting, you are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of your rights
to attend, speak and vote at the meeting.

You are encouraged to read the accompanying proxy materials carefully and in their entirety and submit your proxy as soon as possible so that your
shares can be voted at the meeting in accordance with your instructions. You may submit your proxy either over the internet or by signing, dating and
returning your proxy card in the envelope provided.

To be valid, the appointment of a proxy, whether completed over the internet or by returning the completed and signed proxy card, must be received by
[DATE]. You may revoke your proxy in the manner described in the proxy statement.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

[Signature]

Bryan H. Hall
Secretary
[DATE]

WHETHER OR NOT YOU INTEND TO BE PRESENT AT THE GENERAL MEETING, PLEASE SUBMIT YOUR PROXY VIA THE
INTERNET OR COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN BY MAIL THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AS PROMPTLY AS POSSIBLE.

Griffin House, 161 Hammersmith Rd, London W6 8BS, United Kingdom, Registered in England Nr 8379990, www.libertyglobal.com
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SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information also contained elsewhere in this proxy statement related to the matters upon which you are being
asked to vote and may not contain all of the information important to you. You should read this entire document, its annexes and the other documents to
which this proxy statement refers you to fully understand the matters upon which you are being asked to vote. Each item in this summary refers to the
page on which that subject is discussed in more detail. Except as otherwise noted or where context otherwise requires, references in this proxy statement
to “Liberty Global”, “we”, “us” and “our” refer to Liberty Global plc, a public limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales, and
its subsidiaries, and references to “CWC?” refer to Cable & Wireless Communications Plc, a public limited company organized under the laws of
England and Wales, and its subsidiaries.

The Acquisition (see page 28)
The Rule 2.7 Announcement and the Acquisition (see page 38)

On November 16, 2015 (which we refer to as the Announcement Date), pursuant to Rule 2.7 of the UK City Code on Takeovers and Mergers
(which we refer to as the Takeover Code), Liberty Global issued an announcement (which we refer to as the Rule 2.7 Announcement) disclosing the
terms of a recommended acquisition through which the entire issued and to be issued ordinary share capital of CWC (which we refer to as the CWC
Shares) will be acquired by Liberty Global. We refer to our proposed acquisition of the CWC Shares as the Acquisition.

Under the terms of the Acquisition, CWC shareholders will be entitled to receive up to, in the aggregate:
« 31,651,616 Liberty Global Class A Ordinary Shares, nominal value $0.01 per share (which we refer to as Liberty Global Class A Shares);
« 77,488,978 Liberty Global Class C Ordinary Shares, nominal value $0.01 per share (which we refer to as Liberty Global Class C Shares);
* 3,648,524 LiLAC Class A Ordinary Shares, nominal value $0.01 per share (which we refer to as LiLAC Class A Shares); and
* 8,939,328 LiLAC Class C Ordinary Shares, nominal value $0.01 per share (which we refer to as LiLAC Class C Shares).

We refer to the Liberty Global Class A Shares and the Liberty Global Class C Shares collectively as the Liberty Global A&C Shares and we refer
to the LiLAC Class A Shares and LiLAC Class C Shares collectively as the LILAC A&C Shares. We refer to the Liberty Global A&C Shares and the
Liberty Global Class B Ordinary Shares, nominal value $0.01 per share (which we refer to as Liberty Global Class B Shares), collectively as the Liberty
Global Shares. We refer to the LILAC A&C Shares and the LiLAC Class B Ordinary Shares, nominal value $0.01 per share (which we refer to as LILAC
Class B Shares), collectively as the LiLAC Shares.

CWC shareholders will also be entitled to receive a special dividend from CWC of 3 pence per CWC Share (which we refer to as the special
dividend) promptly following the closing of the Acquisition.

As of November 13, 2015, the last practicable date prior to the Announcement Date, based on the closing trading prices of Liberty Global A&C
Shares, LILAC A&C Shares and the exchange rate of $1.5206:£1 on that date, the aggregate consideration for the Acquisition, taking into account the
special dividend, represented an aggregate value for the CWC Shares of approximately £3.60 billion, or $5.47 billion. Based on the 4,438,594,233 fully-
diluted CWC Shares outstanding as of that date, the aggregate consideration implied a value of 81.04 pence per CWC Share, representing a premium of
approximately 40% to the closing price of 58.00 pence per CWC Share on October 21, 2015, the day immediately prior to the announcement by CWC of
a possible offer by Liberty Global for CWC (which we refer to as the unaffected date).

Page 1
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As of [DATE], the latest practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement, based on the closing trading prices of Liberty Global A&C
Shares and LiILAC A&C Shares and the exchange rate of $[®]:£1 on that date, the aggregate consideration for the Acquisition, taking into account the
special dividend, represented an aggregate value for the CWC Shares of approximately £[e] billion, or $[e] billion. Based on the [e] fully-diluted CWC
Shares outstanding as of that date, the aggregate consideration implied a value of [®] pence per CWC Share, representing a premium of approximately
[®]% to the closing price of 58.00 pence per CWC Share on the unaffected date.

The actual value received by each CWC shareholder for its CWC Shares will depend upon whether such shareholder elects the Recommended
Offer, the LiLAC Alternative or one of the Dual Share Alternatives, each of which is described in the section of this proxy statement entitled “The
Recommended Offer and the Dual Share Alternatives” (see page 39), as well as on the elections made by other CWC shareholders.

It is intended that the Acquisition will be effected by means of a two-step, integrated process comprising a court-sanctioned scheme of arrangement
(which we refer to as the Scheme of Arrangement) under Part 26 of the UK Companies Act 2006 (which we refer to as the Companies Act), followed by
a merger (which we refer to as the Merger) by formation of a new company under the UK Companies Cross-Border Merger Regulations of 2007, as
amended, and Part 3A of Title 7 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code (which together we refer to as the Cross-Border Merger Regulations), in which CWC
and a wholly-owned Dutch subsidiary of Liberty Global will be dissolved without going into liquidation and each of their assets and liabilities will be
transferred to a newly-formed English private limited company that will continue as a subsidiary of Liberty Global.

Following completion of the Acquisition, Liberty Global will attribute CWC to Liberty Global’s LiLAC Group (which we refer to as the LILAC
Attribution), with Liberty Global’s Liberty Global Group being granted an inter-group interest in the LiLAC Group. Based on the fully-diluted numbers
of Liberty Global Shares, LILAC Shares and CWC Shares outstanding on the Announcement Date, after giving effect to the Acquisition and the LiLAC
Attribution, and treating the Liberty Global Group’s inter-group interest in the LiLAC Group as being represented by additional LiLAC Shares:

*  CWC shareholders will own approximately 11% of the total number of Liberty Global A&C Shares;

*  CWC shareholders will own approximately 7.21% of the total number of LiLAC Shares;

»  Existing LiILAC Group shareholders will own approximately 25.44% of the total number of LiLAC Shares; and

*  The remaining approximately 67.35% of the total number of LiLAC Shares will be represented by the inter-group interest in favor of the

Liberty Global Group.

Solely for the purposes of this presentation, the Liberty Global Group’s inter-group interest in the LiLAC Group is being treated as represented by
additional LiLAC Shares although no LiLAC Shares will in fact be issued in respect of this inter-group interest. See the section of this proxy statement
entitled “Attribution of CWC to the LiLAC Group” beginning on page 42 for additional details regarding the inter-group interest to be created in the
LiLAC Group.

Liberty Global has reserved the right, subject to the prior consent of the UK Panel on Takeovers and Mergers (which we refer to as the Panel), to
elect under certain circumstances to implement the Acquisition instead by way of a takeover offer under Chapter 3 of Part 28 of the Companies Act
(which we refer to as an Offer) followed by the Merger.

Page 2
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Conditions to the Completion of the Acquisition (see page 43)

The completion of the Acquisition is conditioned upon, among other things:

approval of the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal (each as defined below) by Liberty Global’s
shareholders at the general meeting of Liberty Global shareholders for which this proxy statement is being distributed (which we refer to as
the general meeting);

approval of the Scheme of Arrangement by the requisite majority of CWC shareholders at a meeting of CWC shareholders to be convened
for such purpose (which we refer to as the CWC court meeting) by the High Court of Justice, Chancery Division (Companies Court) in
England and Wales (which we refer to as the High Court);

approval of a special resolution required to approve and implement the Scheme of Arrangement by the requisite majority of CWC
shareholders at a general meeting of CWC shareholders to be convened for such purpose (which we refer to as the CWC general meeting);

sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement by the High Court;

the Scheme of Arrangement becoming effective no later than May 31, 2016, or, if the FCC condition (as defined below) has not been
satisfied by that date, December 16, 2016 (which in either case we refer to as the long stop date);

the CWC US Carve-Out and Columbus US Carve-Out (each as defined in the section of this proxy statement entitled “CWC US Carve-Out /
FCC Regulatory Approval” beginning on page 42) remaining in effect or the FCC Regulatory Approval (as defined in the section of this
proxy statement entitled “CWC US Carve-Out / FCC Regulatory Approval” beginning on page 42) having been obtained (which, in either
case, we refer to as the FCC condition);

approval for listing on NASDAQ of the Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued to CWC shareholders as
consideration for the Acquisition; and

approval of the UK prospectus document to be published by Liberty Global in respect of the Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C
Shares to be issued to CWC shareholders as consideration for the Acquisition (which we refer to as the Prospectus) by the UK Financial
Conduct Authority (which we refer to as the UKLA), and its publication, prior to the CWC general meeting.

The Co-operation Agreement (see page 45)

On November 16, 2015, Liberty Global and CWC entered into a co-operation agreement (which we refer to as the Co-operation Agreement)
pursuant to which Liberty Global agreed, among other things, to provide its reasonable co-operation to CWC and its advisers, and to use its reasonable
endeavors, to satisfy the conditions to the Acquisition as promptly as possible following the date of the Co-operation Agreement and, in any event, by the
long stop date (and, in the case of the regulatory conditions, by April 30, 2016, or, if the FCC condition has not been satisfied by that date, November 16,
2016, which, in either case, we refer to as the regulatory long stop date).

In the Co-operation Agreement, each of Liberty Global and CWC has undertaken, among other things, to co-operate with each other and to use
reasonable endeavors to provide information and assistance in relation to filings, notifications or submissions to be made in connection with
implementing the Acquisition and obtaining clearances. In addition, Liberty Global has undertaken to provide information and assistance in connection
with the preparation of the document to be sent to the shareholders of CWC containing the details of the Scheme of Arrangement and notices convening
the CWC court meeting and the CWC general meeting (which we refer to as the Scheme Document) and implementation of the Scheme of Arrangement.

Page 3
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Termination of the Co-operation Agreement (see page 46)
The Co-operation Agreement may be terminated:
« if agreed in writing by Liberty Global and CWC;
* by Liberty Global if:

. the Scheme Document (or document containing the terms of any Offer, as the case may be) does not include the CWC board
recommendation (as defined in the section of this proxy statement entitled “The Co-operation Agreement—Termination” beginning

on page 46);
. the CWC board recommendation is no longer unconditional or unanimous or is withdrawn, qualified or modified at any time; or
. a third party announces a firm intention to make an offer for CWC which is recommended by the board of directors of CWC or

which completes, becomes effective or is declared or becomes unconditional in all respects;

* by either Liberty Global or CWC:

. upon the occurrence of any Liberty Global adverse recommendation change (as defined in the section of this proxy statement entitled
“The Co-operation Agreement—Termination” beginning on page 46):

. if the Acquisition lapses, terminates or is withdrawn in accordance with its terms and, where required, with the permission of the
Panel; or

. if the Scheme of Arrangement has not become effective (or, if the Acquisition is implemented by an Offer, the Offer does not become

unconditional) by the long stop date.

Break Fee (see page 47)

By way of compensation for any loss suffered by CWC in connection with the preparation and negotiation of the Acquisition, the Co-operation
Agreement and any other document relating to the Acquisition, we agreed in the Co-operation Agreement that, subject to certain limited exceptions,
Liberty Global will pay to CWC an amount in cash equal to $50 million (exclusive of VAT, if any) in the event that, on or prior to the long stop date,
Liberty Global makes a Liberty Global adverse recommendation change and either party exercises its right to terminate the Co-operation Agreement for
such reason.

No Dissenters’ Rights (see page 49)

None of our shareholders will be entitled to exercise dissenters’ rights or to demand payment for their Liberty Global Shares or LiLAC Shares in
connection with the Acquisition.

Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences (see page 49)

Our shareholders are not participating in the Acquisition through an exchange of their Liberty Global Shares or LiLAC Shares or otherwise and,
therefore, there are no tax consequences to our shareholders. As evidenced by the Rule 2.7 Announcement and the Co-operation Agreement, the Scheme
of Arrangement followed by the Merger (or the Offer followed by the Merger) is intended to constitute a single, integrated transaction that qualifies as a
reorganization for US federal income tax purposes, with the exchange by CWC shareholders of CWC Shares for Liberty Global A&C Shares and/or
LiLAC A&C Shares being eligible for nonrecognition treatment under applicable US federal income tax rules, except for any cash amounts received in
connection with the Acquisition such as cash in lieu of fractional Liberty Global A&C Shares and/or LILAC A&C Shares and the special dividend
payable by CWC.
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Material United Kingdom Tax Consequences (see page 49)

Our shareholders are not participating in the Acquisition through an exchange of their Liberty Global Shares or LiLAC Shares or otherwise and,
therefore, there are no UK tax consequences to our shareholders. It is expected that CWC shareholders who are subject to UK tax will generally not be
taxable in the UK in respect of consideration provided to them in the form of Liberty Global A&C Shares and/or LiLAC A&C Shares, except for any
cash amounts received in connection with the Acquisition such as cash in lieu of fractional Liberty Global A&C Shares and/or LILAC A&C Shares and
the special dividend payable by CWC.

Regulatory Matters (see page 49)

The completion of the Acquisition is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain competition law and regulatory conditions, including (i) the
FCC condition and (ii) to the extent required by law or regulation under the respective jurisdiction, certain approvals and clearances from governmental
and regulatory authorities in the Bahamas, Barbados, Jamaica, Trinidad and Tobago, and the Cayman Islands. Although we expect that all required
regulatory clearances and approvals will be obtained, we cannot assure you that these regulatory clearances and approvals will be obtained in a timely
manner or at all, or that the granting of these regulatory clearances and approvals will not involve the imposition of additional conditions on the
completion of the Acquisition, including the requirement to divest assets.

Parties Involved in the Acquisition (see page 30)
Liberty Global plc (see page 30)

Liberty Global plc is a public limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales. We are an international provider of video,
broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services, with consolidated operations as of September 30, 2015, in 14 countries.

The “LiLAC Group” comprises our businesses, assets and liabilities in Latin America and the Caribbean.
The “Liberty Global Group” comprises our businesses, assets and liabilities not attributed to the LiLAC Group.

The Liberty Global Shares and the LiLAC Shares are tracking shares. Tracking shares are intended by the issuing company to reflect or “track” the
economic performance of a particular business or “group” rather than the economic performance of the company as a whole. The Liberty Global Shares
are intended to track the economic performance of the Liberty Global Group. The LiLAC Shares are intended to track the economic performance of the
LiLAC Group.

Holders of tracking shares have no direct claim to the applicable tracking group’s assets and are not represented by separate boards of directors.
Instead, holders of tracking shares are shareholders of the parent corporation, with a single board of directors, and are subject to all of the risks and
liabilities of the parent corporation. Holders of Liberty Global Shares, LiLLAC Shares or any other of our capital shares designated as ordinary shares
from time to time will continue to be subject to risks associated with an investment in Liberty Global as a whole.

The address of Liberty Global’s principal executive office is Griffin House, 161 Hammersmith Rd, London W6 8BS, United Kingdom, and our
telephone number is +44 20 8483 6300. We also have executive offices at 12300 Liberty Boulevard, Englewood, Colorado 80112, United States. Liberty
Global Class A Shares, Liberty Global Class B Shares and Liberty Global Class C Shares are listed for trading on NASDAQ under the ticker symbols
LBTYA, LBTYB and LBTYK, respectively. LILAC Class A Shares and LiLAC Class C Shares are listed for trading on NASDAQ under the ticker
symbols LILA and LILAK, respectively, and LiLAC Class B Shares are quoted on OTC Link as LILAB.
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Cable & Wireless Communications Plc (see page 31)

CWC is a provider of telecommunications-based services, including mobile, high-speed broadband, traditional and IP-based services, and
advanced digital video services, as well as wholesale broadband capacity and managed IT services in the Caribbean, Latin America and Seychelles.

CWC, which is headquartered in London and has a regional operational hub in Miami, Florida, acquired Columbus International Inc. (which we
refer to as Columbus), on March 31, 2015 (which we refer to as the Columbus Acquisition), forming a regionally-focused telecommunications company
capable of delivering quad-play services to residential customers and advanced carrier-grade broadband and managed IT service to corporate and
government customers. CWC has over 7,000 employees across three main divisions.

The address of CWC’s principal executive office is 62-65 Chandos Place, London WC2N 4HG, United Kingdom, and its telephone number is +44
(0) 207 315 4000. CWC Shares are listed for trading on the London Stock Exchange under the symbol CWC.

The General Meeting (see page 23)
Date, Time and Place (see page 23)
The general meeting will be held at [TIME] London time ([TIME] Eastern time), on [DATE], at [ 1.

Purpose (see page 23)
You will be asked to consider and vote upon (or submit a proxy in respect of):

» aproposal to approve the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to CWC shareholders in connection with the
Acquisition on the terms described in this proxy statement and in the Rule 2.7 Announcement (which we refer to as the Share Issuance
Proposal);

» aproposal to approve the acquisition by Liberty Global of the CWC Shares held by Columbus Holding LLC (which we refer to as CHLLC),
an entity that owns approximately 13% of the CWC Shares and is controlled by John C. Malone, the chairman of the board of directors of
Liberty Global (which we refer to as the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal); and

» aproposal to adjourn the general meeting for a period of not more than 10 business days, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional
proxies in the event there are insufficient votes at the time of such adjournment to approve the Share Issuance Proposal or the Substantial
Property Transaction Proposal (which we refer to as the Adjournment Proposal).

Record Date and Votes per Share (see page 24)

Only holders of record of Liberty Global Class A Shares, Liberty Global Class B Shares, LILAC Class A Shares or LiLAC Class B Shares (which
we refer to collectively as our voting shares) as of [10:00 p.m. London time (5:00 p.m. Eastern time)] on [DATE], which is the record date for the general
meeting, are entitled to vote at the general meeting.

Each Liberty Global Class A Share entitles its holder to one vote, each Liberty Global Class B Share entitles its holder to ten votes, each LiLAC
Class A Share entitles its holder to one vote, and each LiLAC Class B Share entitles its holder to ten votes, in each case, on each of the proposals to be
voted upon at the general meeting.

Liberty Global Class C Shares and LiLAC Class C Shares are non-voting (except where otherwise required by the Companies Act and our articles
of association) and do not entitle their holders to any votes on any of the proposals to be voted upon at the general meeting.
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Quorum (see page 24)

The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a simple majority of the combined voting power of our voting shares outstanding and
entitled to vote at the general meeting is necessary to constitute a quorum at the general meeting.

Vote Required (see page 24)

The affirmative vote of a simple majority of the votes cast by the holders of our voting shares (voting together as a single class) is required to
approve each of the proposals to be voted upon at the general meeting.

The approval of the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal are required for Liberty Global to consummate the
Acquisition. If either or both of the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal are not approved, the Acquisition will not
be completed.

Voting of Proxies (see page 25)

If you are a shareholder of record, then, after carefully reading and considering the information contained in this proxy statement, you should
complete, sign, date and return the applicable enclosed proxy cards by mail, or vote through the internet, in each case, as soon as possible so that your
shares are represented and voted at the general meeting. Instructions for voting through the internet are printed on the proxy cards. In order to vote
through the internet, have your proxy cards available so you can input the required information from the cards, and log onto the internet website address
shown on the proxy cards. When you log onto the internet website address, you will receive instructions on how to submit your proxy to vote your
shares. The internet voting procedures are designed to authenticate votes cast by use of a personal identification number, which will be provided to each
voting shareholder separately. Voting through the internet will be voting by proxy.

If you hold your shares as a beneficial owner through a bank, broker or other nominee, you must provide voting instructions to your bank, broker
or other nominee by the deadline provided in the materials you receive from your bank, broker or other nominee to ensure your shares are voted in the
way you would like at the meeting. Your bank, broker or other nominee will send you specific instructions in this regard to vote your shares.

You may revoke (i.e., terminate) your paper proxy at any time prior to its use by delivering a signed notice of revocation or a later dated signed
paper proxy or by attending the meeting and voting in person. Attendance at the general meeting will not in itself constitute the revocation of a proxy.
Any written notice of revocation or subsequent proxy should be sent or hand delivered so as to be received at Liberty Global plc, Attention: Secretary,
Griffin House, 161 Hammersmith Rd, London W6 8BS, United Kingdom, before the start of the general meeting. Any revocation of a proxy must be
submitted not later than [6:00 a.m. London time (1:00 a.m. Eastern time)], on [DATE]. If your ordinary shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or
other nominee, you should contact them to change your vote.

Share Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers (see page 25)

As of the record date, our directors and executive officers held an aggregate of approximately [®]% of Liberty Global Class A Shares, [®]% of
Liberty Global Class B Shares, [#]% of LiLAC Class A Shares, and [#]% of LiLAC Class B Shares entitled to vote at the general meeting, which
represent approximately [#]% of the voting power necessary to approve the Share Issuance Proposal, the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal and
the Adjournment Proposal (assuming the vote in person or by proxy of all outstanding shares entitled to vote at the general meeting).

All of our directors and executive officers holding voting shares have informed us that they intend to vote their shares in favor of the Share
Issuance Proposal, the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal, but none of our directors or executive officers has
entered into any agreement obligating them to do so other than
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Mr. Malone (as further described below in the section entitled “Irrevocable Undertakings Received by CWC” beginning on page 44).

Recommendation of Our Board of Directors (see page 34)

After consideration of the reasons set forth below in the section entitled “Reasons for the Acquisition” beginning on page 35, our board of directors
unanimously (excluding Mr. Malone, who recused himself from all deliberations and voting on such matters for the reasons described in the section
entitled “Background to the Acquisition” beginning on page 31) determined that the Rule 2.7 Announcement and the Co-operation Agreement and the
respective transactions contemplated thereby, including the Scheme of Arrangement, the Acquisition and the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and
the LiLAC A&C Shares as consideration for the Acquisition, in each case, on the terms set forth in the Rule 2.7 Announcement and the Co-operation
Agreement, were advisable and in the best interests of Liberty Global and its shareholders (including the LiL AC shareholders).

Accordingly, our board of directors unanimously (excluding Mr. Malone, who recused himself from all deliberations and voting on such matters)
recommends that you vote “FOR” the Share Issuance Proposal, “FOR” the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal and “FOR” the Adjournment
Proposal.

Reasons for the Acquisition (see page 35)

In evaluating the Acquisition, including the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to CWC shareholders as
consideration for the Acquisition, our board of directors consulted with Liberty Global’s senior management, outside legal counsel and outside financial
advisors. In recommending that Liberty Global’s shareholders vote in favor of the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction
Proposal, our board of directors also considered a number of factors that it believed supported its determination as further described in the section
entitled “Information About the CWC Acquisition—Reasons for the Acquisition” beginning on page 35.

Impact of the Share Issuance on our Existing Shareholders (see page 56)

If approved and implemented, the Share Issuance Proposal will dilute the ownership and voting interests of our existing shareholders. It is expected
that as consideration for the Acquisition up to 31,651,616 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 77,488,978 Liberty Global Class C Shares, 3,648,524 LiLAC
Class A Shares and 8,939,328 LiLLAC Class C Shares will be issued to CWC shareholders, and that, upon completion of the Acquisition, based on the
fully-diluted number of CWC Shares, Liberty Global Shares and LiLAC Shares outstanding on the Announcement Date (the latest practicable date prior
to the date of this proxy statement), CWC shareholders will, after giving effect to the Acquisition and the LiLAC Attribution, and treating the Liberty
Global Group’s inter-group interest in the LiLAC Group as being represented by additional LiLAC Shares, hold approximately 11%, 11%, 7%, and 7%
of the total number of Liberty Global Class A Shares, Liberty Global Class C Shares, LiLAC Class A Shares and LiLAC Class C Shares, respectively.
Solely for the purposes of this presentation, the Liberty Global Group’s inter-group interest in the LiLAC Group is being treated as represented by
additional LiLAC Shares although no LiL AC Shares will in fact be issued in respect of this inter-group interest.

Interests of Liberty Global’s Executive Officers and Directors in the Acquisition (see page 56)

Other than as described below in the sections entitled “Proposal No. 1—Share Issuance Proposal” beginning on page 55 and “Proposal No. 2—
Substantial Property Transaction Proposal” beginning on page 57, none of Liberty Global’s directors or executive officers has any substantial financial
interest, direct or indirect, in the Acquisition or the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to CWC shareholders as
consideration for the Acquisition, other than being a director or executive officer and a shareholder of Liberty Global.
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RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information incorporated by reference or included in this proxy statement, including the risks identified in our Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 13, 2015, and in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 4, 2015, and the matters
addressed in the section of this proxy statement entitled “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements”, you should carefully consider the
following risks before deciding how to vote on the proposals presented at the general meeting. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only
risks and uncertainties that we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our
business operations. The risks below also include forward-looking statements, and our actual results may differ substantially from those discussed in these
forward-looking statements, discussed further below in the section entitled “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements”.

Risks Relating to the Acquisition

Even if a material adverse change to CWC’s business or prospects were to occur prior to consummating the Acquisition, we may not be able to
invoke the offer conditions and terminate the Acquisition, which could reduce the value of our shares.

The Acquisition is subject to a number of conditions, including that there is no material adverse change affecting CWC. Under the Takeover Code, we
generally may invoke a condition to the Acquisition to cause the Acquisition not to proceed only if the Panel is satisfied that the circumstances giving rise to
that condition not being satisfied are of material significance to Liberty Global in the context of the Acquisition. Because of this Panel consent requirement,
the conditions to the Acquisition, including as to a material adverse change affecting CWC, may provide us less protection than similar customary conditions
in an offer for a company not subject to the Takeover Code.

The Takeover Code restricts Liberty Global’s ability to cause CWC to consummate the Acquisition and limits the relief Liberty Global may obtain in
the event CWC’s board of directors withdraws its support of the Acquisition.

The Takeover Code limits the contractual commitments that may be obtained from CWC, as a target company, to take actions in furtherance of the
Acquisition, and CWC’s board of directors may, if its fiduciary and other directors’ duties so require, withdraw its recommendation in support of the
Acquisition, and withdraw the Scheme of Arrangement, at any time prior to the Scheme of Arrangement becoming effective. The Takeover Code does not
permit CWC to pay any break fee to Liberty Global if it does so, nor can CWC be subject to any restrictions on soliciting or negotiating other offers or
transactions involving CWC that a purchaser would customarily negotiate in non-UK public takeover transactions other than certain restrictions that arise
under the Takeover Code against undertaking actions or entering into agreements which might “frustrate” Liberty Global’s takeover offer for CWC.

Liberty Global will incur transaction, integration and restructuring costs in connection with the Acquisition.

Liberty Global expects that it will incur certain non-recurring costs in connection with the consummation of the Acquisition, including advisory, legal
and other transaction costs directly associated with the Scheme of Arrangement and the Merger. In addition, Liberty Global will incur integration and
restructuring costs following the completion of the Acquisition in connection with the integration of CWC'’s businesses into Liberty Global’s businesses.
Although Liberty Global expects that the realization of benefits and efficiencies related to the integration of the businesses will offset such transaction,
integration and restructuring costs over time, no assurances can be made that this net benefit will be achieved in the near term, or at all. Liberty Global may
also incur additional costs to maintain employee morale and to retain key employees.
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Liberty Global will be subject to contractual restrictions while the Acquisition is pending, which could adversely dffect Liberty Global’s business.

The Co-operation Agreement contains certain customary restrictions on Liberty Global in the period between the signing of the Co-operation
Agreement and the completion of the Acquisition. For instance, CWC'’s consent is required in respect of, among other things, payment of dividends, capital
reorganizations and amendments to constitutional documents, in each case, which would reasonably be expected to have a material and adverse impact on the
value of, or, in the case of constitutional documents, the rights attaching to, Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued to CWC
shareholders as consideration for the Acquisition. These restrictions may prevent Liberty Global from taking certain actions or making certain changes it
deems beneficial before the Acquisition is completed or the Co-operation Agreement is terminated.

While the Acquisition is pending, Liberty Global will be subject to business uncertainties that could adversely affect its business.

Uncertainty about the effect of the Acquisition on employees, customers and suppliers may have an adverse effect on CWC and, consequently, on
Liberty Global following completion thereof. These uncertainties may impair CWC'’s ability to attract, retain and motivate key personnel until the Acquisition
is completed and for a period of time thereafter, and could cause customers, suppliers and others who deal with CWC to seek to change existing business
relationships with CWC. Employee retention may be particularly challenging during the pendency of the Acquisition because employees may experience
uncertainty about their future roles with the combined group. If, despite CWC’s and Liberty Global’s efforts to retain CWC’s key employees, such key
employees depart, Liberty Global’s business could be harmed and/or integration efforts could become significantly more challenging and the expected
benefits thereof may not be realized in full.

Risks Relating to the Combined Group

Current Liberty Global shareholders will have a reduced ownership and voting interest in Liberty Global following completion of the Acquisition
and the issuance of the Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares in connection therewith.

Liberty Global shareholders currently have certain rights, including the right of certain Liberty Global shareholders to vote in the election of the board
of directors of Liberty Global and on other matters affecting Liberty Global. Upon completion of the Acquisition and the issuance of the Liberty Global A&C
Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares as consideration therefor, each of Liberty Global’s shareholders (i.e., holders of Liberty Global Shares and/or LiLAC Shares)
as of immediately prior to completion will have a percentage ownership of Liberty Global that is smaller than such shareholder’s percentage ownership
immediately prior to completion of the Acquisition. As a result, Liberty Global shareholders, as a group, may have less influence on the management and
policies of Liberty Global than they currently have.

In addition to the regulatory regimes Liberty Global is subject to in its current markets, after giving effect to the Acquisition, Liberty Global will
also be subject to the regulatory risks and conditions in the jurisdictions in which CWC operates.

Liberty Global currently operates in 14 countries and will add over 15 countries with the Acquisition of CWC. As such, after giving effect to the
Acquisition, Liberty Global will be subject to a significant number of additional video, internet, telecommunications and competition regulatory regimes that
will govern its operations across the various legal jurisdictions in which CWC operates. In particular, Liberty Global will be reliant on governments and
regulators in the jurisdictions in which CWC operates for access, on mutually beneficial terms, to spectrum for both existing and next-generation mobile
services. Liberty Global will also be impacted by key regulatory decisions relating to pricing of CWC’s services in certain jurisdictions, such as the
determination of termination rates. Failure to comply with regulations or regulatory decisions could result in fines or restrict the ability to operate or provide
existing or new services to CWC customers. Furthermore, the governments in the countries and territories in which CWC operates differ widely with respect
to political structure, constitution,
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economic philosophy, stability and level of regulation. Moreover, in several of CWC’s key markets, including Panama and the Bahamas, governments are
CWC'’s partners and co-owners. Consequently, Liberty Global may not be able to fully utilize CWC’s contractual or legal rights or all options available,
where to do so might conflict with broader regulatory or governmental considerations.

Liberty Global will be subject to the political risk and conditions in the jurisdictions in which CWC operates.

CWC operates in over 15 countries, almost all of which are different than those in which Liberty Global currently operates. In certain of these countries
and territories, political, security and economic changes may result in political and regulatory uncertainty. Governments may expropriate or nationalize assets
or increase their participation in the economy generally and in telecommunications operations in particular. In addition, certain countries and territories in
which CWC operates face significant challenges relating to the condition of physical infrastructure, including transportation, electricity generation and
transmission. Such countries and territories may also be subject to a higher risk of inflationary pressures, which could increase Liberty Global’s operating
costs and decrease consumer demand and spending power [in the region]. Each of these factors could, individually or in the aggregate, have an adverse effect
on Liberty Global’s business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

After giving effect to the Acquisition, Liberty Global will be subject to the economic risks and conditions of the markets in which CWC operates,
most of which are in developing economies and have historically experienced more volatility in their general economic conditions.

Most of CWC’s operations are in developing economies, which historically have experienced more volatility in their general economic conditions than
many of the jurisdictions in which Liberty Global currently operates. Should current economic conditions deteriorate in the markets in which CWC operates,
there may be volatility in exchange rates, increases in interest rates and liquidity shortfalls, which would have an adverse effect on Liberty Global’s revenue
and profits. Additionally, deteriorating economic conditions, along with recessionary pressures and country-specific issues in countries in which CWC
operates, could, among other things, affect the level of tourism experienced by some countries (an industry on which the Caribbean is heavily reliant) and the
level of local consumer and business expenditure on telecommunications. The impact of poor economic conditions in the markets in which CWC operates
could have an adverse effect on Liberty Global’s business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Although Liberty Global and CWC expect synergies to result from the combined group, Liberty Global may not realize anticipated synergies in the
event of integration challenges.

Liberty Global’s ability to realize anticipated synergies will depend, in part, on successfully integrating the businesses of two companies that have
operated as independent public companies. There is no assurance that the integration process will be completed smoothly or successfully or within the
anticipated time frame. The success and integration of the combined group after the Acquisition will depend, among other things, upon Liberty Global and
CWC retaining key employees during the periods before and after the Acquisition is completed. Additionally, the integration process could disrupt
momentum in each company’s ongoing businesses or cause inconsistencies in controls, standards, procedures and policies. Such disruption or inconsistencies
could adversely affect the combined group’s ability to maintain relationships with its customers and employees, achieve the anticipated benefits of the
Acquisition or increase the combined group’s earnings. If the combined group is not smoothly or successfully integrated, the anticipated synergies of the
Acquisition may not be fully realized or may take longer to realize than expected.

Risks Related to the Liberty Global Shares and LiLAC Shares
Transfers of our shares may become subject to UK stamp duty and/or UK stamp duty reserve tax (“SDRT”).

UK stamp duty and/or SDRT are taxes that are imposed on certain transfers of or agreements to transfer chargeable securities (which include shares in
companies incorporated under English law) at a rate of 0.5% of the
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consideration for the transfer. Certain issues or transfers of shares into depositary receipt or clearance systems are charged at a higher rate of 1.5%.

An agreement to transfer an interest in Liberty Global Shares or LiLAC Shares through a clearance service or depositary receipt system should not give
rise to a liability to SDRT under current UK tax law and HMRC practice (unless, in the case of a clearance service, it has made a relevant election under
section 97A of the UK Finance Act 1986). We understand that HM Revenue & Customs (which we refer to as HMRC) regards the facilities of the Depository
Trust Company as a clearance service for these purposes. In addition, no UK stamp duty should, in practice, need be paid in respect of a paperless transfer of
an interest in Liberty Global Shares or LILAC Shares through the Depository Trust Company. A transfer of title in Liberty Global Shares or LiLAC Shares or
an agreement to transfer such shares from within the Depository Trust Company system out of the Depository Trust Company system, and any subsequent
transfers or agreements to transfer outside the Depository Trust Company system, will generally attract a charge to UK stamp duty and/or SDRT at a rate of
0.5% of any consideration. Any such duty must be paid (and the relevant transfer document stamped by HMRC) before the transfer can be registered in the
books of Liberty Global. Holders of Liberty Global Shares or LiLAC Shares should note in particular that a deposit or redeposit of Liberty Global Shares or
LiL AC Shares into the Depository Trust Company system, including by means of an initial transfer into a depositary receipt system, will generally attract UK
stamp duty and/or SDRT at the higher rate of 1.5%.

Pursuant to certain arrangements which are currently in place with the Depository Trust Company, Liberty Global Shares or LILAC Shares held in
certificated form cannot be transferred into the Depository Trust Company system until the transferor of the shares has first delivered the Liberty Global
Shares or LiLAC Shares to a depositary specified by Liberty Global so that any UK stamp duty and/or SDRT that may be due in connection with the delivery
to the depositary may be collected. Any such shares will be evidenced by a receipt issued by the depositary. Before the transfer can be registered in the books
of Liberty Global, the transferor will also be required to put the depositary in funds to settle the resultant liability to UK stamp duty and/or SDRT, which will
generally be charged at a rate of 1.5% of the value of the relevant shares.

HMRC has indicated in response to certain cases relating to the EU Capital Duties Directive that in general it will no longer seek to apply 1.5% UK
stamp duty or SDRT when new shares of companies incorporated in the UK are first issued to a clearance service (or its nominee) or depositary receipt issuer
(or its nominee or agent) anywhere in the world or are transferred to such an entity in the world as an integral part of an issue of share capital. Accordingly,
we do not currently expect that UK stamp duty and/or SDRT would be imposed under current UK tax law and HMRC practice on a future issue of shares by
Liberty Global. However, it is possible that the UK government may change the relevant law in response to the cases referenced above, and that this may
have a material effect on the cost of share issues by Liberty Global and potentially on the cost of dealing in our shares.

If Liberty Global Shares or LILAC Shares are not eligible for deposit and clearing within the facilities of the Depository Trust Company, then
transactions in our securities may be disrupted.

We expect that, upon the consummation of the Scheme of Arrangement, the Liberty Global A&C Shares and the LILAC A&C Shares to be issued to
CWC shareholders as consideration for the Acquisition will be eligible for deposit and clearing within the Depository Trust Company system.

The Depository Trust Company will generally have discretion to cease to act as a depositary and clearing agency for Liberty Global Shares and LiLAC
Shares. If the Depository Trust Company determines at any time that Liberty Global Shares and/or LiLAC Shares are not eligible for continued deposit and
clearance within its facilities, then we believe Liberty Global Shares and/or LiLAC Shares would not be eligible for continued listing on a US securities
exchange and trading in Liberty Global Shares and/or LiLAC Shares would be disrupted. While we would pursue alternative arrangements to preserve our
listing and maintain trading, any such disruption could have a material adverse effect on the trading price of Liberty Global Shares and LiLAC Shares and the
UK stamp duty and/or SDRT treatment of trading.
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

The following questions and answers are intended to address some commonly asked questions regarding the general meeting, the Acquisition and the
issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to CWC shareholders as consideration for the Acquisition. These questions and answers may
not address all questions that may be important to you as a shareholder of Liberty Global. We encourage you to read carefully the more detailed information
contained elsewhere in this proxy statement, the annexes to this proxy statement, and the documents we incorporate by reference in this proxy statement. You
may obtain the documents and information incorporated by reference into this proxy statement without charge by following the instructions under “Where
You Can Find More Information” beginning on page 72.

Q: Why am I receiving this proxy statement?

A:  We are sending this proxy statement to you in connection with the solicitation of proxies to be voted at a general meeting of Liberty Global
shareholders. As a shareholder, you are invited to attend the general meeting and, if you are a holder of our voting shares, you are entitled and requested
to vote on the proposals described in this proxy statement.

Q: When and where is the general meeting?

A:  The general meeting will be held at [TIME] London time ([TIME] Eastern time), on [DATE], at [ 1.

Q: What are the matters to be voted on at the general meeting?
A:  The following three proposals are to be voted on at the general meeting:

» aproposal to approve the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to CWC shareholders in connection with the
Acquisition on the terms described in this proxy statement and in the Rule 2.7 Announcement;

» aproposal to approve the acquisition by Liberty Global of the CWC Shares held by CHLLC, an entity that owns approximately 13% of the CWC
Shares and is controlled by Mr. Malone, the chairman of the board of directors of Liberty Global (which we refer to as the Substantial Property
Transaction Proposal); and

+ aproposal to adjourn the general meeting for a period of not more than 10 business days, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies
in the event there are insufficient votes at the time of such adjournment to approve the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property
Transaction Proposal (which we refer to as the Adjournment Proposal).

Q: Why is Liberty Global seeking shareholder approval of the Share Issuance Proposal?

A:  We are subject to the listing requirements of the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules. Rule 5635(a)(2) of the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules requires
shareholder approval prior to the issuance of common stock in connection with the acquisition of the stock or assets of another company if any director,
officer or substantial shareholder (which means any shareholder owning 5% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock or voting power of the
issuing company) has a 5% or greater interest in the company or assets to be acquired or in the consideration to be paid in the transaction and the
potential issuance of common stock could result in an increase in outstanding common shares or voting power of 5% or more. The Liberty Global A&C
Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued to shareholders of CWC as consideration for the Acquisition will result in an increase in Liberty Global’s
outstanding ordinary shares in excess of 5% and will include the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to CHLLC, an entity
that owns approximately 13% of the CWC Shares and is controlled by Mr. Malone, the chairman of the board of directors of Liberty Global and owner
of shares representing approximately 24.9% of Liberty Global’s voting power. Therefore, under Rule 5635(a)(2) of the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules,
shareholder approval of the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares in the Acquisition is required.
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Q: Why is Liberty Global seeking shareholder approval of the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal?

A:  We are subject to the Companies Act. Section 190 of the Companies Act requires shareholder approval for any arrangement in which Liberty Global is
to acquire from a director a substantial non-cash asset (which means any substantial asset in relation to a company if its value exceeds 10% of the
company’s asset value and is more than £5,000 or its value exceeds £100,000). In the Acquisition, Liberty Global will be acquiring the CWC Shares
held by CHLLC, which represent approximately 13% of the CWC Shares. Because these CWC Shares comprise a substantial non-cash asset and
CHLLC is controlled by Mr. Malone, the chairman of the board of directors of Liberty Global, such acquisition of CWC Shares from CHLLC
constitutes a substantial property transaction pursuant to the Companies Act, and therefore the Companies Act requires shareholder approval of such
substantial property transaction before it can be completed.

Q: Are Liberty Global shareholders being asked to vote to approve the Acquisition?

A: No. However, Liberty Global shareholders are being asked to approve the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal,
the approvals of which are conditions to the completion of the Acquisition. This will be the only opportunity for our shareholders to consider and vote
upon the transactions contemplated in connection with the Acquisition.

Q: What will CWC shareholders receive for their CWC Shares if the Acquisition is completed?
A:  CWC shareholders will be entitled to receive up to, in the aggregate:
* 31,651,616 Liberty Global Class A Shares;
» 77,488,978 Liberty Global Class C Shares;
e 3,648,524 LiLAC Class A Shares; and
e 8,939,328 LiLAC Class C Shares.
CWC shareholders will also be entitled to receive a special dividend of 3 pence per CWC Share promptly following completion of the Acquisition.

As of [DATE], the latest practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement, based on the closing trading prices of Liberty Global A&C Shares
and LiLAC A&C Shares and the exchange rate of $[®]:£1 on that date, the aggregate consideration for the Acquisition, taking into account the special
dividend, represented an aggregate value for the CWC Shares of approximately £[®] billion, or $[ ] billion. Based on the [®] fully-diluted CWC Shares
outstanding as of that date, the aggregate consideration implied a value of [®] pence per CWC Share, representing a premium of approximately [#]% to
the closing price of 58.00 pence per CWC Share on the unaffected date.

The actual value received by each CWC shareholder for its CWC Shares will depend upon whether such shareholder elects for the Recommended
Offer, the LILAC Alternative or one of the Dual Share Alternatives, each of which is described in the section of this proxy statement entitled “The
Recommended Offer and the Dual Share Alternatives”, as well as on the elections made by other CWC shareholders (see page 39). Elections for the
LiLAC Alternative and the Dual Share Alternatives will not change the total number of Liberty Global A&C Shares or LILAC A&C Shares to be
issued in the Acquisition.

Q: Why is Liberty Global acquiring CWC?

A:  We are entering into the Acquisition to acquire all of the CWC Shares because the Acquisition represents an important strategic milestone for Liberty
Global, and in particular, for Liberty Global’s businesses in Latin America and the Caribbean, which are attributed to the LiLAC Group. The
combination of CWC with Liberty Global’s LiLAC Group assets, VTR in Chile and Liberty Cablevision in Puerto Rico, will create the
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leading consumer and business-to-business communications provider across the Latin America and Caribbean region, with strong market positions,
triple- and quadruple-play and business-to-business upside, underpinned by high-quality broadband, terrestrial and submarine networks. Liberty Global
expects the Acquisition will enhance the long-term equity value for both the Liberty Global Group and LiLAC Group shareholders by:

»  combining high-growth assets in the Latin America and the Caribbean region to form the leading consumer and business-to-business
communications provider;

+ adding a powerful business-to-business Latin American and Caribbean platform to the LiLAC Group;
+ enabling continued network investment and product innovation for the benefit of consumers and business customers alike;
+ offering attractive organic growth opportunities in broadband, pay TV and mobile data;

+  providing significant synergy opportunities from combining CWC with the LiLAC Group, including savings related to the elimination of public
company expenses, further corporate and administrative rationalization of existing LiL AC Group operations with those of CWC, and the
opportunity to leverage the combined scale in areas such as content, procurement, and product development;

* delivering low double-digit rebased operating cash flow growth over the medium term; and

+ creating a leading regional platform to capitalize on further acquisition opportunities.

Q: How does Liberty Global’s board of directors recommend that I vote on the Share Issuance Proposal, the Substantial Property Transaction
Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal?

A:  Our board of directors unanimously (excluding Mr. Malone, who recused himself from all deliberations and voting on such matters) recommends that
you vote “FOR?” the Share Issuance Proposal, “FOR” the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal and “FOR” the Adjournment Proposal.

Q: Whose proxies are being solicited?

A:  Only Liberty Global shareholders’ proxies are being solicited by this proxy statement. We are not soliciting any proxies or votes from CWC
shareholders through this proxy statement. If you are a CWC shareholder and are not a Liberty Global shareholder, and you have received or gained
access to this proxy statement, you should disregard it completely and should not treat it as any solicitation of your proxy, vote, or support on any
matter. If you are both a Liberty Global shareholder and a CWC shareholder, you should treat this proxy statement as soliciting only your proxy with
respect to our voting shares held by you and should not treat it as an offer or invitation to subscribe or purchase Liberty Global Shares or LiLAC Shares
or as a solicitation of your proxy, vote or support on any matter with respect to your CWC Shares.

Q: Who is entitled to vote at the general meeting?

A:  Only holders of record of our voting shares as of [10:00 p.m. London time (5:00 p.m. Eastern time)] on [DATE], which is the record date for the
general meeting, are entitled to vote at the general meeting.

Q: How many votes can be cast by all shareholders?

A:  Each Liberty Global Class A Share entitles its holder to one vote, each Liberty Global Class B Share entitles its holder to ten votes, each LILAC
Class A Share entitles its holder to one vote, and each LiLAC Class B Share entitles its holder to ten votes, in each case, on each of the proposals to be
voted upon at the general meeting.
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Liberty Global Class C Shares and LiLAC Class C Shares are non-voting (except where otherwise required by the Companies Act and our articles of
association) and do not entitle their holders to any votes on any of the proposals to be voted upon at the general meeting.

As of [10:00 p.m. London time (5:00 p.m. Eastern time)] on the record date for the general meeting, we had outstanding and entitled to vote at the
general meeting [®] Liberty Global Class A Shares, [®] Liberty Global Class B Shares, [®] LiLAC Class A Shares and [e] LiLAC Class B Shares.

Q: What quorum is required for the general meeting?

A:  The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a simple majority of the combined voting power of our voting shares outstanding and entitled to
vote at the general meeting is necessary to constitute a quorum at the general meeting.

Votes to abstain or withheld votes are treated as votes that are represented at the general meeting for purposes of determining whether a quorum exists.

Q: What vote is required in order for the proposals to be approved?

A:  The affirmative vote of a simple majority of the votes cast by the holders of our voting shares (voting together as a single class) is required to approve
each of the proposals to be voted upon at the general meeting.

Abstentions, although counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum, will not be treated as votes cast at the general meeting and
accordingly will not be taken into account in determining the outcome on any of the proposals. If you are a holder of record, the failure to submit a
signed proxy card, grant a proxy electronically over the internet or to vote in person by ballot at the general meeting, or, if you hold your shares in
“street name”, the failure to instruct your broker, bank, or other nominee on how to vote your shares, which we refer to as broker non-votes, will have
no effect on the outcome of the votes for such items.

Q: How do I vote my shares if I am a record holder?

A:  If you are a shareholder of record, then, after carefully reading and considering the information contained in this proxy statement, you should complete,
sign, date and return the applicable enclosed proxy cards by mail, or vote through the internet, in each case, as soon as possible so that your shares are
represented and voted at the general meeting. Instructions for voting through the internet are printed on the proxy cards. In order to vote through the
internet, have your proxy cards available so you can input the required information from the cards, and log onto the internet website address shown on
the proxy cards. When you log onto the internet website address, you will receive instructions on how to submit your proxy to vote your shares. The
internet voting procedures are designed to authenticate votes cast by use of a personal identification number, which will be provided to each voting
shareholder separately. Voting through the internet will be voting by proxy.

Unless you or a personal representative plan to be in attendance and vote at the meeting, your proxy must be received no later than [6:00 a.m. London
time (1:00 a.m. Eastern time)], on [DATE].

Q: How do I vote my shares if I hold my shares in “street name” through a bank, broker or other nominee?

A:  If you hold your shares as a beneficial owner through a bank, broker or other nominee, you must provide voting instructions to your bank, broker or
other nominee by the deadline provided in the materials you receive from your bank, broker or other nominee to ensure your shares are voted in the
way you would like at the general meeting. Your bank, broker or other nominee will send you specific instructions in this regard to vote your shares.
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Q: If my bank, broker or other nominee holds my shares in “street name”, will such party vote my shares for me?

A:  Not without your direction. Your broker, bank or other nominee will be permitted to vote your shares on any proposal only if you instruct your broker,
bank or other nominee on how to vote. Under applicable stock exchange rules, brokers, banks or other nominees have the discretion to vote your shares
only on routine matters if you fail to instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares with respect to such matters. The proposals
to be voted upon by our shareholders described in this proxy statement are non-routine matters, and brokers, banks and other nominees therefore cannot
vote on these proposals without your instructions. Therefore, it is important that you instruct your broker, bank or nominee on how you wish to vote
your shares.

You should follow the procedures provided by your broker, bank or other nominee regarding the voting of your shares. Without instructions, a broker
non-vote will result, and your shares will not be voted.

Q: What is a proxy?

A: A proxy is your legal designation of another person, referred to as a “proxy”, to vote your shares. The written document describing the matters to be
considered and voted on at the general meeting is called a “proxy statement”. The document used to designate a proxy to vote your Liberty Global
Shares or LiLAC Shares is called a “proxy card”. Our board of directors has designated [®], [®] and [e], and each of them, with full power of
substitution, as proxies for the general meeting.

Q: If a shareholder gives a proxy, how are the shares voted?

A:  Regardless of the method you choose to appoint your proxy, the individuals named on the enclosed proxy card (i.e., your proxies), will vote your shares
in the way that you indicate. When completing the internet process or the proxy card, you may specify whether your shares should be voted for or
against or to abstain from voting on all, some or none of the proposals to come before the general meeting.

If you properly sign and return your proxy card but do not mark the boxes showing how your shares should be voted on a matter, the shares represented
by your properly signed proxy will be voted in accordance with the directors’ recommendations.

Q: What happens if I do not vote or return a proxy?

A:  The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a simple majority of the combined voting power of our voting shares outstanding and entitled to
vote at the general meeting is necessary to constitute a quorum at the general meeting.

Your failure to have your shares represented, by failing to either submit a proxy or attend the general meeting if you are a shareholder of record, may
result in the failure of a quorum to exist at the general meeting.

Q: What happens if I abstain or withhold my vote?

A:  If you vote to abstain or withhold your vote, whether by proxy or in person at the general meeting, or if you instruct your broker, bank or other nominee
to vote to abstain or withhold your vote, such abstention or withholding will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the Share Issuance Proposal,
the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal, or the Adjournment Proposal. However, votes to abstain or withheld votes are treated as votes that are
represented at the general meeting for purposes of determining whether a quorum exists.
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Q: Can I revoke my proxy or change my vote?

A:  You may revoke (i.e., terminate) your paper proxy at any time prior to its use by delivering a signed notice of revocation or a later dated signed paper
proxy or by attending the meeting and voting in person. Attendance at the general meeting will not in itself constitute the revocation of a proxy. Any
written notice of revocation or subsequent proxy should be sent or hand delivered so as to be received at Liberty Global plc, Attention: Secretary,
Griffin House, 161 Hammersmith Rd, London W6 8BS, United Kingdom, at or before the start of the general meeting. Any revocation of votes
submitted via the internet must be submitted by the same method as the corresponding votes, not later than [6:00 a.m. London time (1:00 a.m. Eastern
time)], on [DATE]. If your ordinary shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other nominee, you should contact them to change your vote.

Q: If I want to attend the general meeting, what should I do?

A:  If you wish to attend the general meeting, you should come to [ ], at [TIME] London time ([TIME] Eastern time), on [DATE]. Holders of our
voting shares as of the record date for the general meeting can vote in person at the general meeting. If your shares are held in “street name”, then you
must ask your broker, bank or other nominee how you can vote at the general meeting. Even if you plan to attend the general meeting in person, we
recommend that you vote by proxy to ensure that your shares will be represented at the general meeting. If you attend the general meeting and vote in
person, your vote by ballot will revoke any proxy previously submitted. Please note that no management presentations or other matters are planned for
the general meeting, except as described in this proxy statement.

Q: Do any executive officers or directors of Liberty Global have interests in the Acquisition or the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares or
LiLAC A&C Shares to CWC shareholders that may be different from, or in addition to, those of other shareholders?

A:  Mr. Malone, the chairman of the board of directors of Liberty Global, controls CHLLC, an entity that owns approximately 13% of the CWC Shares
which will be acquired in the Acquisition. None of Liberty Global’s other directors or executive officers has any substantial financial interest, direct or
indirect, in the Acquisition or the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares or LILAC A&C Shares to CWC shareholders as consideration for the
Acquisition, other than being a director or executive officer and a shareholder of Liberty Global.

Q: Do I have dissenters’ rights if I vote against the proposals?

A:  There are no dissenters’ rights available to Liberty Global shareholders with respect to any matter to be voted on at the general meeting.

Q: What agreements has Liberty Global entered into, or is Liberty Global entering into, in connection with the Acquisition? How will Liberty
Global finance payment of the special dividend?

A: In connection with the Acquisition, on November 16, 2015, Liberty Global and CWC entered into the Co-operation Agreement. Pursuant to the Co-
operation Agreement, Liberty Global has agreed, among other things, to provide its reasonable co-operation to CWC and its advisers, and to use its
reasonable endeavors, to satisfy the conditions as promptly as possible following the date of the Co-operation Agreement and, in any event, by the long
stop date, and, in the case of the regulatory conditions, by the regulatory long stop date. The Co-operation Agreement is further described below in the
section entitled “Information About the CWC Acquisition—The Co-operation Agreement” beginning on page 45.

In contemplation of the Acquisition, Liberty Global has also entered into certain financing arrangements, including entry into an interim credit
agreement for a new term loan for purposes of indirectly financing the special dividend payable by CWC to CWC shareholders and a commitment
letter for new senior secured
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credit facilities for purposes of, among others, refinancing certain existing notes and revolving credit facilities and paying certain costs, fees, and
expenses arising in connection with the Acquisition.

Liberty Global has received irrevocable undertakings from certain CWC shareholders and CWC directors. These undertakings are further described
below in the section entitled “Irrevocable Undertakings Received by Liberty Global” beginning on page 44.

Q: What are the conditions to completing the Acquisition?
A:  The completion of the Acquisition is conditioned upon, among other things:

» approval of the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal by Liberty Global’s shareholders at the general
meeting;

» approval of the Scheme of Arrangement by the requisite majority of CWC shareholders at the CWC court meeting;

»  approval of a special resolution required to approve and implement the Scheme of Arrangement by the requisite majority of CWC shareholders at
the CWC general meeting;

+ sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement by the High Court;
»  the Scheme of Arrangement becoming effective no later than the long stop date;

» approval for listing on NASDAQ of the Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued to CWC shareholders as consideration
for the Acquisition; and

+  approval of the Prospectus by the UKLA, and its publication, prior to the CWC general meeting.

Q: When do you expect the Acquisition to be completed?

A:  We are working toward completing the Acquisition, which we currently expect to complete in the second quarter of 2016. However, the exact timing of
completion of the Acquisition cannot be predicted because the Acquisition is subject to conditions, including approval of the Share Issuance Proposal
and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal by our shareholders, the receipt of certain regulatory approvals and clearances, the approval of the
Scheme of Arrangement by CWC shareholders and the sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement by the High Court.

Q: Who is paying for this proxy solicitation?

A:  We will solicit the proxies and will pay the entire cost for such solicitation. Our directors, officers and employees may solicit proxies by mail, email,
telephone or in person. These persons will receive no additional compensation for such services. We have also retained [ ] to assist in the
solicitation of proxies at a cost of $[e], plus reasonable out of pocket expenses. Brokerage houses, nominees, fiduciaries and other custodians will be
requested to forward soliciting material to the beneficial owners of ordinary shares held of record by them and will be reimbursed for their reasonable
expenses in connection therewith.

Q: What should I do if I receive more than one set of voting materials?

A:  If you receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this proxy statement and multiple proxy cards or voting instruction
cards, it means you hold your shares in different ways (e.g., trust, custodial accounts, joint tenancy) or in multiple accounts. To ensure that all of your
shares are voted, please complete, sign and return (or submit a proxy via the internet with respect to) each proxy card and voting instruction card that
you receive.
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Q: What is “householding”?

A:  Some banks, brokers and other nominee record holders may be participating in the practice of “householding” the proxy materials. This means that only
one copy of the proxy materials may have been sent to multiple shareholders in your household. We will promptly deliver a separate copy of these
documents to you if you call or email our Investor Relations Department, phone +1(303) 220-6600 or ir@libertyglobal.com. If you prefer to receive
separate copies of such documents in the future, or if you are receiving multiple copies and would like to receive only one copy for your household, you
should contact your bank, broker or other nominee holder, or you may contact us at the above phone number or email address.

Q: Where can I find the voting results of the general meeting?

A:  We will announce the preliminary voting results at the general meeting. We will post the final results of voting at the general meeting on our website
promptly after the general meeting. We will also report the final results in a Current Report on Form 8-K that we will file with the SEC. All reports
Liberty Global files with the SEC are publicly available when filed; for more information, see “Where You Can Find More Information” beginning on
page 72 of this proxy statement.

Q: Who can help answer my additional questions about the proposals or the other matters discussed in this proxy statement?

A:  If you have any further questions about the proposals, voting or attending the general meeting, please call Liberty Global Investor Relations at +1(303)
220-6600 or contact [ ], who is acting as proxy solicitation agent for the general meeting, at [®]. Banks and brokers may call collect at [e].

Page 20



Table of Contents

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This proxy statement, including documents incorporated by reference herein, contains certain statements which are, or may be deemed to be, “forward-
looking statements” with respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of CWC and Liberty Global and certain plans and objectives of
Liberty Global with respect to the combined group. All statements other than statements of historical fact may be forward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements are statements of future expectations that are based on current expectations, assumptions and projections about future events, and are
therefore subject to risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results, performance or events to differ materially from those expressed or implied by the
forward-looking statements. Often, but not always, forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking words such as “plans”,
“expects”, “is expected”, “is subject to”, “budget”, “scheduled”, “estimates”, “forecasts”, “intends”, “anticipates”, “believes”, “targets”, “aims”, “projects” or
words or terms of similar substance or the negative thereof, as well as variations of such words and phrases or statements that certain actions, events or results

“may”, “could”, “should”, “would”, “might” or “will” be taken, occur or be achieved. Such statements are qualified in their entirety by the inherent risks and
uncertainties surrounding future expectations.

Such forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that could significantly affect expected results and are based on certain key
assumptions. Many factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected or implied in any forward-looking statements included in this
proxy statement or documents incorporated by reference herein, including (without limitation) the following factors: local and global economic and business
conditions; market-related risks such as fluctuations in interest rates and exchange rates; the policies and actions of regulatory authorities; the impact of
competition, inflation and deflation; the timing impact and other uncertainties of future acquisitions, disposals or combinations within relevant industries
(including uncertainties relating to the execution of the Acquisition); as well as the impact of tax and other legislation or regulations in the jurisdictions in
which Liberty Global and/or CWC operate.

Additional factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in such forward-looking statements are discussed in the
section entitled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 8 and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, and our subsequent
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2015, June 30, 2015 and September 30, 2015, respectively, and other reports we have
filed with the SEC since December 31, 2014, which are incorporated by reference herein. See the section of this proxy statement entitled “Where You Can
Find More Information” beginning on page 72 for more information about the documents incorporated by reference into this proxy statement.

All of our forward-looking statements should be considered in light of these factors. All of our forward-looking statements speak only as of the date
they were made, and we undertake no obligation to update our forward-looking statements or risk factors to reflect new information, future events or
otherwise, except as may be required under applicable securities laws and regulations. Any forward-looking statements in this proxy statement, including
documents incorporated by reference herein, are not guarantees of future performance, and actual results, developments and business decisions may differ
from those contemplated by those forward-looking statements, possibly materially. Accordingly, you should not place undue reliance on any such forward-
looking statements.

No forward-looking or other statements have been reviewed by the auditors of Liberty Global or CWC. All subsequent oral or written forward-looking
statements attributable to any of Liberty Global, CWC or their respective members, directors, officers, advisers or employees or any person acting on their
behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements above.

No Profit Forecast

No statement in this proxy statement is intended as a profit forecast or a profit estimate (as defined for purposes of the Takeover Code), and no
statement in this proxy statement should be interpreted to mean that earnings per Liberty Global Share, LiLAC Share or CWC Share for the current or future
financial years would necessarily match or exceed the historical published earnings per Liberty Global Share, LiLAC Share or CWC Share.
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CURRENCIES

In this proxy statement, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires:

+  “pounds sterling”, “pounds”, “GBP”, “British Pounds”, “£” or “pence” each refer to the lawful currency of the United Kingdom; and

e “US dollars”, “dollars”, “$” or “US$” each refer to the lawful currency of the United States.

We and CWC publish our respective financial statements in US dollars.

Page 22



Table of Contents

THE GENERAL MEETING

Date, Time and Place

The general meeting will be held at [TIME] London time ([TIME] Eastern time), on [DATE], at [ 1.

Matters to be Considered
The purpose of the general meeting is for Liberty Global shareholders to consider and vote on the following three proposals:
*  Proposal No. 1 — The Share Issuance Proposal

To approve the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to CWC shareholders in connection with the Acquisition on the
terms described in this proxy statement and in the Rule 2.7 Announcement.

*  Proposal No. 2 — The Substantial Property Transaction Proposal

To approve the acquisition by Liberty Global of the CWC Shares held by CHLLC, an entity that owns approximately 13% of the CWC Shares
and is controlled by Mr. Malone, the chairman of the board of directors of Liberty Global.

*  Proposal No. 3 — The Adjournment Proposal

To adjourn the general meeting for a period of not more than 10 business days, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies in the
event there are insufficient votes at the time of such adjournment to approve the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property
Transaction Proposal.

We are seeking shareholder approval of the Share Issuance Proposal pursuant to Rule 5635(a)(2) of the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules, which requires
shareholder approval prior to the issuance of common stock in connection with the acquisition of the stock or assets of another company if any director,
officer or substantial shareholder (which means any shareholder owning 5% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock or voting power of the
issuing company) has a 5% or greater interest in the company or assets to be acquired or in the consideration to be paid in the transaction and the potential
issuance of common stock could result in an increase in outstanding common shares or voting power of 5% or more. The Liberty Global A&C Shares and
LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued to shareholders of CWC as consideration for the Acquisition will result in an increase in Liberty Global’s outstanding
ordinary shares in excess of 5% and will include the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to CHLLC, an entity that owns
approximately 13% of the CWC Shares and is controlled by Mr. Malone, the chairman of the board of directors of Liberty Global and owner of shares
representing approximately 24.9% of Liberty Global’s voting power. Therefore, under Rule 5635(a)(2) of the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules, shareholder
approval of the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares in the Acquisition is required.

We are seeking shareholder approval of the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal pursuant to Section 190 of the Companies Act, which requires
shareholder approval for any arrangement in which Liberty Global is to acquire from a director a substantial non-cash asset (which means any substantial
asset in relation to a company if its value exceeds 10% of the company’s asset value and is more than £5,000 or its value exceeds £100,000). In the
Acquisition, Liberty Global will be acquiring the CWC Shares held by CHLLC, which represent approximately 13% of the CWC Shares. Because these
CWC Shares comprise a substantial non-cash asset and CHLLC is controlled by Mr. Malone, the chairman of the board of directors of Liberty Global, such
acquisition of CWC Shares from CHLLC constitutes a substantial property transaction pursuant to the Companies Act, and therefore the Companies Act
requires shareholder approval of such substantial property transaction before it can be completed.
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As of the date of this proxy statement, we do not know of any other matters that will be presented for consideration at the general meeting other than
those matters discussed in this proxy statement. If any other matters properly come before the general meeting and call for a shareholder vote, valid proxies
will be voted by the holders of the proxies in accordance with the recommendation of our board of directors or, if no recommendation is given, in their own
discretion.

Record Date; Shares Outstanding and Entitled to Vote
Only holders of record of our voting shares as of [10:00 p.m. London time (5:00 p.m. Eastern time)] on [DATE], which is the record date for the

general meeting, are entitled to vote at the general meeting.

Each Liberty Global Class A Share entitles its holder to one vote, each Liberty Global Class B Share entitles its holder to ten votes, each LILAC
Class A Share entitles its holder to one vote, and each LiLAC Class B Share entitles its holder to ten votes, in each case, on each of the proposals to be voted
upon at the general meeting.

Liberty Global Class C Shares and LiLAC Class C Shares are non-voting (except where otherwise required by the Companies Act and our articles of
association) and do not entitle their holders to any votes on any of the proposals to be voted upon at the general meeting.

As of [10:00 p.m. London time (5:00 p.m. Eastern time)] on the record date for the general meeting, we had outstanding and entitled to vote at the
general meeting [®] Liberty Global Class A Shares, [®] Liberty Global Class B Shares, [®] LiLAC Class A Shares and [e] LiLAC Class B Shares.

Quorum
A quorum of shareholders is necessary to hold a valid meeting.

The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a simple majority of the combined voting power of our voting shares outstanding and entitled to
vote at the general meeting is necessary to constitute a quorum at the general meeting.

Votes to abstain or withheld votes are treated as votes that are represented at the general meeting for purposes of determining whether a quorum exists.

Vote Required

The affirmative vote of a simple majority of the votes cast by the holders of our voting shares (voting together as a single class) is required to approve
each of the proposals to be voted upon at the general meeting.

Abstentions, although counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum, will not be treated as votes cast at the general meeting and
accordingly will not be taken into account in determining the outcome on any of the proposals. If you are a holder of record, the failure to submit a signed
proxy card, grant a proxy electronically over the internet or to vote in person by ballot at the general meeting, or, if you hold your shares in “street name”, the
failure to instruct your broker, bank, or other nominee on how to vote your shares, which we refer to as broker non-votes, will have no effect on the outcome
of the votes for such items.

The approval of the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal are required for Liberty Global to consummate the
Acquisition. If either or both of the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal are not approved, the Acquisition will not be
completed.
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Share Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers

As of the record date, our directors and executive officers held an aggregate of approximately [®]% of Liberty Global Class A Shares, [®]% of Liberty
Global Class B Shares, [#]% of LiLAC Class A Shares, and [#]% of LiLAC Class B Shares entitled to vote at the general meeting, which represent
approximately [#]% of the voting power necessary to approve the Share Issuance Proposal, the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal and the
Adjournment Proposal (assuming the vote in person or by proxy of all outstanding shares entitled to vote at the general meeting).

All of our directors and executive officers holding voting shares have informed us that they intend to vote their shares in favor of the Share Issuance
Proposal, the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal, but none of our directors or executive officers has entered into any
agreement obligating them to do so other than Mr. Malone (as further described below in the section entitled “Irrevocable Undertakings Received by CWC”
beginning on page 44).

How to Vote Your Shares

Holders of record of our voting shares may submit a proxy via the internet or by mail, or they may vote by attending the general meeting and voting in
person.

»  Submitting a Proxy via the internet: Instructions for voting through the internet are printed on the proxy cards. In order to vote through the
internet, have your proxy cards available so you can input the required information from the cards, and log onto the internet website address
shown on the proxy cards. When you log onto the internet website address, you will receive instructions on how to vote your shares. The internet
voting procedures are designed to authenticate votes cast by use of a personal identification number, which will be provided to each voting
shareholder separately. Voting through the internet will be voting by proxy. You may submit a proxy via the internet until [[6:00 a.m. London
time (1:00 a.m. Eastern time)], on [DATE]].

»  Submitting a Proxy by Mail: If you receive a printed copy of your proxy materials, you may submit your proxy by mail by signing, dating and
returning your proxy card in the envelope provided.

»  Attending the General Meeting: If you are a shareholder of record of voting shares entitled to vote at the general meeting, you may attend the
general meeting and vote in person. Even if you plan to attend the general meeting in person, we recommend that you vote by proxy to ensure
that your shares will be represented at the general meeting. You may submit a proxy until [6:00 a.m. London time (1:00 a.m. Eastern time)] on
[DATE]. If you attend the general meeting and vote in person, your vote by ballot will revoke any proxy previously submitted. Please note that no
management presentations or other matters are planned for the general meeting, except as described in this proxy statement.

»  Employee Stock Purchase Plan or the 401(k) Plan: If you hold Liberty Global Class A Shares through your account in the Liberty Global 401(k)
Savings and Stock Ownership Plan (which we refer to as the 401(k) Plan), which plan is for employees of our subsidiary, Liberty Global, Inc., the
trustee is required to vote your Liberty Global Class A Shares as you specify. To allow sufficient time for the trustee to vote your Liberty Global
Class A Shares, your voting instructions must be received by [10:00 p.m. London time (5:00 p.m. Eastern time)] on [DATE]. If you hold Liberty
Global Class A Shares through your account in the Liberty Puerto Rico 401(k) Savings Plan, which plan is for employees of our indirect
subsidiary Liberty Cablevision of Puerto Rico, LLC, your Liberty Global Class A Shares will be voted as you specify. To vote such Liberty
Global Class A Shares, please follow the instructions provided by the trustee for such plan. The voting instructions for the Puerto Rico plan must
be received by the trustee for such plan by [10:00 p.m. London time (5:00 p.m. Eastern time)] on [DATE].

If your shares are held in the name of a broker, bank or other nominee, you will receive instructions from the shareholder of record that you must follow
for your shares to be voted. Please follow their instructions
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carefully. Also, please note that if the shareholder of record of your shares is a broker, bank or other nominee and you wish to vote in person at the general
meeting, you must request a legal proxy from the broker, bank or other nominee that holds your shares and present that proxy and proof of identification at
the general meeting.

How to Change Your Vote
If you are the shareholder of record, you may revoke your proxy or change your vote prior to your shares being voted at the general meeting by:

+ sending a written notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy card, in either case, dated later than the prior proxy card relating to the same
shares, to Liberty Global’s Corporate Secretary at Liberty Global plc, Griffin House, 161 Hammersmith Rd, London W6 8BS, United Kingdom,
Attention: Corporate Secretary;

* submitting a proxy at a later date via the internet; or

+  attending the general meeting and voting in person.

If you are the beneficial owner of shares held in the name of a broker, bank, or other nominee, you may change your vote by:

+  submitting new voting instructions to your broker, bank, or other nominee in a timely manner following the voting procedures received from your
broker, bank, or other nominee; or

+ attending the general meeting and voting in person, if you have obtained a valid proxy from the broker, bank, or other nominee that holds your

shares giving you the right to vote the shares.

Attendance at the general meeting will not, in and of itself, constitute revocation of a proxy. See the section of this proxy statement entitled “How to
Vote Your Shares” above for information regarding certain voting deadlines.

Counting Your Vote

All properly executed proxies delivered and not properly revoked will be voted at the general meeting as specified in such proxies. If you provide
specific voting instructions, your shares will be voted as instructed. If you hold shares in your name and sign and return a proxy card or submit a proxy via the
internet without giving specific voting instructions, your shares will be voted in accordance with the directors’ recommendations.

Proxies solicited may be voted only at the general meeting and any adjournment or postponement of the general meeting and will not be used for any
other meeting.

Adjournment and Postponement

Although it is not currently expected, the general meeting may be adjourned or postponed for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies (if the
Adjournment Proposal is approved). Any adjournment or postponement of the general meeting for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies will allow
shareholders who have already sent in their proxies to revoke them at any time prior to their use at the general meeting as adjourned or postponed.

Independent Accountants

Representatives of KPMG LLP (U.S.) and KPMG LLP (U.K.), Liberty Global’s independent registered public accounting firm and UK statutory
auditor, respectively, are not expected to be present at the general meeting and accordingly will not make any statement or be available to respond to any
questions.
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Recommendation of Liberty Global’s Board of Directors

After consideration of the reasons set forth below in the section entitled “Reasons for the Acquisition” beginning on page 35, our board of directors
unanimously (excluding Mr. Malone, who recused himself from all deliberations and voting on such matters) determined that the Rule 2.7 Announcement and
the Co-operation Agreement and the respective transactions contemplated thereby, including the Scheme of Arrangement, the Acquisition and the issuance of
Liberty Global A&C Shares and the LiLAC A&C Shares as consideration for the Acquisition, in each case, on the terms set forth in the Rule 2.7
Announcement and the Co-operation Agreement, were advisable and in the best interests of Liberty Global and its shareholders (including the LiLAC
shareholders).

Accordingly, our board of directors unanimously (excluding Mr. Malone, who recused himself from all deliberations and voting on such matters)
recommends that you vote “FOR” the Share Issuance Proposal, “FOR” the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal and “FOR” the Adjournment
Proposal.
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE CWC ACQUISITION

The following summary describes certain material terms of, and documents and agreements related to, the Acquisition, the Rule 2.7 Announcement and
the Co-operation Agreement. This summary is not complete and it is qualified in its entirety by reference to the annexes to this proxy statement, and the other
documents and agreements that are incorporated herein by reference. We urge you to read this entire proxy statement and the annexes to this proxy statement
carefully and in their entirety, as this summary may not contain all of the information that is important to you regarding the Acquisition and related matters.

Overview of the Acquisition

On November 16, 2015, pursuant to Rule 2.7 of Takeover Code, Liberty Global issued the Rule 2.7 Announcement announcing the terms of the
Acquisition. Under the terms of the Acquisition, upon the closing of the Acquisition, CWC shareholders will be entitled to receive up to, in the aggregate:

* 31,651,616 Liberty Global Class A Shares;
+ 77,488,978 Liberty Global Class C Shares;
e 3,648,524 LiLAC Class A Shares; and
8,939,328 LiLAC Class C Shares.

CWC shareholders will also be entitled to receive a special dividend from CWC of 3 pence per CWC Share promptly following the closing of the
Acquisition.

The Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued to CWC shareholders as consideration for the Acquisition will be issued to, and
held through the facilities of, the Depository Trust Company, or may initially be issued to one or more nominees for a non-EU issuer of depository receipts
and subsequently transferred to, and held through the facilities of, the Depository Trust Company (with any such depository receipts being cancelled in
connection with the transfer of the shares to the Depository Trust Company or its nominee).

As of November 13, 2015, the last practicable date prior to the Announcement Date, based on the closing trading prices of Liberty Global A&C Shares
and LiLAC A&C Shares and the exchange rate of $1.5206:£1 on that date, the aggregate consideration for the Acquisition, taking into account the special
dividend, represented an aggregate value for the CWC Shares of approximately £3.60 billion, or $5.47 billion. Based on the 4,438,594,233 fully-diluted CWC
Shares outstanding as of that date, the aggregate consideration implied a value of 81.04 pence per CWC Share, representing a premium of approximately 40%
to the closing price of 58.00 pence per CWC Share on the unaffected date.

As of [DATE], the latest practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement, based on the closing trading prices of Liberty Global A&C Shares
and LiLAC A&C Shares and the exchange rate of $[®]:£1 on that date, the aggregate consideration for the Acquisition, taking into account the special
dividend, represented an aggregate value for the CWC Shares of approximately £[e] billion, or $[e] billion. Based on the [®] fully-diluted CWC Shares
outstanding as of that date, the aggregate consideration implied a value of [®] pence per CWC Share, representing a premium of approximately [®]% to the
closing price of 58.00 pence per CWC Share on the unaffected date.

The actual value received by each CWC shareholder for its CWC Shares will depend upon whether such shareholder elects for the Recommended
Offer, the LILAC Alternative or one of the Dual Share Alternatives, each of which is described in the section of this proxy statement entitled “The
Recommended Offer and the Dual Share Alternatives”, as well as on the elections made by other CWC shareholders (see page 39).
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It is intended that the Acquisition will be effected by means of a two-step, integrated process comprising the court-sanctioned Scheme of Arrangement
under Part 26 of the Companies Act, following a merger by formation of a new company under the Cross-Border Merger Regulations.

In particular, following, and conditional upon, the Scheme of Arrangement becoming effective, Liberty Global intends that CWC and LGE Coral
Mergerco BV, a wholly-owned Dutch subsidiary of Liberty Global (which we refer to as Mergerco), will be dissolved without going into liquidation and on
dissolution each of their assets and liabilities will be transferred (pursuant to applicable law) to a newly-formed, English private limited company that will
continue as a subsidiary of Liberty Global.

CWC and Mergerco will be required to comply with the procedure set out in the Cross-Border Merger Regulations, which include certain prescribed
pre-merger steps followed by CWC and Mergerco each obtaining a certificate of satisfaction of such steps from the High Court and a Dutch notary,
respectively. An application will then be made for the High Court to make an order (on the application of CWC and Mergerco) approving the completion of
the Merger. CWC and Mergerco expect to agree to draft terms of merger for the purpose of the Merger in due course, which would be filed with Companies
House at the appropriate time before such steps are taken.

Following completion of the Acquisition, Liberty Global will attribute CWC to the LiLAC Group, with the Liberty Global Group being granted an
inter-group interest in the LiLAC Group. Based on the fully-diluted numbers of Liberty Global Shares, LILAC Shares and CWC Shares outstanding on the
Announcement Date, after giving effect to the Acquisition and the LiLAC Attribution, and treating the Liberty Global Group’s inter-group interest in the
LiLAC Group as being represented by additional LiLAC Shares:

*  CWC shareholders will own approximately 11% of the total number of Liberty Global A&C Shares;
*  CWC shareholders will own approximately 7.21% of the total number of LiLAC Shares;
»  Existing LILAC Group shareholders will own approximately 25.44% of the total number of LiLAC Shares; and

*  The remaining approximately 67.35% of the total number of LiLAC Shares will be represented by the inter-group interest in favor of the Liberty
Global Group.

Solely for the purposes of this presentation, the Liberty Global Group’s inter-group interest in the LiLAC Group is being treated as represented by
additional LiL AC Shares although no LiLAC Shares will in fact be issued in respect of this inter-group interest. See the section of this proxy statement
entitled “Attribution of CWC to the LiLAC Group” beginning on page 42 for additional details regarding the inter-group interest to be created in the LiLAC
Group.

The Acquisition is conditioned on the Scheme of Arrangement being approved by resolution of the CWC shareholders at the CWC court meeting. The
resolution must be approved by a majority in number of the CWC shareholders, representing at least 75% in value of the CWC Shares, present and voting
(either in person or by proxy). Thereafter, a special resolution relating to matters for effecting the Scheme of Arrangement must be passed at the CWC general
meeting (to be held immediately [following] the CWC court meeting), requiring the approval of CWC shareholders representing at least 75% of the votes cast
(either in person or by proxy). The Scheme Document will include full details of the Scheme of Arrangement, together with notices of the CWC court
meeting and the CWC general meeting and the expected timetable of the Acquisition, and will specify the actions to be taken by CWC shareholders. The
Scheme Document is currently expected to be circulated around [DATE].

After the Liberty Global general meeting and the CWC court meeting and the CWC general meeting, assuming the requisite shareholder approvals are
obtained at such meetings, the High Court is expected to sanction the Scheme of Arrangement. The Scheme of Arrangement will then become effective upon
delivery of the order of the High Court to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales no later than the long stop date.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, other conditions for the completion of the Acquisition include, among other things:

+ approval for listing on NASDAQ of the Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued to CWC shareholders as consideration
for the Acquisition; and

» approval of the Prospectus by the UKLA, and its publication, prior to the CWC general meeting.

Liberty Global has reserved the right, subject to the prior consent of the Panel, to elect under certain circumstances to implement the Acquisition
instead by way of an Offer, followed by the Merger.

Information about Liberty Global

Liberty Global plc is a public limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales. We are an international provider of video, broadband
internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services, with consolidated operations as of September 30, 2015, in 14 countries. Through our wholly-owned
subsidiary Virgin Media Inc., we provide video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services in the United Kingdom and Ireland. Through
Ziggo Group Holding B.V. and Unitymedia GmbH, each a wholly-owned subsidiary, and Telenet Group Holding N.V., a 57%-owned subsidiary, we provide
video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services in the Netherlands, Germany and Belgium, respectively. Through UPC Holding B.V., we
provide (a) video, broadband internet and fixed-line telephony services in seven other European countries and (b) mobile services in four other European
countries. In Chile, we provide video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services through VTR GlobalCom SpA. In Puerto Rico, we
provide video, broadband internet and fixed-line telephony services through Liberty Cablevision of Puerto Rico LLC, an entity in which we hold a 60.0%
ownership interest.

The “LiLAC Group” comprises our businesses, assets and liabilities in Latin America and the Caribbean, including VTR GlobalCom SpA and Liberty
Cablevision of Puerto Rico LLC.

The “Liberty Global Group” comprises our businesses, assets and liabilities not attributed to the LiLAC Group, including Virgin Media Inc., Ziggo
Group Holding B.V., Unitymedia GmbH, Telenet Group Holding N.V., UPC Holding B.V., our corporate entities (other than certain corporate costs associated
with the LiLAC Group) and certain other less significant entities.

On July 1, 2015, we completed the approved steps of the “LiLAC Transaction” whereby we (i) reclassified our then outstanding Class A, Class B and
Class C Liberty Global ordinary shares (which we refer to as the Old Liberty Global shares) into new Liberty Global Class A Shares, Liberty Global Class B
Shares and Liberty Global Class C Shares, respectively, and (ii) capitalized a portion of our share premium account and distributed as a dividend (or a “bonus
issue” under UK law) our LiLAC Class A Shares, LiLAC Class B Shares and LiLAC Class C Shares. Pursuant to the LiLAC Transaction, each holder of
Class A, Class B or Class C Old Liberty Global shares remained a holder of the same number of Liberty Global Class A Shares, Liberty Global Class B
Shares or Liberty Global Class C Shares, respectively, and received one share of the corresponding class of LiLAC Shares for each 20 Old Liberty Global
shares held as of the record date for such distribution.

The Liberty Global Shares and the LiLAC Shares are tracking shares. Tracking shares are intended by the issuing company to reflect or “track” the
economic performance of a particular business or “group” rather than the economic performance of the company as a whole. The Liberty Global Shares are
intended to track the economic performance of the Liberty Global Group. The LiLAC Shares are intended to track the economic performance of the LiLAC
Group.

While the Liberty Global Group and the LiLAC Group have separate collections of businesses, assets and liabilities attributed to them, neither group is
a separate legal entity and therefore cannot own assets, issue securities or enter into legally binding agreements. Holders of tracking shares have no direct
claim to the
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applicable tracking group’s assets and are not represented by separate boards of directors. Instead, holders of tracking shares are shareholders of the parent
corporation, with a single board of directors, and are subject to all of the risks and liabilities of the parent corporation. Holders of Liberty Global Shares,
LiLAC Shares or any other of our capital shares designated as ordinary shares from time to time will continue to be subject to risks associated with an
investment in Liberty Global as a whole.

The address of Liberty Global’s principal executive office is Griffin House, 161 Hammersmith Rd, London W6 8BS, United Kingdom, and our
telephone number is +44 20 8483 6300. We also have executive offices at 12300 Liberty Boulevard, Englewood, Colorado 80112, United States. Liberty
Global Class A Shares, Liberty Global Class B Shares and Liberty Global Class C Shares are listed for trading on NASDAQ under the ticker symbols
LBTYA, LBTYB and LBTYK, respectively. LILAC Class A Shares and LiLAC Class C Shares are listed for trading on NASDAQ under the ticker symbols
LILA and LILAK, respectively, and LiLAC Class B Shares are quoted on OTC Link as LILAB.

Information about CWC

CWC is a provider of telecommunications-based services, including mobile, high-speed broadband, traditional and IP-based services, and advanced
digital video services, as well as wholesale broadband capacity and managed IT services in the Caribbean, Latin America and Seychelles.

CWC, which is headquartered in London and has a regional operational hub in Miami, Florida, acquired Columbus on March 31, 2015, in the
Columbus Acquisition, forming a regionally-focused telecommunications company capable of delivering quad-play services to residential customers and
advanced carrier-grade broadband and managed IT service to corporate and government customers. CWC has over 7,000 employees across three main
divisions.

The address of CWC'’s principal executive office is 62-65 Chandos Place, London WC2N 4HG, United Kingdom, and its telephone number is +44
(0) 207 315 4000. CWC Shares are listed for trading on the London Stock Exchange under the symbol CWC.

Background to the Acquisition

The following chronology summarizes the significant meetings, telephone conversations and other contacts and events that led to Liberty Global’s
announcement of its agreement to acquire all of the CWC Shares pursuant to the Rule 2.7 Announcement and the execution of the Co-operation Agreement.

In July 2014, Columbus, formerly a privately held, independent company, initiated a sales process for itself. Liberty Global submitted a nonbinding
offer to acquire Columbus but did not acquire Columbus as part of that process. In November 2014, CWC announced that it had entered into an agreement to
purchase Columbus. CWC completed its acquisition of Columbus on March 31, 2015. Upon consummation of the acquisition, Mr. Malone, formerly a
significant shareholder of Columbus, became a significant shareholder of CWC (in each case, indirectly, through CHLLC), and Thad York, the president,
general manager and director of various personal and business entities controlled by Mr. Malone, was appointed as a non-executive director of CWC.

In late May 2015, representatives of Liberty Global and CWC met at Liberty Global’s offices in Englewood, Colorado. At the meeting, the parties
discussed a variety of topics including next-generation video products, common business interests and initiatives and consolidation opportunities in Latin
America and the Caribbean region.

Following additional discussion between the parties, in late June 2015, Sir Richard Lapthorne, the chairman of CWC, sent a letter to Mr. Malone, the
chairman of the board of directors of Liberty Global, at Liberty Global (which we refer to as the June Letter) stating that a merger of CWC with Liberty
Global’s LiILAC Group made
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good business sense and would provide substantial value to the shareholders of both companies. In the June Letter, which was accompanied by preliminary
draft discussion materials prepared by CWC'’s existing financial advisor, Sir Richard proposed an acquisition by CWC of the LiLAC Group in exchange for
the issuance to Liberty Global by CWC of CWC Shares in a transaction that would have resulted in the ownership by Liberty Global of a minority stake in
CWC (which we refer to as the partial acquisition proposal). The June Letter recognized that an alternative approach would be for Liberty Global to offer to
buy CWC at a “full” premium, but indicated that this was not CWC'’s preferred approach.

Mr. Malone forwarded the June Letter to Michael T. Fries, the vice chairman, president and chief executive officer of Liberty Global, and Mr. Malone
advised each of Mr. Fries, Sir Richard, Phil Bentley, the chief executive officer of CWC, John Risley, a non-executive director and joint deputy chairman of
CWC, Brendan Paddick, a non-executive director of CWC and the former chief executive officer of Columbus, and Mr. York that, as a significant shareholder
of CWC (indirectly through CHLLC), Mr. Malone had a potential conflict of interest and could not participate on behalf of Liberty Global in discussions
regarding any possible transaction between Liberty Global and CWC, and that any such discussions should be conducted among the senior executives of
Liberty Global and CWC and their respective boards of directors. In accordance with that determination, Mr. Malone did not attend any meetings, or
participate in any discussions or votes, of the Liberty Global board of directors with respect to any proposed transaction (including the Acquisition) between
Liberty Global and CWC, and all references to the Liberty Global board of directors in this section of the proxy statement entitled “Background to the
Acquisition” are references to the Liberty Global board of directors excluding Mr. Malone.

While the parties continued to informally discuss the matters raised in the June Letter, Liberty Global ultimately ceased discussing the partial
acquisition proposal.

On August 5, 2015, Liberty Global sent a letter to CWC that included an indicative non-binding proposal by Liberty Global to acquire CWC at a value
estimated by Liberty Global to be 78.72 pence per CWC Share, comprised of approximately 60% Liberty Global shares, approximately 20% LiL AC shares
and approximately 20% cash, plus CWC’s announced dividend of 2.56 pence per CWC Share due to be paid two days later on August 7, 2015 (which we
refer to collectively as the August 5 proposal). At our estimated value, the August 5 proposal represented a 24% premium to the closing price of CWC Shares
as of that date. The letter noted that the August 5 proposal had the full support of Liberty Global’s board of directors but was subject to customary conditions
including the execution of a confidentiality agreement, the negotiation and execution of definitive documentation, due diligence and final approval by Liberty
Global’s board of directors. The CWC board of directors considered the August 5 proposal but ultimately rejected it on August 13, 2015; Mr. Fries was
informed by telephone of the rejection on August 14, 2015.

On August 18, 2015, Liberty Global and CWC entered into a mutual confidentiality agreement in relation to a potential transaction, pursuant to which
they each agreed, among other things, to share certain non-public information regarding their respective businesses, subject to customary restrictions on the
further disclosure, sharing and use of such information. From August 18, 2015, Liberty Global and CWC (and their respective existing legal and financial
advisors) conducted due diligence on each other’s businesses.

On September 21, 2015, representatives of CWC met with representatives of Liberty Global to negotiate the terms of a potential transaction. That
evening, Liberty Global sent a letter to CWC making a revised indicative non-binding proposal by Liberty Global to acquire CWC at a value estimated by
Liberty Global to be 84.00 pence per CWC Share, comprised of 20% cash and 80% Liberty Global shares (which Liberty Global would have the option, in its
sole discretion, to replace with cash), plus a special dividend at the closing of the acquisition of 1.00 pence per CWC Share in addition to CWC'’s expected
interim dividend of 0.87 pence per CWC Share which would usually be paid in January 2016 (which we refer to collectively as the September 21 proposal).
At our estimated value, the September 21 proposal represented a 45% premium to the closing price of CWC Shares as of that date. The letter noted that the
September 21 proposal remained subject to the completion of confirmatory due diligence, the agreement of a mechanism to protect Liberty Global against any
material change in its share price
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between the signing and closing of the transaction, the negotiation and execution of definitive documentation and final approval of Liberty Global’s board of
directors. The letter further noted that the transaction might be subject to third-party consents and approvals, including approval by Liberty Global’s
shareholders.

On September 22, 2015, representatives of Liberty Global were informed by representatives of CWC that the independent directors of CWC had met
and did not recommend that CWC support the September 21 proposal, which they deemed inadequate.

Later on September 22, 2015, Liberty Global sent to CWC a further revised non-binding proposal to acquire CWC at a value estimated by Liberty
Global to be 84.00 pence per CWC Share, comprised of 95% Liberty Global shares and 5% LiL AC shares (with an adjustment mechanism to protect Liberty
Global against any decrease in the market prices of Liberty Global shares and LiL AC shares between the signing and closing of the transaction), a “mix and
match” alternative, and a special dividend of 3.00 pence per CWC Share in lieu of any previously announced CWC dividend (which we refer to collectively
as the September 22 proposal). In response to the September 22 proposal, representatives of CWC indicated that an offer of 87.00 pence per CWC Share at
the time of announcement of the Acquisition could be considered by CWC’s board of directors.

During the week of September 28, 2015, representatives of Liberty Global and its outside legal counsel and outside financial advisors attended
meetings with CWC management and its legal and financial advisors in Miami, Florida, to further discuss CWC'’s business and operations.

On October 6, 2015, representatives of Liberty Global delivered to representatives of CWC a revised proposal for Liberty Global to acquire CWC for
consideration per CWC Share including 0.0216 Liberty Global A&C Shares (comprised of 71% Liberty Global Class C Shares and 29% Liberty Global
Class A Shares), 0.0028 LiLAC A&C Shares (comprised of 71% LiLAC Class C Shares and 29% LiLAC Class A shares), 8.40 pence in cash, and a special
dividend of 3.00 pence payable at the closing of the acquisition in lieu of any previously announced CWC dividend (which we refer to collectively as the
October 6 proposal). As of that date, the October 6 proposal was estimated by Liberty Global to be the equivalent of 87.00 pence per CWC Share (including
the 3.00 pence special dividend).

Although CWC did not agree with Liberty Global’s valuation of the October 6 proposal, after October 6, 2015, Liberty Global and CWC and their
respective representatives proceeded to conduct additional due diligence on each other.

On October 9, 2015, Shearman & Sterling LLP, Liberty Global’s outside legal counsel for the proposed transaction, delivered to Slaughter and May,
CWC’s outside legal counsel for the proposed transaction, an initial draft of the Rule 2.7 Announcement.

During the week of October 11, 2015, Liberty Global and CWC continued to negotiate the terms and conditions of a possible transaction.

On October 22, 2015, in response to market rumors, Liberty Global and CWC confirmed publicly that they were in discussions regarding a possible
acquisition of CWC by Liberty Global.

Also on October 22, 2015, Liberty Global and CWC entered into a further confidentiality agreement, pursuant to which they each agreed to share
certain commercially sensitive information subject to additional limitations on the further disclosure, sharing and use of such information.

On October 23, 2015, the Liberty Global board of directors met with representatives of Liberty Global management and its outside financial advisors to
further discuss the status of the proposed acquisition, key due diligence findings, business plans, financing and valuation and certain additional legal
considerations relating to the proposed transaction. At this board meeting, the potential attribution of CWC to Liberty Global’s LILAC
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Group and the intercompany treatment relating to the use of Liberty Global A&C Shares as partial consideration for the Acquisition were also discussed.
Also on October 23, 2015, Slaughter and May delivered to Shearman & Sterling an initial draft of the Co-operation Agreement.

On November 3, 2015, Slaughter and May, on behalf of CWC, proposed to Shearman & Sterling an alternative structure for the proposed acquisition
comprising a recommended cash and share offer (excluding any LiLAC Shares) and two alternative all-share offers (including both Liberty Global A&C
Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares) for each CWC Share. From November 3, 2015, through November 13, 2015, Liberty Global and CWC and their respective
outside advisors developed the terms and evaluated the feasibility of the alternative structure.

On November 8, 2015, Liberty Global delivered a proposal to CWC in which the cash component of the consideration (although not the special
dividend) in the October 6 proposal was replaced with additional Liberty Global A&C Shares.

From November 8, 2015, through November 16, 2015, Liberty Global, CWC and their respective legal and financial advisors continued to negotiate the
terms of an offer, the Rule 2.7 Announcement and the Co-operation Agreement and related documentation.

On November 15, 2015, the Liberty Global board of directors met with representatives of Liberty Global management, its outside financial advisors
and Shearman & Sterling and, after discussion of all of such matters, the Liberty Global board of directors unanimously determined that the Rule 2.7
Announcement and the Co-operation Agreement and the respective transactions contemplated thereby, including the Acquisition and the issuance of Liberty
Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares as consideration therefor (subject to the approval of Liberty Global’s shareholders), in each case, were advisable
and in the best interests of Liberty Global and its shareholders and approved the issuance of the Rule 2.7 Announcement and entry into the Co-operation
Agreement. The Liberty Global board of directors also discussed, together with Liberty Global management and its outside financial and legal advisors, the
attribution of CWC to the LiLAC Group upon closing of the Acquisition and the intergroup interest in the LiLAC Group to be created in favor of the Liberty
Global Group in respect of the Liberty Global A&C Shares to be used as partial consideration in the Acquisition. In accordance with its management and
allocation policy, the Liberty Global board of directors determined that the attribution of CWC to the LiLAC Group and the intergroup interest to be created
in favor of the Liberty Global Group, as determined by the board of directors, were fair and reasonable and in the best interests of the Liberty Global Group
and LiL AC Group shareholders.

On November 16, 2015, Liberty Global and CWC signed the Co-operation Agreement and Liberty Global issued the Rule 2.7 Announcement.

Recommendation of Liberty Global’s Board of Directors

After consideration of the reasons set forth below in “Reasons for the Acquisition”, our board of directors unanimously (excluding Mr. Malone, who
recused himself from all deliberations and voting on such matters) determined that the Rule 2.7 Announcement and the Co-operation Agreement and the
respective transactions contemplated thereby, including the Scheme of Arrangement, the Acquisition and the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and the
LiLAC A&C Shares as consideration for the Acquisition, in each case, on the terms set forth in the Rule 2.7 Announcement and the Co-operation Agreement,
are advisable and in the best interests of Liberty Global and its shareholders.

Accordingly, our board of directors unanimously (excluding Mr. Malone, who recused himself from all deliberations and voting on such matters)
recommends that you vote “FOR” the Share Issuance Proposal, “FOR” the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal and “FOR” the Adjournment
Proposal.
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Reasons for the Acquisition

Due to his potential conflict of interest as a significant shareholder of CWC (indirectly through CHLLC), Mr. Malone, the chairman of Liberty Global’s
board of directors, did not attend any meetings, or participate in any discussions or votes, of the Liberty Global board of directors with respect to any
proposed transaction (including the Acquisition) between Liberty Global and CWC. Accordingly, all references to the Liberty Global (or “our”) board of
directors in this section of the proxy statement entitled “Reasons for the Acquisition” are references to the Liberty Global board of directors excluding
Mr. Malone.

In reaching its decision that the Acquisition, including the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to shareholders of CWC in
connection therewith, was advisable and in the best interests of Liberty Global and our shareholders, our board of directors consulted with Liberty Global’s
management, as well as its outside legal counsel and outside financial advisors. In recommending that Liberty Global’s shareholders vote in favor of the Share
Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal, our board of directors also considered a number of factors that it believes support its
determination, including (not necessarily in order of importance):

* A review of the potential alternatives to the Acquisition, including remaining independent and growing organically in the Latin America and
Caribbean region, pursuing alternative acquisitions and strategic transactions, the perceived value to our shareholders of such alternatives,
including the timing and likelihood of accomplishing and creating value from such alternatives, and the assessment of the Liberty Global board of
directors that none of these alternatives were reasonably likely to result in greater value for our shareholders than the Acquisition;

*  Our board of directors’ belief that the Acquisition:
. is expected to enhance the long-term equity value for both the Liberty Global Group and LiLAC Group shareholders;

. is a strategic milestone for Liberty Global, and in particular its businesses in Latin America and the Caribbean that comprise the LiLAC
Group, to which CWC will be attributed;

. combines high-growth assets in the Latin America and Caribbean region to form the leading consumer and business-to-business
communications provider, with 10 million video, broadband, fixed and mobile telephony subscription services;

. adds a powerful Latin American and Caribbean business-to-business platform to the LiLAC Group, as CWC’s comprehensive product
portfolio and extensive terrestrial and submarine network will position the LiLAC Group to capitalize on the growth in the business
market throughout the region;

. enables continued network investment and product innovation for the benefit of consumers and business customers alike, taking
advantage of efficiencies driven from combined scale, and leveraging both Liberty Global’s and CWC’s complementary experience in
product development and customer-centricity;

. offers attractive organic growth opportunities in broadband, pay TV and mobile data;

. is expected to provide incremental financial benefits from the CWC acquisition of Columbus over and above those publicly quantified
($125 million of cost synergies) by CWC, including material revenue synergies through cross-selling, expected improvements in the
video offering and network quality and enhancements in the business-to-business offering;

. is expected to provide significant synergy opportunities from combining CWC with the LiLAC Group, including savings related to the
elimination of public company expenses, further corporate and administrative rationalization of existing LiLAC Group operations with
those of CWC, and the opportunity to leverage the combined scale in areas such as content, procurement, and product development; and
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. is expected to create a leading regional platform to capitalize on further acquisition opportunities, and that the combined businesses of the
LiLAC Group and CWC will be well-positioned to exploit the fragmented telecom and pay television landscape;

+  Approximately $98 million of the estimated $106 million proportionate cost synergies resulting from CWC’s acquisition of Columbus had not
been realized as of September 30, 2015;

*  The combined business is expected to deliver low double-digit rebased operating cash flow growth over the medium term;

*  The fact that the aggregate consideration to be paid by Liberty Global to CWC shareholders (including the maximum number of Liberty Global
A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued to CWC shareholders) will not increase as a result of CWC shareholders electing to receive
any combination of the Recommended Offer, the LiLAC Alternative or the Dual Share Alternatives;

»  Liberty Global expects to capitalize on the market-leading brands, superior fixed and mobile networks and product leadership of the new
combination to take advantage of underlying untapped demand for broadband, pay TV and mobile products and drive customer take-up;

» Liberty Global has received irrevocable undertakings (each subject to certain limited exceptions) from CHLLC (an entity controlled by
Mr. Malone), CVBI Holdings (Barbados) Inc. and Clearwater Holdings (Barbados) Limited (entities controlled by Mr. Risley) and Mr. Paddick to
vote (or procure the voting) in favor of the Scheme of Arrangement at the CWC court meeting and the resolutions relating to the Acquisition to
be proposed at the CWC general meeting in respect of those CWC Shares owned and/or controlled by those CWC shareholders, which CWC
Shares amount to, in the aggregate, approximately 35.7% of the outstanding CWC Shares;

» Liberty Global has received a non-binding letter of support from Orbis Investment Management Limited, pursuant to which Orbis confirmed its
intention to vote in favor of the Scheme of Arrangement in respect of those CWC Shares owned and/or controlled by it, representing
approximately 9.3% of the outstanding CWC Shares;

*  CWC has received an irrevocable undertaking (subject to certain limited exceptions) from Mr. Malone to vote (or procure the voting) in favor of
the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal in respect of those Liberty Global Shares and LiLAC Shares
owned and/or controlled by Mr. Malone, Mr. Malone’s spouse and the Malone LG 2013 Charitable Remainder Trust, which Liberty Global
Shares and LiLAC Shares represent, in the aggregate, approximately 24.9% of the voting power of Liberty Global;

»  Liberty Global has the right (with the consent of the Panel) to elect in accordance with the Co-operation Agreement to implement the Acquisition
by way of an Offer as an alternative to the Scheme of Arrangement (i) with CWC’s consent, (ii) if a third party announces a firm intention to
make an Offer for all or part of the issued and to be issued share capital of CWC or (iii) if the CWC board of directors withdraws or modifies its
unanimous and unconditional recommendation of the Scheme of Arrangement;

»  Both the Liberty Global board of directors and the CWC board of directors have unanimously recommended the Acquisition;
*  The experience of Liberty Global in integrating acquired corporate groups;

»  The Liberty Global board of directors and management’s knowledge of Liberty Global’s business, operations, financial condition, and prospects,
and its and their understanding of CWC'’s business, operations, financial condition and prospects;

*  The terms and conditions of the Co-operation Agreement and the Rule 2.7 Announcement, including Liberty Global’s ability, under certain
circumstances and subject to payment by Liberty Global of a break fee in certain cases and/or consent of the Panel, to terminate the Co-operation
Agreement;
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The condition to the Acquisition that the issuance of the Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares as consideration for the
Acquisition must be approved by a majority of votes cast at the general meeting, so that our shareholders will have the right to approve or
disapprove of the issuance of such shares;

The condition to the Acquisition that the acquisition by Liberty Global of CWC Shares held by CHLLC, an entity that owns approximately 13%
of the CWC Shares and is controlled by Mr. Malone, must be approved by a majority of votes cast at the general meeting, so that our
shareholders will have the right to approve or disapprove of the acquisition of such shares; and

The likelihood that the Acquisition would be completed, including after consideration of antitrust and regulatory laws and the risks related to
certain conditions and requirements that may be imposed by regulators to obtain approvals and clearances.

Our board of directors also considered a number of uncertainties, risks and other factors in its deliberations concerning the Acquisition and the
transactions contemplated by the Acquisition, including the following (not necessarily in order of importance):

The risk that the Acquisition might not be completed in a timely manner or at all, including the risk that (i) failure to complete the Acquisition
could cause Liberty Global to incur significant expenses and lead to negative perceptions among investors and (ii) if the Acquisition is not
completed by the long stop date for completion thereof, the Co-operation Agreement may be terminated by either party;

The fact that Liberty Global may be required to pay a break fee of $50 million (exclusive of VAT, if any) under the Co-operation Agreement if the
Liberty Global board of directors makes a Liberty Global adverse recommendation change and either party exercises its right to terminate the Co-
operation Agreement for such reason;

The fact that the Scheme of Arrangement is required to be approved by the holders of at least a majority in number representing at least 75% of
the issued share capital of CWC present at a shareholder meeting called for such purpose;

The fact that the Takeover Code limits the contractual commitments that could be obtained from CWC to take actions in furtherance of the
Acquisition, and that the CWC board of directors may, if its fiduciary and other directors’ duties so require, withdraw its recommendation of the
Scheme of Arrangement at any time prior to it becoming effective;

The fact that the Takeover Code does not permit CWC to pay any break fee to Liberty Global if the CWC board of directors withdraws its
recommendation of the Scheme of Arrangement;

The fact that (i) the Takeover Code provides that conditions to the Acquisition generally may only be invoked where the circumstances
underlying the failure of the condition are of material significance to Liberty Global in the context of the Acquisition, and therefore, the consent
of the Panel is required in order for Liberty Global to exercise its right to invoke the failure of conditions to the Acquisition, and (ii) there is no
assurance the Panel would so consent;

The fact that the receipt of regulatory approvals and clearances required by the Acquisition may be subject to conditions, limitations or
restrictions that could negatively impact the business and operations of the combined group;

The risk that public transactions of this sort may attract shareholder litigation and the potential outcomes of any legal proceedings, to the extent
initiated against Liberty Global, CWC, or others relating to the Acquisition;

The challenges inherent in the Acquisition and integration of two businesses of the size and scope of Liberty Global and CWC, including (i) the
difficulty of integrating the businesses, management teams, strategies, cultures and organizations of Liberty Global and CWC, (ii) the possibility
that the Acquisition and the resulting integration process could result in the loss of key employees, the
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disruption of on-going business and the loss of customers and (iii) the possibility that the anticipated cost savings, synergies and other benefits
sought to be obtained by the Acquisition might not be achieved in the time frame contemplated or at all;

»  The potential diversion of management resources from operational matters and the opportunity costs associated with the Acquisition prior to the
completion or abandonment thereof;

»  The impact of costs and expenses related to the Acquisition, including integration expenses, on Liberty Global’s financial position;

*  The potential adverse impact that business uncertainty pending the completion of the Acquisition could have on Liberty Global’s ability to attract,
retain, and motivate key CWC personnel until the completion of the Acquisition;

*  The risks associated with the emerging market economies in which CWC operates, including, but not limited to, political uncertainty and
macroeconomic risks, as well as the risk of currency deterioration in relation to the conversion of the currencies of certain countries in which
CWC operates to US dollars;

*  The fact that the Co-operation Agreement contains certain customary restrictions on the ability of Liberty Global to conduct its business in the
period between signing and closing, in that CWC'’s consent is required in respect of payment of dividends, capital reorganizations and
amendments to constitutional documents, in each case, which would reasonably be expected to have a material and adverse impact on the value
of, or, in the case of constitutional documents, the rights attaching to, Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued to CWC
shareholders as consideration for the Acquisition;

*  The fact that CWC is in the midst of (i) a significant network upgrade and (ii) the extensive integration process associated with CWC’s
acquisition of Columbus;

»  The fact that the Acquisition will be subject to approval pursuant to a court sanction process in the UK, which is subject to only limited appeal
rights;

*  The fact that, if the Acquisition is completed, utilization of CWC’s US and UK deferred tax assets would be restricted and material realization of
the benefits of those assets would be unlikely; and

»  The risks of the type and nature described in the sections of this proxy statement entitled “Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Statement Concerning
Forward-Looking Statements”.

In the judgment of the Liberty Global board of directors, however, these potential risks were favorably offset by the potential benefits of the
Acquisition discussed above.

The foregoing discussion is not intended to be exhaustive, but Liberty Global believes it addresses the material information and factors considered by
the Liberty Global board of directors in its consideration of the Acquisition, including factors that may support the Acquisition, as well as factors that may
weigh against it. In view of the variety of factors and the amount of information considered, the Liberty Global board of directors did not find it practicable to
quantify or otherwise assign relative weights to and did not make specific assessments of the factors considered in reaching its determination. In addition, the
Liberty Global board of directors did not undertake to make a specific determination as to whether each factor, or any aspect of any particular factor, was
favorable or unfavorable to its ultimate determination, and individual members of the Liberty Global board of directors may have given different weights to
different factors. The Liberty Global board of directors based its recommendation on the totality of the information presented.

The Rule 2.7 Announcement and the Scheme of Arrangement

It is intended that, once the conditions have been satisfied or (where applicable) waived, the Acquisition will be effected by way of a two-step,
integrated process. The first step will be the acquisition by Liberty Global of
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the entire issued and to be issued share capital of CWC by way of a court-sanctioned Scheme of Arrangement between CWC and the CWC shareholders
under Part 26 of the Companies Act. In the second step, following the Scheme of Arrangement becoming effective, pursuant to a merger by formation of a
new company under the Cross-Border Merger Regulations, in which CWC and Mergerco will be dissolved without going into liquidation and each of their
assets and liabilities will be transferred to a newly-formed English private limited company that will continue as a subsidiary of Liberty Global.

The purpose of the Scheme of Arrangement is to provide for Liberty Global to become the owner of the whole of the issued and to be issued share
capital of CWC. Under the Scheme of Arrangement, all of the CWC Shares will be transferred to Liberty Global in consideration for which each CWC
shareholder will receive the consideration elected by such CWC shareholder pursuant to one of the three proposed offers as described below in the section
entitled “The Recommended Offer and the Dual Share Alternatives”.

Under the terms of the Acquisition, upon the closing of the Acquisition, CWC shareholders will be entitled to receive up to, in the aggregate:
* 31,651,616 Liberty Global Class A Shares;
» 77,488,978 Liberty Global Class C Shares;
e 3,648,524 LiLAC Class A Shares; and
8,939,328 LiLAC Class C Shares.

CWC shareholders will also be entitled to receive a special dividend from CWC of 3 pence per CWC Share promptly following the closing of the
Acquisition.

As of November 13, 2015, the last practicable date prior to the Announcement Date, based on the closing trading prices of Liberty Global A&C Shares
and LiLAC A&C Shares and the exchange rate of $1.5206:£1 on that date, the aggregate consideration for the Acquisition, taking into account the special
dividend, represented an aggregate value for the CWC Shares of approximately £3.60 billion, or $5.47 billion. Based on the 4,438,594,233 fully-diluted CWC
Shares outstanding as of that date, the aggregate consideration implied a value of 81.04 pence per CWC Share, representing a premium of approximately 40%
to the closing price of 58.00 pence per CWC Share on the unaffected date.

As of [DATE], the latest practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement, based on the closing trading prices of Liberty Global A&C Shares
and LiLAC A&C Shares and the exchange rate of $[®]:£1 on that date, the aggregate consideration for the Acquisition, taking into account the special
dividend, represented an aggregate value for the CWC Shares of approximately £[e] billion, or $[ ] billion. Based on the [®] fully-diluted CWC Shares
outstanding as of that date, the aggregate consideration implied a value of [®] pence per CWC Share, representing a premium of approximately [®]% to the
closing price of 58.00 pence per CWC Share on the unaffected date. The actual value received by each CWC shareholder for its CWC Shares will depend
upon whether such shareholder elects the Recommended Offer, the LiLAC Alternative or one of the Dual Share Alternatives (each as described below), as
well as on the elections made by other CWC shareholders.

In contemplation of the Acquisition, Liberty Global has also entered into certain financing arrangements, including entry into an interim credit
agreement for a new term loan for purposes of indirectly financing a special dividend payable by CWC to CWC shareholders and a commitment letter for
new senior secured credit facilities for purposes of, among others, refinancing certain existing notes and revolving credit facilities and paying certain costs,
fees, and expenses arising in connection with the Acquisition.

The Scheme of Arrangement will be governed by English law. The Scheme of Arrangement will be subject to the applicable requirements of the
Takeover Code.

The Recommended Offer and the Dual Share Alternatives

Under the terms of the Acquisition, CWC shareholders will be entitled to elect one of the following consideration options: (i) the “Recommended
Offer”, which also includes the “LiLAC Alternative”; (ii) the “First
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Dual Share Alternative”; or (iii) the “Second Dual Share Alternative”. We refer to the First Dual Share Alternative and the Second Dual Share Alternative
together as the Dual Share Alternatives. Each consideration option is described in further detail below in this section.

Elections for the Recommended Offer, with or without the LiLAC Alternative, and the Dual Share Alternatives will not change the total
number of Liberty Global A&C Shares or LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued by Liberty Global in the Acquisition.

Under the Recommended Offer, CWC shareholders will be entitled to receive, for each CWC Share:

* anumber of Liberty Global Class A Shares as determined by a certain exchange ratio, such number not to be lower than 0.007921 and not to
exceed 0.008301; and

+ anumber of Liberty Global Class C Shares as determined by a certain exchange ratio, such number not to be lower than 0.019391 and not to

exceed 0.020321.

The exchange ratio will be calculated by reference to certain weighted average prices of the Liberty Global Class A Shares and the Liberty Global
Class C Shares (to be based on the relative proportion of each type of share to be included in the Recommended Offer and the Dual Share Alternatives). If the
exchange ratio were calculated as of [DATE] (being the latest practicable date prior to the filing of this proxy statement), CWC shareholders would be entitled
to [@] Liberty Global Class A Shares and [®] Liberty Global Class C Shares for each CWC Share held by them.

The maximum number of Liberty Global A&C Shares that Liberty Global will issue under the Recommended Offer is 23,914,687 Liberty Global
Class A Shares and 58,547,554 Liberty Global Class C Shares.

CWC shareholders who elect the Recommended Offer will also be able to elect to receive LiLAC Class A Shares and LiLLAC Class C Shares, by
reference to a certain exchange ratio (which we refer to as the LiLAC exchange ratio), up to their pro rata entitlement (against their holdings of CWC Shares)
of the Liberty Global A&C Shares to which they would be entitled under the Recommended Offer (which we refer to as the LiLAC Alternative). The LiLAC
exchange ratio will be determined as the ratio of (i) the weighted average price of the Liberty Global Class A Shares and the Liberty Global Class C Shares
(to be based on the relative proportion of each type of share to be included in the Recommended Offer and the Dual Share Alternatives) to (ii) $45.00.

The maximum number of LiLAC A&C Shares that Liberty Global will issue under the LiLAC Alternative is 2,368,235 LiLLAC Class A Shares and
5,802,464 LiLAC Class C Shares.

Under the First Dual Share Alternative, CWC shareholders will be entitled to receive, for each CWC Share:
+ 0.005593 Liberty Global Class A Shares;
* 0.013693 Liberty Global Class C Shares;
e 0.002343 LiLAC Class A Shares; and
* 0.005739 LiLAC Class C Shares.

The maximum number of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares that Liberty Global will issue under the First Dual Share Alternative is
3,216,545 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 7,874,693 Liberty Global Class C Shares, 1,347,168 LiLAC Class A Shares and 3,300,726 LiLAC Class C Shares.

Under the Second Dual Share Alternative, CWC shareholders will be entitled to receive, for each CWC Share:

» anumber of Liberty Global Class A Shares as determined by a certain alternative exchange ratio, such number not to be lower than 0.004601 and
not to exceed 0.005716;
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» anumber of Liberty Global Class C Shares as determined by a certain alternative exchange ratio, such number not to be lower than 0.011265 and
not to exceed 0.013993;

e 0.002343 LiLAC Class A Shares; and
e 0.005739 LiLAC Class C Shares.

The alternative exchange ratio will be calculated by reference to certain weighted average prices of the Liberty Global Class A Shares and the Liberty
Global Class C Shares (to be based on the relative proportion of each type of share to be included in the Recommended Offer and the Dual Share
Alternatives). Assuming no valid elections were made for the LiLAC Alternative, if the alternative exchange ratio were calculated as of [DATE] (being the
latest practicable date prior to the filing of this proxy statement), CWC shareholders would be entitled to [e] Liberty Global Class A Shares and [e] Liberty
Global Class C Shares for each CWC share held. The maximum number of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares that Liberty Global will
issue under the Second Dual Share Alternative is 5,615,171 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 13,746,973 Liberty Global Class C Shares, 2,301,356 LiLAC
Class A Shares and 5,638,602 LiLLAC Class C Shares.

CHLLC (an entity controlled by Mr. Malone), which holds approximately 13% of the CWC Shares, has irrevocably undertaken to elect to receive the
First Dual Share Alternative. CVBI Holdings (Barbados) Inc. and Clearwater Holdings (Barbados) Limited (each controlled by Mr. Risley), and Mr. Paddick,
who, taken together, hold approximately 22% of the CWC Shares, have irrevocably undertaken to elect for the Second Dual Share Alternative.

If valid elections for the LiLAC Alternative are made, the entitlement to receive LILAC A&C Shares under the Dual Share Alternatives will be scaled
down as nearly as reasonably practicable pro rata to the size of such elections for the LiLAC Alternative and the size of elections made for either of the Dual
Share Alternatives, such that those CWC shareholders electing for the Dual Share Alternatives would receive fewer LILAC A&C Shares and a greater
number of Liberty Global A&C Shares, by reference to the LILAC exchange ratio. The LiLAC Alternative will not be available to shareholders who elect for
the First Dual Share Alternative or the Second Dual Share Alternative.

If valid elections for the First Dual Share Alternative are made by CWC shareholders holding more than 13% of the CWC Shares, the entitlement to
receive Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares under the First Dual Share Alternative will be scaled down as nearly as reasonably practicable
pro rata to the holdings of CWC Shares of the CWC shareholders who make such elections and any such amounts so scaled down will be replaced by pro rata
entitlements to Liberty Global A&C Shares under the Recommended Offer (excluding the LiLAC Alternative).

If valid elections for the Second Dual Share Alternative are made from CWC shareholders holding more than 22% of the CWC Shares, the entitlement
to receive Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares under the Second Dual Share Alternative will be scaled down as nearly as reasonably
practicable pro rata to the holdings of CWC Shares of the CWC shareholders who make such elections and any such amounts so scaled down will be replaced
by pro rata entitlements to Liberty Global A&C Shares under the Recommended Offer (excluding the LiLAC Alternative).

CWC shareholders who make a valid election for the LiLAC Alternative or either of the Dual Share Alternatives (whether prior to or following the
time of calculation of the exchange ratios) will not know the exact number of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares they will receive pursuant
to the Acquisition until settlement of the consideration for the Acquisition, although an announcement will be made of the approximate extent to which
elections under the LiLAC Alternative and the Dual Share Alternatives will be satisfied.

The exchange ratio and the alternative exchange ratio will be calculated and fixed upon the earlier to occur of (a) the business day falling seven days
prior to the date of the CWC court meeting (or, in the event that such
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date is not a business day, the business day immediately preceding such date) and (b) if, during the period between 18 December 2015 and the business day
falling seven days prior to the CWC court meeting (or, in the event that such date is not a business day, the business day immediately preceding such date),

there exists a period of 10 consecutive business days during which the volume weighted average price of a CWC Share on each such business day equals or
exceeds 87.00 pence, the business day that immediately follows such 10-business day period.

Attribution of CWC to the LiLAC Group

Following completion of the Acquisition, Liberty Global will attribute CWC to the LiLAC Group, with the Liberty Global Group being granted an
inter-group interest in the LiLAC Group. Based on the fully-diluted numbers of Liberty Global Shares, LILAC Shares and CWC Shares outstanding on the
Announcement Date, after giving effect to the Acquisition and the LiLAC Attribution, and treating the Liberty Global Group’s inter-group interest in the
LiLAC Group as being represented by additional LiLAC Shares:

*  CWC shareholders will own approximately 11% of the total number of Liberty Global A&C Shares;
+  CWC shareholders will own approximately 7.21% of the total number of LiLAC Shares;
+  Existing LILAC Group shareholders will own approximately 25.44% of the total number of LiLAC Shares; and

»  The remaining approximately 67.35% of the total number of LiLAC Shares will be represented by the inter-group interest in favor of the Liberty
Global Group.

Solely for the purposes of this presentation, the Liberty Global Group’s inter-group interest in the LiLAC Group is being treated as represented by
additional LiLAC Shares although no LiLAC Shares will in fact be issued in respect of this inter-group interest. Such inter-group interest will be a notional
interest and represent an economic interest which will not be represented by any outstanding shares or securities of Liberty Global.

The amount of the Liberty Global Group’s inter-group interest in the LiLAC Group will be subject to adjustment from time to time, as our board of
directors deems fair and equitable to all holders of our ordinary shares, to reflect changes in the economic interest that the Liberty Global Group is treated as
holding in the LiLAC Group. For example, whenever we pay a dividend or make any other distribution on the LILAC Shares, redesignate any LiLAC Shares
as Liberty Global Shares, or take any other action with respect to the LILAC Shares, we will take into account the inter-group interest that the Liberty Global
Group holds in the LiLAC Group in such manner as our board of directors deems fair and equitable to all holders of our ordinary shares. This could include,
for example, allocating a portion of any cash dividend that might otherwise be paid on the LiLAC Shares to the Liberty Global Group. It could also include
retaining an interest for the Liberty Global Group in connection with a distribution of shares in a subsidiary of the LiLAC Group that holds assets and
businesses attributed to the LiLAC Group to holders of LiLAC Shares.

CWC US Carve-Out / FCC Regulatory Approval

To enable completion of the Acquisition as soon as possible, the submarine cable landing license(s) and international Section 214 authorization(s)
issued by the US Federal Communications Commission (which we refer to as the FCC) and held by subsidiaries of CWC (which we refer to as the FCC
licenses), and related contracts, business and other assets (which collectively we refer to as the CWC FCC business) were transferred out of CWC pursuant to
the arrangements described in this section (which we refer to as the CWC US Carve-Out).

The CWC FCC business was transferred into a newly incorporated CWC subsidiary (which we refer to as Newco) which was transferred to a special
purpose vehicle (which we refer to as New Holdco) owned by certain CWC shareholders collectively holding a majority of the CWC Shares (which we refer
to as the New Holdco
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Shareholders), including CHLLC, Clearwater Holdings (Barbados) Limited, CVBI Holdings (Barbados) Inc., certain directors and executive officers of
CWOC, and certain institutional shareholders of CWC. Because the New Holdco Shareholders also held the majority of the CWC Shares, the transfer did not
result in a change of control of the CWC FCC business.

With effect from completion of the transfer of Newco to New Holdco, Newco has outsourced most day-to-day management functions in respect of the
CWC FCC business to certain subsidiaries of CWC pursuant to a management services agreement. However, the New Holdco Shareholders continue to
exercise control over New Holdco and its operations.

Upon receipt of the FCC’s consent to the transfer of control of the CWC FCC licenses to Liberty Global (which we refer to as the FCC Regulatory
Approval), Newco will be transferred back to CWC (or the combined Liberty Global and CWC group in the event the FCC Regulatory Approval is obtained
after completion of the Acquisition).

The CWC US Carve-Out is based on a similar structure to the carve-out of FCC licenses (which we refer to as the Columbus FCC licenses) held by
Columbus, and related contracts, business and other assets, which were transferred out of the Columbus group in connection with the Columbus Acquisition
(which we refer to as the Columbus US Carve-Out).

The CWC US Carve-Out and the Columbus US Carve-Out are expected to remain in effect through closing of the Acquisition. The FCC Regulatory
Approval would be required to close the Acquisition in the event that the CWC US Carve-Out or the Columbus US Carve-Out were not to remain in effect at
the time of the closing such that the FCC Licenses and the Columbus FCC licenses were no longer held by entities outside the CWC group.

Conditions to the Acquisition

The Acquisition is subject to the satisfaction or (where applicable) waiver of certain conditions, which are listed in Appendix I to the Rule 2.7
Announcement. Certain conditions relate to actions that Liberty Global must take, including:

»  Liberty Global obtaining approval from the Liberty Global shareholders of the Share Issuance Proposal;
» Liberty Global obtaining approval from the Liberty Global shareholders of the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal;

» approval for listing on NASDAQ of the Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued to CWC shareholders as consideration
for the Acquisition and, if the Acquisition is implemented by way of an Offer, a registration statement having been declared effective by the SEC
(or there must be an available exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act); and

+  prior to the CWC general meeting, Liberty Global producing the Prospectus, and the Prospectus being approved by the UKLA and being made
available to the public by being published on a website in accordance with applicable law.

Certain conditions relating to the approval and effectiveness of the Scheme of Arrangement must also be satisfied, such as:

+ the approval of the Scheme of Arrangement by a majority in number representing not less than 75 percent of the voting rights of the holders of
the CWC Shares, present and voting, either in person or by proxy, at the CWC court meeting;

» the approval of a special resolution required to approve and implement the Scheme of Arrangement by the requisite majority of CWC
shareholders at the CWC general meeting;

» the sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement by the High Court; and

*  the Scheme of Arrangement becoming effective in accordance with its terms on delivery of the order of the High Court to the Registrar of
Companies in England and Wales no later than the long stop date.
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The completion of the Acquisition is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain competition law and regulatory conditions, including (i) the FCC
condition and (ii) to the extent required by law or regulation under the respective jurisdiction, certain approvals and clearances from governmental and
regulatory authorities in the Bahamas, Barbados, Jamaica, Trinidad and Tobago, and the Cayman Islands.

Other than in relation to competition law and regulatory approvals referred to in the immediately preceding paragraph, other regulatory conditions to
the Acquisition include that: (i) no governmental or regulatory authority or association or professional body has threatened or instituted any action,
investigation, or proceeding that might reasonably be expected to materially and adversely prevent, delay, or interfere with the Acquisition or create certain
additional obligations with respect to the Acquisition; and (ii) all material filings, applications, and/or notifications in connection with the Acquisition have
been made, all statutory and regulatory obligations have been complied with, and all relevant material authorizations have been received.

Certain conditions relate to actions CWC may not take that would be material to CWC or the Acquisition, including, except as previously disclosed by
CWC: (i) the entering into or implementing or authorizing acquisitions or dispositions of assets or shares; (ii) issuing additional CWC shares of any class, or
(iii) entering into contracts outside the ordinary course of business or the taking of other significant actions that would require the Panel’s approval or frustrate
the Acquisition.

Certain conditions relate to CWC’s business and the condition of CWC generally. The Acquisition is conditioned on, except as previously disclosed by
CWC, the absence of a material adverse change or deterioration in the business of CWC and the absence of certain other liabilities, litigation, or changes in
regulatory status which would be material to CWC. Additionally, the Acquisition is conditioned on the fact that Liberty Global has not discovered certain
liabilities of CWC, except as previously disclosed by CWC or to the extent such liabilities are not material to CWC, including that information previously
disclosed by CWC is misleading or contains a misrepresentation or that CWC or one of its subsidiaries has failed to abide by certain environmental
regulations or standards. The Acquisition is also conditioned on the fact that Liberty Global has not discovered that certain of CWC’s directors or employees
or CWC or one of its subsidiaries have violated laws related to anti-corruption, bribery, international sanctions, and criminal property.

Under the Takeover Code, we generally may invoke a condition to the Acquisition to cause the Acquisition not to proceed only if the Panel is satisfied
that the circumstances giving rise to that condition not being satisfied are of material significance to Liberty Global in the context of the Acquisition.

Irrevocable Undertakings Received by CWC

At CWC’s request and as a condition of CWC agreeing to the Acquisition, Mr. Malone executed and delivered to CWC an irrevocable undertaking
(subject to certain limited exceptions) to vote in favor of the proposals to be presented at the Liberty Global general meeting with respect to those Liberty
Global Shares and LiLAC Shares owned or controlled by Mr. Malone. Such Liberty Global Shares and LiLAC Shares represent approximately 24.9% of the
voting power of Liberty Global as of [DATE]. A copy of the irrevocable undertaking from Mr. Malone is attached as Annex C to this proxy statement and
incorporated herein by reference.

Irrevocable Undertakings Received by Liberty Global

Liberty Global has received irrevocable undertakings (each subject to certain limited exceptions) from CHLLC (an entity controlled by Mr. Malone),
CVBI Holdings (Barbados) Inc. and Clearwater Holdings (Barbados) Limited (entities controlled by Mr. Risley), and Mr. Paddick to vote in favor of the
Scheme of Arrangement at the CWC court meeting and the resolutions to be proposed at the CWC general meeting (or, in the event that the Acquisition is
implemented by way of an Offer, to accept the Offer) with respect to those CWC Shares owned or controlled by those CWC shareholders and to elect a
specified Dual Share Alternative. See the section of this proxy statement entitled “The Recommended Offer and the Dual Share Alternatives” beginning on
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page 39. Such CWC Shares represent approximately 35.7% of the CWC Shares issued and outstanding as of November 13, 2015. Copies of the irrevocable
undertakings from CHLLC, CVBI Holdings (Barbados) Inc., Clearwater Holdings (Barbados) Limited, and Mr. Paddick are attached as Annexes D, E, F and
G, respectively, to this proxy statement and incorporated herein by reference.

Additionally, each CWC director (other than Mr. Risley and Mr. Paddick, who gave the undertakings described above) who beneficially owns or
controls CWC Shares has irrevocably undertaken to Liberty Global to vote in favor of the Scheme of Arrangement at the CWC court meeting and the CWC
general meeting (or, in the event that the Acquisition is implemented by way of an Offer, to accept the Offer). Such CWC Shares represent approximately
0.37% of the CWC Shares issued and outstanding as of November 13, 2015.

Liberty Global has also received a non-binding letter of support from Orbis Investment Management Limited (which we refer to as Orbis), pursuant to
which Orbis confirmed its intention to vote in favor of the Scheme of Arrangement (or, in the event that the Acquisition is implemented by way of an Offer, to
accept the Offer) with respect to its approximate 9.3% ownership of the CWC Shares issued and outstanding as of November 13, 2015.

Effect of Approval of Scheme of Arrangement

Upon the Scheme of Arrangement becoming effective, it will be binding on all CWC shareholders, irrespective of whether or not they attended or voted
at the CWC court meeting and the CWC general meeting (and, if they attended and voted, whether or not they voted in favor). The consideration due pursuant
to the Acquisition (including the special dividend) will be dispatched to CWC shareholders no later than 14 days after the date on which the Scheme of
Arrangement becomes effective in accordance with its terms.

The Scheme Document will include full details of the Scheme of Arrangement, together with notices of the CWC court meeting, the CWC general
meeting, and the expected timetable for the Acquisition, and will specify the action to be taken by CWC shareholders.

Change in Acquisition Structure

Liberty Global reserves the right (with the consent of the Panel) to elect, in accordance with the Co-operation Agreement, to implement the Acquisition
by way of an Offer (followed by the Merger) as an alternative to the Scheme of Arrangement: (i) with CWC’s consent; (ii) if a third party announces a firm
intention to make an Offer for all or part of the issued and to be issued share capital of CWC; or (iii) if the directors of CWC withdraw or modify their
unanimous and unconditional recommendation of the Scheme of Arrangement.

If the acquisition of CWC is effected by way of an Offer and such Offer becomes or is declared unconditional in all respects and sufficient acceptances
are received, Liberty Global intends to: (i) apply to the London Stock Exchange and the UKLA to cancel trading in the CWC Shares on the London Stock
Exchange’s main market for listed securities and the listing of the CWC Shares from the official list maintained by the UKLA; and (ii) exercise its right to
apply the provisions of Chapter 3 of Part 28 of the Companies Act to acquire compulsorily the remaining CWC Shares in respect of which the Offer has not
been accepted.

Fractional Shares

Fractions of Liberty Global A&C Shares or LiLAC A&C Shares will not be allotted or issued to CWC shareholders. Fractional entitlements to Liberty
Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares will be aggregated and sold in the market as soon as practicable after the Scheme of Arrangement becomes
effective and the net proceeds of such sale will be distributed in cash pro rata to persons entitled thereto.

The Co-operation Agreement

The following is a summary of selected provisions of the Co-operation Agreement. While we believe this description covers the material terms of the
Co-operation Agreement, it may not contain all of the information
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that is important to you and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Co-operation Agreement which is attached as Annex B to this proxy statement. We
urge you to read the Co-operation Agreement carefully and in its entirety.

Regulatory Undertakings

Under the Co-operation Agreement, among other things, Liberty Global has agreed to provide reasonable co-operation to CWC and its advisers, and to
use its reasonable efforts, to satisfy the regulatory and other clearances necessary for the Acquisition as promptly as possible following the date of the Co-
operation Agreement and, in any event, by the long stop date and, in the case of the regulatory conditions, by the regulatory long stop date. Liberty Global has
agreed to be responsible for contacting and corresponding with the relevant authorities in relation to the obtaining of any clearance for which Liberty Global,
alone or jointly with CWC, is required to apply. For these purposes Liberty Global has agreed to submit any required filing, notification or submission (alone
or, if applicable, with CWC jointly) to the relevant authorities within any applicable mandatory time period so as to obtain the clearances necessary for the
Acquisition. CWC has agreed to be responsible for contacting and corresponding with relevant authorities in relation to the clearances for which CWC alone
is required to apply. CWC also agreed to give the required notifications, including preparing and submitting all necessary filings, notifications and
submissions to the United States Federal Communications Commission in respect of the US Carve-Out described in the Announcement. Each of Liberty
Global and CWC has undertaken to co-operate with each other, keep each other reasonably informed and use reasonable endeavors to provide information
and assistance in relation to filings, notifications or submissions to be made in connection with implementing the Acquisition and obtaining clearances.

Termination
The Co-operation Agreement will terminate with immediate effect:
+ if termination is agreed in writing by Liberty Global and CWC;
* upon written notice by Liberty Global to CWC if:

. the Scheme Document (or the document containing the terms of any Offer, as the case may be) does not include a unanimous and
unconditional recommendation of the Scheme of Arrangement (or the Offer, as the case may be) from the board of directors of CWC
(which we refer to as the CWC board recommendation);

. the CWC board recommendation is no longer unconditional or unanimous or is withdrawn, qualified or modified at any time; or

. a third party announces a firm intention to make an offer for CWC which is recommended by the board of directors of CWC or which
completes, becomes effective or is declared or becomes unconditional in all respects;

+ upon written notice by either Liberty Global or CWC to the other party if any of the following occurs (which we refer to as a Liberty Global
adverse recommendation change):

. if Liberty Global withdraws, modifies or qualifies, without CWC’s prior written consent, the required unanimous (excluding Mr. Malone,
who did not vote on the recommendation) and unconditional recommendation of the board of directors of Liberty Global that the Liberty
Global shareholders approve the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal (which we refer to as the
Liberty Global board recommendation);

. if Liberty Global fails to include the Liberty Global board recommendation in the definitive proxy statement when it is sent to Liberty
Global shareholders (including any announcement by Liberty Global that it will not include the Liberty Global board recommendation in
such definitive proxy statement); or
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. if Liberty Global fails to convene the general meeting prior to the long stop date, provided that the SEC has advised Liberty Global in
writing at least 45 days prior to the long stop date that it has completed its review of the proxy statement;

»  if the Acquisition lapses, terminates or is withdrawn in accordance with its terms and, where required, with the permission of the Panel (other
than where such lapse or withdrawal is as a result of Liberty Global electing to implement the Acquisition by way of an Offer and the Merger); or

+  if the Scheme of Arrangement has not become effective (or, if the Acquisition is implemented by an Offer, the Offer does not become
unconditional) by the long stop date.

Break Fee

By way of compensation for any loss suffered by CWC in connection with the preparation and negotiation of the Acquisition, the Co-operation
Agreement and any other document relating to the Acquisition, we agreed in the Co-operation Agreement that, subject to certain limited exceptions, we will
pay to CWC an amount in cash equal to $50 million (exclusive of VAT, if any) (which we refer to as the break fee) in the event that, on or prior to the long
stop date, Liberty Global makes a Liberty Global adverse recommendation change and either party exercises its right to terminate the Co-operation
Agreement for such reason.

The Co-operation Agreement further provides that no break fee is to be made by Liberty Global with respect to the above arrangements if certain
circumstances giving rise to termination of that agreement have occurred or the relevant event that otherwise would have given rise to the break fee event was
caused by CWC’s breach of its obligations under the Co-operation Agreement.

Only one break fee can be paid and such break fee would be CWC'’s sole and exclusive remedy in the relevant circumstance for all losses and damages
suffered in connection with the Co-operation Agreement and the transactions contemplated by it, other than in the case of fraud.

Change in Acquisition Structure

The Co-operation Agreement records Liberty Global’s and CWC'’s intention to implement the Acquisition by way of the Scheme of Arrangement,
subject to the ability of Liberty Global to implement the Acquisition by way of an Offer (followed by a Merger) (with the consent of the Panel) as an
alternative to the Scheme of Arrangement: (i) with CWC’s consent; (ii) if a third party announces a firm intention to make an Offer for all or part of the issued
and to be issued share capital of CWC; or (iii) if the CWC directors withdraw or modify their unanimous and unconditional recommendation of the Scheme
of Arrangement. In such an event an Offer will be implemented on the same terms (subject to agreed or necessary amendments and to the terms of the Co-
operation Agreement), so far as applicable, as those which would apply to the Scheme of Arrangement.

Interim Operations

During the period until the Scheme of Arrangement becomes effective (or the Offer becomes unconditional, as the case may be), Liberty Global agreed
not to do any of the following, in each case, where doing so would reasonably be expected to have a material and adverse impact on the value of, or, as
applicable, rights attaching to, the ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (or the Offer, as the context requires):

» authorize, declare or pay dividends (or any form of return of capital) with respect to Liberty Global’s ordinary shares;
» undertake any bonus issue of its shares or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for any shares;
»  consolidate, sub-divide or reclassify any of its shares;

» undertake any other form of capital reorganization not referred to above;
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» amend its constitutional documents; or

+  de-list the Liberty Global Class A Shares, Liberty Global Class C Shares, LiLAC Class A Shares or LiLAC Class C Shares from NASDAQ.

Liberty Global may grant options or awards pursuant to Liberty Global’s employee incentive plans and allot and issue Liberty Global’s ordinary shares
to satisfy any such options or awards up to the extent necessary to satisfy any such options or awards vesting or due to be settled. Liberty Global may also
redesignate or otherwise convert any LiLAC Shares and consolidate, redesignate or subdivide any Liberty Global Shares, or capitalize any of Liberty Global’s
reserves, to achieve such redesignation or conversion of LiLAC Shares, as permitted in Liberty Global’s articles of association, provided that the
consideration is adjusted accordingly, following reasonable consultation with CWC, and the Panel approves the adjustment of the consideration. Liberty
Global may also acquire or cancel any of its shares or rights to such shares, including in accordance with any buyback program operated by Liberty Global,
and do anything reasonably necessary to implement the Acquisition.

CWC Employee Arrangements

The Co-operation Agreement contains provisions that will apply in respect of certain employee-related matters. Under the Co-operation Agreement,
Liberty Global and CWC have agreed that the timetable for the Scheme of Arrangement’s implementation shall be fixed so as to enable options and awards
under the relevant CWC Share Plans which provide for exercise and/or vesting upon the sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement by the High Court to be
exercised or vest in sufficient time to enable the resulting CWC Shares to be bound by the Scheme of Arrangement and to receive the special dividend on the
same terms as other CWC shareholders. The options and awards are under the 2011 Performance Share Plan, the Restricted Share Plan 2010, the 2011
Deferred Bonus Plan, the Columbus Equity Incentive Plan and the All-Employee Share Purchase Plan (the “CWC Share Plans™).

Other Company Covenants and Agreements

Under the Co-operation Agreement, Liberty Global agreed to take certain actions with regard to receipt of the requisite approval from Liberty Global’s
shareholders in connection with the Acquisition. Liberty Global agreed to use reasonable endeavors to have this proxy statement cleared by the SEC promptly
and in any event within 90 days of November 16, 2015, and to cause the Liberty Global general meeting to be duly called and held no later than 30 days after
the mailing of the definitive proxy statement to shareholders. In connection with the shareholders’ meeting, Liberty Global must use reasonable endeavors to
solicit proxies from Liberty Global’s shareholders in favor of the approval of the shareholder resolutions of Liberty Global necessary to enable Liberty Global
to implement the Acquisition, including the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal (which we refer to as the Liberty
Global Resolutions). Additionally, Liberty Global’s board of directors must unanimously (subject to certain exceptions discussed below) and unconditionally
recommend the approval of the Liberty Global Resolutions in this proxy statement. If the Liberty Global Resolutions are approved, subject to certain other
conditions set forth in the Co-operation Agreement, Liberty Global must cause the Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued to CWC
shareholders as consideration for the Acquisition to be: (i) approved for listing on NASDAQ, (ii) issued in reliance on the exemption provided by Section 3(a)
(10) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the exemptions from registration or qualification under all relevant state “blue sky” or securities laws, and
(iii) be credited as fully paid and ranked pari passu with each other and all other Liberty Global A&C Shares or LILAC A&C Shares of the relevant class
issued and outstanding (except as expressly provided in the Rule 2.7 Announcement or as otherwise agreed by the parties).

Liberty Global’s board of directors may make a Liberty Global adverse recommendation change only if the members of the board of directors of
Liberty Global determine in good faith, following consultation with external legal counsel and Liberty Global’s financial adviser, that the failure to take such
action would breach, or reasonably be regarded as breaching, their fiduciary duties as directors under applicable law.
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Governing Law

The Co-operation Agreement is governed by English law and any matter, claim or dispute arising out of or in connection with the Co-operation
Agreement, whether contractual or non-contractual, will be governed by and determined in accordance with English law. Liberty Global and CWC agreed
that the courts of England and Wales would have exclusive jurisdiction over any dispute arising out of or in connection with the Co-operation Agreement.

No Dissenters’ Rights

None of our shareholders will be entitled to exercise dissenters’ rights or to demand payment for their Liberty Global Shares or LiLAC Shares in
connection with the Acquisition.

Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences

Our shareholders are not participating in the Acquisition through an exchange of their Liberty Global Shares or LiLAC Shares or otherwise and,
therefore, there are no tax consequences to our shareholders. As evidenced by the Rule 2.7 Announcement and the Co-operation Agreement, the Scheme of
Arrangement followed by the Merger (or the Offer followed by the Merger) is intended to constitute a single, integrated transaction that qualifies as a
reorganization for US federal income tax purposes, with the exchange by CWC shareholders of CWC Shares for Liberty Global A&C Shares and/or LiLAC
A&C Shares being eligible for nonrecognition treatment under applicable US federal income tax rules, except for any cash amounts received in connection
with the Acquisition such as cash in lieu of fractional Liberty Global A&C Shares and/or LiLAC A&C Shares and the special dividend payable by CWC.

Material United Kingdom Tax Consequences

Our shareholders are not participating in the Acquisition through an exchange of their Liberty Global Shares or LiLAC Shares or otherwise and,
therefore, there are no UK tax consequences to our shareholders. It is expected that CWC shareholders who are subject to UK tax will generally not be
taxable in the UK in respect of consideration provided to them in the form of Liberty Global A&C Shares and/or LiLAC A&C Shares, except for any cash
amounts received in connection with the Acquisition such as cash in lieu of fractional Liberty Global A&C Shares and/or LILAC A&C Shares and the special
dividend payable by CWC.

Accounting Treatment

The Acquisition will be accounted for as the acquisition of CWC by Liberty Global. Accordingly, Liberty Global will apply the acquisition method of
accounting whereby the total purchase price will be allocated to the identifiable net assets of CWC based on assessments of their fair values as of the date of
the completion of the Acquisition and the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of these identifiable net assets will be allocated to goodwill. The
financial condition and results of operations of Liberty Global reported after completion of the Acquisition will include CWC’s balances and results from the
acquisition date forward, but will not be restated to reflect the historical financial position or results of operations of CWC. Following the completion of the
Acquisition, the results of operations of the consolidated group will reflect the CWC acquisition accounting adjustments, including, among other items,
increased amortization of finite-lived intangible assets.

Regulatory Matters
General

The completion of the Acquisition is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain competition law and regulatory conditions, including (i) the FCC
condition and (ii) to the extent required by law or regulation under
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the respective jurisdiction, certain approvals and clearances from governmental and regulatory authorities in the Bahamas, Barbados, Jamaica, Trinidad and
Tobago, and the Cayman Islands. Although we expect that all required regulatory clearances and approvals will be obtained, we cannot assure you that these
regulatory clearances and approvals will be obtained in a timely manner or at all, or that the granting of these regulatory clearances and approvals will not
involve the imposition of additional conditions on the completion of the Acquisition, including the requirement to divest assets.

FCC Regulatory Approval Matters

The Acquisition is conditional on the CWC US Carve-Out and Columbus US Carve-Out remaining in effect or the FCC Regulatory Approval having
been obtained. See the section of this proxy statement entitled “CWC US Carve-Out / FCC Regulatory Approval” beginning on page 42.

Certain Regulatory Approval Matters

To the extent required by law or regulation, certain applications or notifications must be made or complied with and certain regulatory authorities must
approve the Acquisition. Accordingly, the necessary actions to make the Scheme of Arrangement effective will not be taken unless the following clearances
and approvals have been satisfied (where capable of satisfaction) and continue to be satisfied pending the commencement of the Scheme Court Hearing or,
where relevant, waived:

* Bahamas Utilities Regulation and Competition Authority clearance;

*  Barbados Minister of Telecommunications and Fair Trading Commission clearance;

+ Jamaica Minister for Science, Technology, Energy and Mining and the Jamaica Broadcasting Commission clearance;
* Trinidad and Tobago Telecommunications Authority clearance; and

+  Cayman Islands Information and Communications Technology Authority clearance.

For a detailed description of these clearances and approvals, see “Appendix I to Annex A—Rule 2.7 Announcement”.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA OF LIBERTY GLOBAL

The following tables set forth Liberty Global’s selected consolidated historical financial data for the periods indicated. The consolidated summary
statement of operations data for the nine months ended September 30, 2015, and the consolidated summary balance sheet data as of September 30, 2015, are
derived from Liberty Global’s unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements incorporated by reference in this proxy statement. The consolidated
summary statement of operations data for each of the three years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 and the consolidated summary balance sheet data
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are derived from Liberty Global’s audited consolidated financial statements incorporated by reference in this proxy
statement. The consolidated summary statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2012 and the consolidated summary balance
sheet data as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are derived from Liberty Global’s audited historical consolidated financial statements, which are not
included or incorporated by reference in this proxy statement.

You should read this information together with (i) the information contained in the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and in the condensed consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Liberty Global’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the nine months ended September 30, 2015, which is incorporated by reference in this proxy statement, and (ii) the
information contained in the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and in the
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Liberty Global’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, which
is incorporated by reference in this proxy statement. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of future results.

September 30, December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
in millions

Summary Balance Sheet Data (a):
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Total assets
Debt and capital lease obligations, including current portion
Total equity

22,256.4 $23,840.6 $23,974.9 $13,437.6 $12,868.4 $ 11,112.3
27,693.3 $29,001.6 $23,748.8 $13,877.6 $13,289.3 $ 11,734.7
69,552.8 $72,841.9 $67,714.3 $ 38,307.7 $ 36,409.2 $ 33,328.8
47,056.7 $46,159.0 $44,704.3 $27,524.5 $24,757.9 $ 22,462.6
11,640.9 $14,116.0 $11,541.5 $ 2,085.1 $ 29314 $ 34577

@ ALl

Nine months ended
September 30, Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
in millions, except per share amounts

Summary Statement of Operations Data (a):

Revenue $13,680.8 $13,633.1 $18,248.3 $14,4742 $9,930.8 $9,118.3 $ 7,995.2
Operating income $ 1,7279 $ 1,9549 $ 22282 $ 2,012.1 $1,983.1 $1,8229 $ 1,443.9
Loss from continuing operations (b) $ (791.00 $ (4783) $ (980.9) $ (882.0) $ (583.9) $ (801.5) $ (977.3)

Loss from continuing operations attributable to Liberty Global shareholders $ (868.9) $ (171.6) $ (1,028.5) $ (937.6) $ (623.7) $ (841.0) $ (889.8)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) from continuing operations attributable to
Liberty Global shareholders per share:

Liberty Global Shares (c) $ 0.12
LiLAC Shares (c) $ 0.69
Old Liberty Global Shares (d) $ (@13) $ (@064 $ (129 $ (139 $ (117) $ (159 $ (1.93)

(a) We acquired Ziggo Group Holding B.V. on November 11, 2014, Virgin Media Inc. on June 7, 2013, San Juan Cable, LL.C (doing business as OneLink Communications)
on November 8, 2012, Kabel BW GmbH on December 15, 2011, Aster Marketing Sp. z 0.0 on September 16, 2011 and Unitymedia Kabel BW GmbH on January 28,
2010. We also
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completed a number of less significant acquisitions during the years presented. We completed the sale of substantially all of Chellomedia B.V.’s assets (which we refer to
as the Chellomedia Disposal Group) on January 31, 2014, Austar United Communications Limited on May 23, 2012 and the ownership interests in three of subsidiaries
that directly or indirectly held Liberty Global, Inc.’s ownership interests in Jupiter Telecommunications Co., Ltd. (which we refer to as the J:COM Disposal Group) on
February 18, 2010. Accordingly, our summary statement of operations data presents the Chellomedia Disposal Group, Austar United Communications Limited and the
J:COM Disposal Group as discontinued operations during the applicable periods.

(b) Includes earnings from continuing operations attributable to noncontrolling interests of $77.9 million, $26.8 million, $47.6 million, $55.6 million, $39.8 million, $39.5
million and $87.5 million, respectively.

(c) The amounts presented for the 2015 nine-month period relate to the period from July 1, 2015 through September 30, 2015.

(d) The amount presented for the 2015 nine-month period relates to the period from January 1, 2015 through June 30, 2015.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA OF CWC

The following tables set forth CWC'’s selected consolidated historical financial data for the periods indicated. The consolidated income statement data
for the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, and the consolidated balance sheet data as of September 30, 2015, are derived from the CWC Interim
Financial Statements included elsewhere in this proxy statement. The consolidated income statement data for each of the three years ended March 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 are derived from the CWC Annual Financial Statements included
elsewhere in this proxy statement. The consolidated income statement data for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 and the consolidated balance
sheet data as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are derived from CWC’s historical consolidated financial statements, which are not included in this proxy
statement. All of the financial data has been derived from unaudited consolidated financial statements, except for the financial data as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2015, which has been derived from audited consolidated financial statements.

The information set forth below is only a summary that you should read together with the CWC Interim Financial Statements, the CWC Annual
Financial Statements and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of CWC, each as included elsewhere in
this proxy statement.

Six months ended
September 30, Year ended March 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
in millions, except per share amounts

Summary Consolidated Income Statement Data:

Revenue $ 1,179 $ 848 $ 1,753 $ 1,689 $ 1,750 $ 1,807 $1,458
Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing operations $ (@0 $ 103 $ (33 $ (1300 $ (@49 $ (160) $ 109
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the owners of the Parent
Company:
Total Group:
Basic $(0.013)  $0.160 $ 0.097 $ 0.343 $ 0.004 $(0.031) $0.076
Diluted $(0.013) $0.159 $ 0.097 $ 0343 $ 0.004  $(0.031) $0.075
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations per share $(0.013) $0.019  $(0.038) $(0.084) $(0.052) $(0.078) $0.015
September 30, March 31,
2015 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
in millions

Summary Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Property, plant and equipment $ 2,610 $2,587 $1,418 $1,367 $1,786 $1,757
Intangible assets $ 3,014 $2,965 $ 526 $ 485 $ 528 $ 433
Total assets $ 6,943 $7,067 $3,158 $3,670 $3,757 $3,647
Total debt, including current portion $ 2,983 $2,768 $ 855 $1,803 $1,707 $1,373
Net assets $ 1,264 $1,476 $ 839 $ 252 $ 416 $ 811
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Dividends

The table below sets forth the cash dividends declared and paid on each CWC Share in each period indicated.

Cash dividends per
Year share
Six months ended September 30, 2015 $ 0.0267
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 $ 0.0400
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 $ 0.0400
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 $ 0.0666
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 $ 0.0800
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 $ 0.0764
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PROPOSAL NO. 1—SHARE ISSUANCE PROPOSAL

Proposal

We are asking you to approve the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiILAC A&C Shares to CWC shareholders in connection with the
Acquisition by Liberty Global on the terms described in this proxy statement and the Rule 2.7 Announcement (together with such modifications as the board
of directors of Liberty Global may in its absolute discretion think fit).

We are seeking shareholder approval of the Share Issuance Proposal pursuant to Rule 5635(a)(2) of the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules, which requires
shareholder approval prior to the issuance of common stock in connection with the acquisition of the stock or assets of another company if any director,
officer or substantial shareholder (which means any shareholder owning 5% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock or voting power of the
issuing company) has a 5% or greater interest in the company or assets to be acquired or in the consideration to be paid in the transaction and the potential
issuance of common stock could result in an increase in outstanding common shares or voting power of 5% or more. The Liberty Global A&C Shares and
LiLAC A&C Shares to be issued to shareholders of CWC as consideration for the Acquisition will result in an increase in Liberty Global’s outstanding
ordinary shares in excess of 5% and will include the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to CHLLC, an entity that owns
approximately 13% of the CWC Shares and is controlled by Mr. Malone, the chairman of the board of directors of Liberty Global and owner of shares
representing approximately 24.9% of Liberty Global’s voting power. Therefore, under Rule 5635(a)(2) of the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules, shareholder
approval of the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares as consideration for the Acquisition is required.

Required Shareholder Vote and Recommendation of Liberty Global’s Board of Directors
In accordance with Rule 5635(e)(4) of the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules, the affirmative vote of a simple majority of the votes cast by the holders of
our voting shares (voting together as a single class) is required to approve the Share Issuance Proposal.

Abstentions, although counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum, will not be treated as votes cast at the general meeting and
accordingly will not be taken into account in determining the outcome of the Share Issuance Proposal. If you are a holder of record, the failure to submit a
signed proxy card, grant a proxy electronically via the internet or to vote in person by ballot at the general meeting, or, if you hold your shares in “street
name”, the failure to instruct your broker, bank, or other nominee on how to vote your shares, which we refer to as broker non-votes, will have no effect on
the outcome of the votes for the Share Issuance Proposal.

The approval of the Share Issuance Proposal by the requisite vote of Liberty Global shareholders is required for us to issue Liberty Global A&C Shares
and LiLAC A&C Shares to CWC shareholders as consideration for the Acquisition, and it is a condition to the completion of the Acquisition.

Our board of directors unanimously (excluding Mr. Malone, who recused himself from all deliberations and voting on such matters) recommends that
you vote “FOR” the Share Issuance Proposal.

Amount and Title of Securities to be Issued; Use of Proceeds
If the Share Issuance Proposal is approved, as consideration for the Acquisition we expect to issue to CWC shareholders up to, in the aggregate:
* 31,651,616 Liberty Global Class A Shares;
+ 77,488,978 Liberty Global Class C Shares;
e 3,648,524 LiLAC Class A Shares; and
e 8,939,328 LiLAC Class C Shares.
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The actual value received by each CWC shareholder for its CWC Shares will depend upon whether such shareholder elects for the Recommended
Offer, the LILAC Alternative or one of the Dual Share Alternatives, each of which is described in the section of this proxy statement entitled “The
Recommended Offer and the Dual Share Alternatives”, as well as on the elections made by other CWC shareholders (see page 39).

Holders of Liberty Global Shares or LiLAC Shares have no conversion, preemptive or other subscription rights with respect to such shares.

Co-operation Agreement

For a detailed description of the Co-operation Agreement in connection with the Acquisition, see the section of this proxy statement entitled
“Information About the CWC Acquisition—The Co-operation Agreement” beginning on page 45.

Interests of Liberty Global’s Executive Officers and Directors in the Acquisition or Share Issuance

Other than as described below in the sections entitled “Proposal No. 1—Share Issuance Proposal” beginning on page 55 and “Proposal No. 2—
Substantial Property Transaction Proposal” beginning on page 57, none of Liberty Global’s directors or executive officers has any substantial financial
interest, direct or indirect, in the Acquisition or the issuance of Liberty Global A&C Shares and LiLAC A&C Shares to CWC shareholders as consideration
for the Acquisition, other than being a director or executive officer and a shareholder of Liberty Global.

Impact of the Share Issuance on Liberty Global’s Existing Shareholders

If approved and implemented, the Share Issuance Proposal will dilute the ownership and voting interests of our existing shareholders. It is expected that
as consideration for the Acquisition up to 31,651,616 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 77,488,978 Liberty Global Class C Shares, 3,648,524 LiLAC Class A
Shares and 8,939,328 LiLAC Class C Shares will be issued to CWC shareholders, and that, upon completion of the Acquisition, based on the fully-diluted
number of CWC Shares, Liberty Global Shares and LiLAC Shares outstanding on the Announcement Date (the latest practicable date prior to the date of this
proxy statement), CWC shareholders will, after giving effect to the Acquisition and the LiLAC Attribution, and treating the Liberty Global Group’s inter-
group interest in the LiLAC Group as being represented by additional LiLAC Shares, hold approximately 11%, 11%, 7%, and 7% of the total number of
Liberty Global Class A Shares, Liberty Global Class C Shares, LiLAC Class A Shares and LiLAC Class C Shares, respectively.
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PROPOSAL NO. 2—SUBSTANTIAL PROPERTY TRANSACTION PROPOSAL

Proposal

We are asking you to approve the acquisition by Liberty Global of CWC Shares held by CHLLC, an entity that owns approximately 13% of the CWC
Shares and is controlled by Mr. Malone, the chairman of the board of directors of Liberty Global.

We are seeking shareholder approval of the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal pursuant to Section 190 of the Companies Act, which requires
shareholder approval for any arrangement in which Liberty Global is to acquire from a director a substantial non-cash asset (which means any substantial
asset in relation to a company if its value exceeds 10% of the company’s asset value and is more than £5,000 or its value exceeds £100,000). In the
Acquisition, Liberty Global will be acquiring the CWC Shares held by CHLLC, which represent approximately 13% of the CWC Shares. Because these
CWC Shares comprise a substantial non-cash asset and CHLLC is controlled by Mr. Malone, the chairman of the board of directors of Liberty Global, such
acquisition of CWC Shares from CHLLC constitutes a substantial property transaction pursuant to the Companies Act, and therefore the Companies Act
requires shareholder approval of such substantial property transaction before it can be completed.

Required Shareholder Vote and Recommendation of Liberty Global’s Board of Directors

The affirmative vote of a simple majority of the votes cast by the holders of our voting shares (voting together as a single class) is required to approve
the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal.

Abstentions, although counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum, will not be treated as votes cast at the general meeting and
accordingly will not be taken into account in determining the outcome of the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal. If you are a holder of record, the
failure to submit a signed proxy card, grant a proxy electronically via the internet or to vote in person by ballot at the general meeting, or, if you hold your
shares in “street name”, the failure to instruct your broker, bank, or other nominee on how to vote your shares, which we refer to as broker non-votes, will
have no effect on the outcome of the votes for the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal.

The approval of the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal by the requisite vote of Liberty Global shareholders is required for us to acquire the
CWC Shares as part of the Acquisition, and it is a condition to the completion of the Acquisition under the Rule 2.7 Announcement.

Our board of directors unanimously (excluding Mr. Malone, who recused himself from all deliberations and voting on such matters) recommends that
you vote “FOR?” the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal.

Page 57



Table of Contents

PROPOSAL NO. 3—ADJOURNMENT PROPOSAL

Proposal

We are asking you to approve a proposal to adjourn the general meeting for a period of not more than 10 business days, if necessary or appropriate, to
solicit additional proxies in the event there are insufficient votes at the time of such adjournment to approve the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial
Property Transaction Proposal.

If our shareholders approve the Adjournment Proposal, we could adjourn the general meeting and any adjourned session of the general meeting for a
period of not more than 10 business days to solicit additional proxies, including the solicitation of proxies from shareholders that have previously returned
properly executed proxies voting against the approval of the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal. Among other things,
approval of the Adjournment Proposal could mean that, even if we had received proxies representing a sufficient number of votes against approval of the
Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction Proposal such that the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction
Proposal would be defeated, we could adjourn the general meeting without a vote on the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property Transaction
Proposal and seek to convince the holders of those shares to change their votes to votes in favor of the Share Issuance Proposal and the Substantial Property
Transaction Proposal.

Required Shareholder Vote and Recommendation of Liberty Global’s Board of Directors

The affirmative vote of a simple majority of the votes cast by the holders of our voting shares (voting together as a single class) is required to approve
the Adjournment Proposal.

Abstentions, although counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum, will not be treated as votes cast at the general meeting and
accordingly will not be taken into account in determining the outcome of the Adjournment Proposal. If you are a holder of record, the failure to submit a
signed proxy card, grant a proxy electronically via the internet or to vote in person by ballot at the general meeting, or, if you hold your shares in “street
name”, the failure to instruct your broker, bank, or other nominee on how to vote your shares, which we refer to as broker non-votes, will have no effect on
the outcome of the votes for the Adjournment Proposal.

Our board of directors unanimously (excluding Mr. Malone, who recused himself from all deliberations and voting on such matters) recommends that
you vote “FOR” the Adjournment Proposal.
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SHARE OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT OF LIBERTY GLOBAL

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The following table sets forth information, to the extent known by us or ascertainable from public filings, concerning our ordinary shares beneficially
owned by each person or entity known by us to own more than 5% of our outstanding Liberty Global Class A Shares, Liberty Global Class B Shares, Liberty
Global Class C Shares, LiILAC Class A Shares, LiLAC Class B Shares and LiLAC Class C Shares.

Except as otherwise indicated in the notes to the table, the security ownership information is given as of December 31, 2015, and, in the case of
percentage ownership information, is based upon (1) 252,766,455 Liberty Global Class A Shares, (2) 10,472,517 Liberty Global Class B Shares,
(3) 584,044,394 Liberty Global Class C Shares, (4) 12,630,580 LiLAC Class A Shares, (5) 523,423 LiLAC Class B Shares and (6) 30,722,874 LiLAC Class
C Shares, in each case, outstanding on that date. Beneficial ownership of our Liberty Global Class C Shares and LiLAC Class C Shares is set forth below only
to the extent known by us or ascertainable from public filings. Our Liberty Global Class C Shares and LiL AC Class C Shares are, however, non-voting and,
therefore, in the case of voting power, are not included.

Ordinary shares issuable on or within 60 days after December 31, 2015, upon exercise of options or stock appreciation rights (which we refer to as
SARs), vesting of restricted share units (which we refer to as RSUs), conversion of convertible securities or exchange of exchangeable securities, are deemed

to be outstanding and to be beneficially owned by the person holding the options, SARs, RSUs or convertible or exchangeable securities for the purpose of
computing the percentage ownership of that person, but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other
person. Also, for purposes of the following presentation, beneficial ownership of our Liberty Global Class B Shares and LiLAC Class B Shares, although
convertible on a one-for-one basis into our Liberty Global Class A Shares and LiLAC Class A Shares, respectively, is reported as beneficial ownership of our
Liberty Global Class B Shares and LiLAC Class B Shares only, and not as beneficial ownership of our Liberty Global Class A Shares or LILAC Class A
Shares, as the case may be. The percentage of voting power is presented on an aggregate basis for each person or entity named below.

Amount and Nature of Percent of Voting
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Title of Class Beneficial Ownership Class Power
John C. Malone Liberty Global Class A 1,090,480 (1)(2)(3) i 24.9%
c/o Liberty Global plc Liberty Global Class B 8,787,373 (2)(3)(4)(5) 83.9%
Griffin House Liberty Global Class C 12,055,905 (1)(2)(4)(6) 2.1%
161 Hammersmith Rd LiLAC Class A 54,523 (1)(2)(3) *
London W6 8BS LiLAC Class B 439,368 (2)(3)(4)(5) 83.9%
United Kingdom LiLAC Class C 650,694 (1)(2)(4)(6) 2.1%
Robert R. Bennett Liberty Global Class A 208 (7) = 2.7%
c/o Liberty Media Corporation Liberty Global Class B 981,873 (7) 9.4%
12300 Liberty Boulevard LiLAC Class A 10(8) e
Englewood, CO 80112 LiLAC Class B 49,093(8) 9.4%
BlackRock, Inc. Liberty Global Class A 17,214,446 (9) 6.8% 4.8%
55 East 52nd Street Liberty Global Class B — —
New York, NY 10022 LiLAC Class A 860,722(8) 6.8%
LiLAC Class B — —
Capital World Investors Liberty Global Class A 13,858,300 (10) 5.5% 3.9%
A division of Capital Research and Management
Company Liberty Global Class B — —
333 South Hope Street LiLAC Class A 692,915 (8) 5.5%

Los Angeles, CA 90071

LiLAC Class B
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Amount and Nature of Percent of Voting
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Title of Class Beneficial Ownership Class Power
FMR LLC Liberty Global Class A 14,220,601 (11) 5.6% 4.1%
245 Summer Street Liberty Global Class B — —
Boston, MA 02210 LiLAC Class A 1,283,540 (12) 10.2%
LiLAC Class B — —
New Mountain Vantage Advisers, L.L.C. Liberty Global Class A — — *
787 Seventh Avenue, 49th Floor Liberty Global Class B — —
New York, NY 10019 LiLAC Class A 715,551 (13) 5.7%
LiLAC Class B — —

O
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Less than one percent.

Based on information available to Liberty Global, including the Schedule 13D/A (Amendment No. 8) of Mr. Malone filed with the SEC on

November 19, 2015, includes (i) 90,303 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 680,041 Liberty Global Class C Shares, (ii) 4,515 LiLAC Class A Shares and
34,002 LiLAC Class C Shares held by Mr. Malone’s wife, Mrs. Leslie Malone, as to which Shares Mr. Malone disclaims beneficial ownership.

Based on information available to Liberty Global, including the Schedule 13D/A (Amendment No. 8) of Mr. Malone filed with the SEC on

November 19, 2015, includes (i) 48,000 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 110,148 Liberty Global Class B Shares, 56,444 Liberty Global Class C Shares,
(ii) 2,400 LiLAC Class A Shares, 5,507 LiLAC Class B Shares and 14,222 LiLAC Class C Shares held by two trusts managed by an independent
trustee, of which the beneficiaries are Mr. Malone’s adult children. Mr. Malone, has no pecuniary interest in these trusts, but he retains the right to
substitute assets held by them. Mr. Malone disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares held in these trusts.

The Irrevocable Undertaking, dated as of November 16, 2015, from Mr. Malone to CWC contains provisions relating, in certain circumstances, to the
voting (subject to certain restrictions) of certain Liberty Global Class A Shares, Liberty Global Class B Shares, LILAC Class A Shares and LiLAC
Class B Shares beneficially owned by Mr. Malone and the transferability of such shares. Mr. Malone expressly disclaims the existence of and
membership in a group with CWC.

Based on information available to Liberty Global, including the Schedule 13D/A (Amendment No. 8) of Mr. Malone filed with the SEC on

November 19, 2015, includes (i) 8,677,225 Liberty Global Class B Shares, (ii) 433,861 LiLAC Class B Shares, 7,117,225 Liberty Global Class C
Shares and 375,861 LiLAC Class C Shares held by a trust with respect to which Mr. Malone is a co-trustee and, with his wife, retains a unitrust interest
in the trust (which we refer to as the Malone Trust).

Based on the Schedule 13D/A (Amendment No. 7) of Mr. Malone filed with the SEC on February 18, 2014, pursuant to a letter agreement dated as of
February 13, 2014, among Mr. Fries, Mr. Malone and the Malone Trust, the parties agreed that, for so long as Mr. Fries is employed as a principal
executive officer by us or serving on our board of directors, (a) in the event the Malone Trust or any permitted transferee (as defined in such letter
agreement) is not voting the Liberty Global Class B Shares and LiLAC Class B Shares owned by the Malone Trust, Mr. Fries will have the right to vote
such Liberty Global Class B Shares and LiLAC Class B Shares and (b) in the event the Malone Trust or any permitted transferee determines to sell such
Liberty Global Class B Shares and LiLAC Class B Shares, Mr. Fries (individually or through an entity he controls) will have an exclusive right to
negotiate to purchase such shares, and if the parties fail to come to an agreement and the Malone Trust or any permitted transferee subsequently intends
to enter into a sale transaction with a third party, Mr. Fries (or an entity controlled by him) will have a right to match the offer made by such third party.
Includes 2,200,000 Liberty Global Class C Shares and 110,000 LiLAC Class C Shares subject to a long-dated post-paid variable forward sale contract
with an unaffiliated counterparty, divided into 20 components of 110,000 Liberty Global Class C Shares and 5,500 LiLLAC Class C Shares, each. The
components mature on sequential trading days beginning on August 17, 2017 and ending on September 14, 2017.
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The number of Liberty Global Class A Shares and the number of Liberty Global Class B Shares are based upon the Schedule 13D/A (Amendment

No. 1) dated March 6, 2014, filed by Mr. Bennett with the SEC on April 3, 2014. The Schedule 13D/A reflects that Mr. Bennett has sole voting and
dispositive power over the Liberty Global Class A Shares and Liberty Global Class B Shares reported. Of the shares reported, the Schedule 13D/A
shows Mr. Bennett and his spouse jointly owning 749,539 Liberty Global Class B Shares and Hilltop Investments, LLC, which is jointly owned by

Mr. Bennett and his spouse, owning 232,334 Liberty Global Class B Shares.

The number of shares is based on the assumption that the respective shareholder held the number of Liberty Global Class A Shares and Liberty Global
Class B Shares reported in their respective Schedule 13D or Schedule 13G, as the case may be, on the record date of the LiLAC Share distribution and
applying the distribution ratio to such shares.

The number of Liberty Global Class A Shares is based upon the Schedule 13G/A (Amendment No. 1) for the year ended December 31, 2014, filed with
the SEC on February 9, 2015, by BlackRock, Inc. as a parent holding company of various subsidiaries, which together beneficially own the shares. The
Schedule 13G/A reflects that BlackRock, Inc. has sole voting power over 13,829,525 of the Liberty Global Class A Shares. It has sole dispositive
power over all of the Liberty Global Class A Shares.

The number of Liberty Global Class A Shares is based upon the Schedule 13G/A (Amendment No. 1) for the year ended December 31, 2014, filed with
the SEC on February 6, 2015, by Capital World Investors as a result of Capital Research and Management Company acting as investment advisor to
various investment companies, including EuroPacific Growth Fund. The Schedule 13G/A reflects that Capital World Investors has sole voting and
dispositive power over the Liberty Global Class A Shares. EuroPacific Growth Fund filed a Schedule 13G/A for the year ended December 31, 2014 on
February 9, 2015, reporting sole voting and dispositive power over 13,481,000 of the Liberty Global Class A Shares reported by Capital World
Investors and states under certain circumstances it may vote these shares.

The number of Liberty Global Class A Shares is based upon the Schedule 13G for the year ended December 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on

February 13, 2015, by FMR LLC, as a parent holding company of various subsidiaries, Edward C. Johnson IIT and Abigail P. Johnson, which together
beneficially own the shares. The Schedule 13G reflects that FMR Co. Inc. owns at least 5% of the shares. The family of Edward C. Johnson III,
including Abigail P. Johnson, hold 49% of the voting power of FMR LLC. The Schedule 13G reflects that FMR LLC has sole voting power over
409,802 of the Liberty Global Class A Shares and sole dispositive power over all of the Liberty Global Class A Shares.

The number of LiLAC Class A Shares is based upon the Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on August 10, 2015, by FMR LLC, as a parent holding
company of various subsidiaries, Edward C. Johnson III and Abigail P. Johnson, which together beneficially own the shares. The Schedule 13G reflects
that FMR Co. Inc. owns at least 5% of the shares. The family of Edward C. Johnson III, including Abigail P. Johnson, hold 49% of the voting power of
FMR LLC. The Schedule 13G reflects that FMR LLC has sole voting and sole dispositive power over these LiLAC Class A Shares.

The number of LiLAC Class A Shares is based upon the Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on October 19, 2015, by New Mountain Vantage Advisers,
L.L.C. As of October 9, 2015, the date of the event which required the filing of the Schedule 13G, certain fund accounts (which we refer to as the Fund
Accounts) affiliated with New Mountain Vantage Advisers, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company, held an aggregate of 679,904 LiLAC Class A
Shares. New Mountain Vantage Advisers, L.L.C. possesses the sole power to vote and the sole power to direct the disposition of the LiLAC Class A
Shares held by the Fund Accounts.
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Security Ownership of Management

The following table sets forth information with respect to the beneficial ownership by each of our directors and each of our named executive officers,
and by all of our directors and executive officers as a group, of (1) our Liberty Global Class A Shares, (2) our Liberty Global Class B Shares, (3) our Liberty
Global Class C Shares, (4) our LiLAC Class A Shares, (5) our LiILAC Class B Shares and (6) LiLAC Class C Shares.

Except as otherwise indicated in the notes to the table, the security ownership information is given as of December 31, 2015, and, in the case of
percentage ownership information, is based upon (1) 252,766,455 Liberty Global Class A Shares, (2) 10,472,517 Liberty Global Class B Shares,
(3) 584,044,394 Liberty Global Class C Shares, (4) 12,630,580 LiLAC Class A Shares, (5) 523,423 LiLAC Class B Shares and (6) 30,722,874 LiLAC Class
C Shares, in each case, outstanding on that date. Although beneficial ownership of our Liberty Global Class C Shares and our LiLAC Class C Shares is set
forth below, our Liberty Global Class C Shares and our LiLAC Class C Shares are non-voting and, therefore, in the case of voting power, are not included.
The percentage of voting power is presented on an aggregate basis for each person or group listed below.

Ordinary shares issuable on or within 60 days after December 31, 2015, upon exercise of options or SARs, vesting of RSUs, conversion of convertible
securities or exchange of exchangeable securities, are deemed to be outstanding and to be beneficially owned by the person holding the options, SARs, RSUs
or convertible or exchangeable securities for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of that person, but are not treated as outstanding for the
purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person. For purposes of the following presentation, beneficial ownership of our Liberty Global
Class B Shares and LiLAC Class B Shares, although convertible on a one-for-one basis into our Liberty Global Class A Shares and LiLAC Class A Shares,
respectively, is reported as beneficial ownership of our Liberty Global Class B Shares and LiLAC Class B Shares only, and not as beneficial ownership of our
Liberty Global Class A Shares or LiLAC Class A Shares, as the case may be.

So far as is known to us, the persons indicated below have sole voting power with respect to the ordinary shares indicated as owned by them, except as
otherwise stated in the notes to the table. With respect to certain of our executive officers and directors, the number of shares indicated as owned by them
includes shares held by the 401(k) Plan as of December 31, 2015, for their respective accounts.

Amount and Nature of Percent of Voting
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Title of Class Beneficial Ownership Class Power
John C. Malone Liberty Global Class A 1,090,480 (1)(4) i 24.9%
Chairman of the Board Liberty Global Class B 8,787,373 (2) 83.9%
Liberty Global Class C 12,055,905 (3)(4) 2%
LiLAC Class A 54,523 (1) *
LiLAC Class B 439,368 (2) 83.9%
LiLAC Class C 650,694 (3) 2.1%
Andrew J. Cole Liberty Global Class A 24,419 (5) = &
Director Liberty Global Class B — —
Liberty Global Class C 61,074 (5) e
LiLAC Class A 1,202 (5)
LiLAC Class B — —
LiLAC Class C 3,017 (5) *
John P. Cole, Jr. Liberty Global Class A 56,954 (5) & i
Director Liberty Global Class B — —
Liberty Global Class C 186,871 (5) S
LiLAC Class A 2,820 (5)
LiLAC Class B — —
LiLAC Class C 9,293 (5) *
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Amount and Nature of Percent of Voting
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Title of Class Beneficial Ownership Class Power
Miranda Curtis Liberty Global Class A 140,450 (5) * *
Director Liberty Global Class B — —
Liberty Global Class C 412,861 (5)
LiLAC Class A 6,956 (5)
LiLAC Class B — —
LiLAC Class C 20,445 (5)
John W. Dick Liberty Global Class A 59,409 (5) &
Director Liberty Global Class B — —
Liberty Global Class C 179,831 (5)
LiLAC Class A 2,944 (5)
LiLAC Class B — —
LiLAC Class C 8,942 (5) *
Michael T. Fries Liberty Global Class A 741,808 (4)(5)(6)(8) s 1.1%
Director, Chief Executive Officer & Liberty Global Class B 333,333 (7) 3.2%
President Liberty Global Class C 2,117,110 (4)(5)(6)(8) &
LiLAC Class A 37,086 (5)(6)(8) *
LiLAC Class B 16,666 (7) 3.2%
LiLAC Class C 105,890 (5)(6)(8) *
Paul A. Gould Liberty Global Class A 249,901 (5) 3 &
Director Liberty Global Class B 51,429 *
Liberty Global Class C 1,066,759 (5) .
LiLAC Class A 12,481 (5) *
LiLAC Class B 2,571 &
LiLAC Class C 53,305 (5) *
Richard R. Green Liberty Global Class A 37,318 (5) & w
Director Liberty Global Class B — —
Liberty Global Class C 105,884 (5) .
LiLAC Class A 1,840 (5) *
LiLAC Class B — —
LiLAC Class C 5,245 (5)
David E. Rapley Liberty Global Class A 14,342 (5) &
Director Liberty Global Class B — —
Liberty Global Class C 50,924 (5)
LiLAC Class A 712 (5)
LiLAC Class B — —
LiLAC Class C 2,691 (5)
Larry E. Romrell Liberty Global Class A 32,659 (5) o
Director Liberty Global Class B — —
Liberty Global Class C 82,503 (5)
LiLAC Class A 1,628 (5)
LiLAC Class B — —
LiLAC Class C 4,222 (5)
JC Sparkman Liberty Global Class A 46,064 (5) o
Director Liberty Global Class B — —
Liberty Global Class C 127,146 (5)
LiLAC Class A 2,297 (5)
LiLAC Class B — —
LiLAC Class C 6,377 (5) *
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Name and Address of Beneficial Owner
J. David Wargo
Director

Charles H.R. Bracken
Executive Vice President & Co-Chief
Financial Officer

Bernard G. Dvorak
Executive Vice President, & Co-Chief
Financial Officer

Diederik Karsten
Executive Vice President, European
Broadband Operations

Balan Nair
Executive Vice President & Chief
Technology Officer

All directors and executive officers as a
group (17 persons)

* Less than one percent.

Title of Class

Amount and Nature of
Beneficial Ownership

Liberty Global Class A
Liberty Global Class B
Liberty Global Class C
LiLAC Class A
LiLAC Class B
LiLAC Class C
Liberty Global Class A
Liberty Global Class B
Liberty Global Class C
LiLAC Class A
LiLAC Class B
LiLAC Class C
Liberty Global Class A
Liberty Global Class B
Liberty Global Class C
LiLAC Class A
LiLAC Class B
LiLAC Class C
Liberty Global Class A
Liberty Global Class B
Liberty Global Class C
LiLAC Class A
LiLAC Class B
LiLAC Class C
Liberty Global Class A
Liberty Global Class B
Liberty Global Class C
LiLAC Class A
LiLAC Class B
LiLAC Class C
Liberty Global Class A
Liberty Global Class B
Liberty Global Class C
LiLAC Class A
LiLAC Class B
LiLAC Class C

(1) See notes (1), (2) and (3) to “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners”.
(2) See notes (2), (3), (4) and (5) to “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners”.
(3) Seenotes (1), (2), (4) and (6) to “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners”.

Page 64

65,909 (4)(5)(9)
167,;3 (4)(5)9)
3,285 (4)(5)(9)
9,791 (4)(5)9)
102,499 (5)
393,;6 (5)
7,486 (5)

20,4_34 (5)

289,866 (4)(5)(6)(10)
1,202,59 4)(5)(6)(10)
14,292 (5)(6)(10)

55,58 (4)(5)(6)(10)

192,787 (5)
557,1_32 (5)
9,635 (5)

27,&0 (5)

242,696 (4)(5)
764,1_84 4)(5)(6)

12,130 (5)

38,2_02 4)(5)(6)
3,490,139 (11)(12)
9,172,135

19,733,132 (11)(12)
176,712 (11)(12)
458,605

1,036,545 (11)(12)

Percent of
Class
*

1.4%
87.6%
3.4%
1.4%
87.6%
3.4%

Voting
Power

26.5%
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(4) Includes shares pledged to the indicated entities in support of one or more lines of credit or margin accounts extended by such entities:

No. of Shares Pledged

Liberty Global Liberty Global LiLAC LiLAC
Owner Class A Class C Class A Class C Entity Holding the Shares
John C. Malone 90,303 1,472,041 — — Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated
John C. Malone 952,177 1,210,195 — — Fidelity Brokerage Services, LLC
Michael T. Fries 366,327 905,340 — — Morgan Stanley Inc.
J. David Wargo 195 885 9 44 UBS Financial Services, Inc.
J. David Wargo 3,965 11,867 198 593 Fidelity Brokerage Services, LLC
Bernard G. Dvorak 15,675 290,580 — 2,929 UBS Financial Services, Inc.
Balan Nair 71,294 284,064 — — UBS Financial Services, Inc.

(5) Includes shares that are subject to options or SARs, which were exercisable as of, or will be exercisable within 60 days of, December, 2015, as follows:

Owner

Andrew J. Cole
John P. Cole, Jr.
Miranda Curtis
John W. Dick
Michael T. Fries
Paul A. Gould
Richard R. Green
David E. Rapley
Larry E. Romrell
JC Sparkman

J. David Wargo
Charles H.R. Bracken
Bernard G. Dvorak
Diederik Karsten
Balan Nair

(6) Includes shares held in the 401(k) Plan as follows:

Owner

Michael T. Fries
Bernard G. Dvorak
Balan Nair

(7)  See note (5) to “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners”.

(8) Includes 46,200 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 283,360 Liberty Global Class C Shares, 2,310 LiLAC Class A Shares and 14,168 LiLAC Class C
Shares held by a trust managed by an independent trustee, of which the beneficiaries are Mr. Fries’ minor children. Mr. Fries has no pecuniary interest
in the trust, but he retains the right to substitute the assets held by the trust. Mr. Fries disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares.

(9) Includes 32 Liberty Global Class C Shares and one LiLAC Class C Shares held by Mr. Wargo’s spouse, as to which Mr. Wargo has disclaimed

Liberty Global Liberty Global LiLAC LiLAC
Class A Class C Class A Class C
4,993 13,525 248 674
46,256 136,980 2,307 6,840
10,979 31,624 546 1,576
42,482 136,159 2,119 6,799
309,567 808,010 15,477 40,439
41,005 121,300 2,046 6,056
31,979 94,347 1,595 4,710
11,557 34,302 574 1,709
8,171 23,208 405 1,155
34,802 103,721 1,735 5,178
51,507 152,661 2,570 7,624
102,499 393,146 7,230 19,666
207,091 579,668 10,352 28,991
179,584 497,522 8,976 24,882
171,402 473,083 8,568 23,662
Liberty Global Liberty Global LiLAC LiLAC
Class A Class C Class A Class C
1,977 13,063 98 653
510 11,263 25 555
— 6,508 — 314

beneficial ownership. Also includes 158 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 556 Liberty Global Class C Shares, 7 LiLAC Class A Shares and 26 LiLAC
Class C Shares held in various accounts managed by Mr. Wargo as to which shares Mr. Wargo has disclaimed beneficial ownership.
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(10)

11

(12)

Includes the following securities held by Mr. Dvorak’s spouse, as to which Mr. Dvorak has disclaimed beneficial ownership: (a) 5,303 Liberty Global
Class A Shares, 96,812 Liberty Global Class C Shares, 243 LiLLAC Class A Shares and 4,782 LiLAC Class C Shares; (b) 59,736 Liberty Global Class A
Shares, 166,761 Liberty Global Class C Shares, 2,984 LiLLAC Class A Shares and 8,337 LiLAC Class C Shares that are subject to SARs, which were
exercisable as of, or will be exercisable within 60 days of, December 31, 2015; and (c) 1,551 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 14,328 Liberty Global
Class C Shares, 77 LiLAC Class A Shares and 707 LiLAC Class C Shares held in the 401(k) Plan.

Includes 189,964 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 110,148 Liberty Global Class B Shares, 1,117,245 Liberty Global Class C Shares, 4,717 LiLAC Class
A Shares, 5,507 LiLAC Class B Shares and 28,416 LiLAC Class C Shares held by relatives of certain directors and executive officers or held pursuant
to certain trust arrangements or in managed accounts, as to which shares beneficial ownership has been disclaimed.

Includes 1,397,763 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 3,986,274 Liberty Global Class C Shares, 71,938 LiLAC Class A Shares and 199,320 LiLAC Class
C Shares that are subject to options or SARs, which were exercisable as of or will be exercisable or vest within 60 days of December 31, 2015; 4,038
Liberty Global Class A Shares, 47,101 Liberty Global Class C Shares, 200 LiLAC Class A Shares and 2,316 LiLAC Class C Shares held by the 401(k)
Plan; and 1,518,361 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 4,251,258 Liberty Global Class C Shares, 1,226 LiLAC Class A Shares and 7,376 LiLAC Class C
Shares pledged in support of various lines of credit or margin accounts.
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FUTURE SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

We currently expect that our annual general meeting of shareholders for the calendar year 2016 will be held during the second quarter of 2016 in
London, England. Shareholders who, in accordance with Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (which we refer to as the
Exchange Act), wished to present a resolution for inclusion in the proxy materials for the 2016 annual general meeting must have submitted their resolution in
writing to our Corporate Secretary and the resolution must have been received at our executive offices at Griffin House, 161 Hammersmith Rd, London W6
8BS, United Kingdom, by the close of business on January 7, 2016. The deadline for shareholders to submit their resolutions for inclusion in the proxy
materials for the 2017 annual general meeting cannot be calculated at this time but will be made available in the proxy materials to be distributed to
shareholders in connection with our 2016 annual general meeting. In accordance with our articles of association, shareholders who wish to nominate a
candidate as a director or bring a resolution not pursuant to Rule 14a-8 before the 2016 annual general meeting must submit their written notice of the matter
to our executive offices at the foregoing address on or following February 26, 2016, and before the close of business on March 28, 2016, or such later date as
may be determined and announced in connection with the actual scheduling of the annual general meeting.

All shareholder resolutions for inclusion in our proxy materials will be subject to the proxy rules adopted under the Exchange Act and, as with any
shareholder resolution (regardless of whether it is included in our proxy materials), our articles of association and the laws of England and Wales.
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SOLICITATION

Liberty Global is soliciting proxies for the general meeting from Liberty Global shareholders. Liberty Global will bear the entire cost of soliciting
proxies from Liberty Global shareholders. In addition to this mailing, Liberty Global’s directors, officers and employees may solicit proxies by mail, email,
telephone or by personal interviews. These persons will receive no additional compensation for such services. Brokerage houses, nominees, fiduciaries and
other custodians will be requested to forward soliciting material to the beneficial owners of our voting shares held of record by them and will be reimbursed
for their reasonable expenses in connection therewith.

[ ] has been retained to assist in the solicitation of proxies for a fee of $[e]. In addition to solicitations by mail, proxies also may be solicited
personally, or by telephone or electronic means by some directors, officers and regular employees of Liberty Global, without additional compensation, as well
as by employees of [ ]. Liberty Global will reimburse brokerage firms and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses incurred
by them in sending proxy material and other shareholder materials to the beneficial owners of shares where those owners request such materials.

Liberty Global will pay the cost of soliciting proxies.
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OTHER MATTERS

As of the date of this proxy statement, Liberty Global’s board of directors has no knowledge of any matters to be presented for consideration at the
general meeting other than those referred to in this proxy statement. However, the persons named as proxies in this proxy statement will have authority to
vote such proxies as to any other matters that properly come before the general meeting and as to matters incidental to the conduct of the meeting, according
to their discretion.

Page 69



Table of Contents

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT REQUIRED BY THE TAKEOVER CODE

The directors of Liberty Global (excluding Mr. Malone, who recused himself from all deliberations and voting on the matters that are the subject of this
proxy statement) each accept responsibility for the information contained in this document other than that information relating to CWC (including, for the
avoidance of doubt, the sections of this proxy statement entitled “Selected Consolidated Historical Financial Data of CWC” beginning on page 53, and
“Financial Information of CWC” beginning on page F-1, including the section thereof entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations of CWC” beginning on page F-2), the directors of CWC and the persons whose interests in shares the directors of CWC
are taken to be interested in pursuant to Part 22 of the Companies Act. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the directors of Liberty Global (who have
taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this document for which they are responsible is in accordance with the
facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

Page 70



Table of Contents

MISCELLANEOUS

Liberty Global has supplied all information relating to Liberty Global in this proxy statement and CWC has supplied, and Liberty Global has not
independently verified, all of the information relating to CWC in this proxy statement, including information contained in the sections of this proxy statement
entitled “Selected Consolidated Historical Financial Data of CWC” beginning on page 53, and “Financial Information of CWC” beginning on page F-1,
including the section thereof entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of CWC” beginning on
page F-2.
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

Liberty Global files annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any reports,
statement or other information that Liberty Global files with the SEC at the SEC’s public reference room at the following location:

Public Reference Room
100 F Street, N.E.
Washington, D.C. 20549

Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. These SEC filings are also available to the public from
commercial document retrieval services and at the website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov. You may also access the SEC filings and obtain other
information about Liberty Global through the website maintained by Liberty Global, which is www.libertyglobal.com. The information contained in the
website is not incorporated by reference in this proxy statement.

The SEC allows Liberty Global to “incorporate by reference” information into this proxy statement, which means that Liberty Global can disclose
important information to you by referring you to other documents filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is considered part
of this proxy statement, except for any information superseded by information contained directly in this proxy statement or in later filed documents
incorporated by reference in this proxy statement.

This proxy statement incorporates by reference the documents (or portions of documents) set forth below that Liberty Global has previously filed with
the SEC. These documents contain important business and financial information about Liberty Global (Commission file number 001-35961) that is not
included in or delivered with this proxy statement:

* Liberty Global’s Annual Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q:

» Liberty Global’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, filed by Liberty Global with the SEC on
February 13, 2015;

»  Liberty Global’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2015, filed by Liberty Global with the SEC on May 7, 2015;

»  Liberty Global’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2015, filed by Liberty Global with the SEC on August 4, 2015;
and

» Liberty Global’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015, filed by Liberty Global with the SEC on
November 5, 2015;

»  Liberty Global’s Current Reports on Form 8-K (in each case, except for any information furnished therein pursuant to Item 2.02 or 7.01 on Form 8-K):

+  Filed on January 20, 2015 (and the amendment filed on February 3, 2015), filed on January 28, 2015 (and the amendments filed on February 10,
2015 and March 2, 2015), filed on February 13, 2015, filed on February 18, 2015, filed on February 26, 2015, filed on March 25, 2015, filed on
April 6, 2015 (and the amendments filed on April 21, 2015 and May 21, 2015), filed on April 29, 2015, filed on May 13, 2015, filed on May 21,
2015, filed on June 4, 2015, filed on June 18, 2015, filed on July 1, 2015, filed on July 2, 2015, filed on July 8, 2015, filed on July 30, 2015, filed
on August 3, 2015, filed on August 6, 2015, filed on November 6, 2015, filed on November 16, 2015 (and the amendment filed on November 18,
2015) and filed on January 22, 2016; and

*  The description of the Liberty Global Shares and LiLAC Shares contained in the sections of Amendment No. 3 to Liberty Global’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-199552), which was filed with the SEC on December 24, 2014, and declared effective by the SEC on
December 29, 2014 (the “LiLAC
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Registration Statement”), entitled “The Transaction Proposals—Description of the New LiLAC Ordinary Shares and Liberty Global Ordinary Shares
under Our New Articles of Association and Comparison to the Liberty Global Ordinary Shares under Our Current Articles of Association” and “The
Transaction Proposals—Management and Allocation Policies”, which is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of Liberty Global’s Articles
of Association, a copy of which is filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Liberty Global’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the SEC on June 19, 2015
(which Articles of Association are also incorporated herein by reference).

Liberty Global also incorporates by reference additional documents that may be filed with the SEC under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act between the date of this proxy statement and the earlier of the date of the general meeting or the termination of the recommended offer
pursuant to the Rule 2.7 Announcement. These include periodic reports, such as Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current
Reports on Form 8-K, as well as proxy statements. We do not incorporate by reference any information furnished pursuant to Items 2.02 or 7.01 of Form 8-K
in any future filings, unless specifically stated otherwise.

If you are a shareholder of Liberty Global, Liberty Global may have previously sent you some of the documents incorporated by reference, but you can
obtain any of them through Liberty Global’s, the SEC or the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. Documents incorporated by reference are available from the
companies without charge, excluding all exhibits, except that if Liberty Global has specifically incorporated by reference an exhibit in this proxy statement,
the exhibit will also be provided without charge. Shareholders may obtain documents incorporated by reference in this proxy statement by requesting them in
writing or by telephone from Liberty Global at the following address:

Liberty Global plc 12300 Liberty Boulevard Englewood, CO 80112 Attention: Investor Relations Telephone: +1(303) 220-6600

If you would like to request documents from us, please do so by [DATE] to receive them before the general meeting. If you request any documents
from us, we will provide them, without charge, by first class mail or equally prompt means, within one business day of receipt of such request (not including
exhibits to the information that is incorporated by reference unless such exhibits are specifically incorporated by reference into the information that this proxy
statement incorporates). A list of shareholders entitled to vote at the general meeting will be available for inspection by any shareholder for any purpose
relevant to the meeting during business hours at Liberty Global’s principal offices at Griffin House, 161 Hammersmith Rd, London W6 8BS, United
Kingdom, for at least 10 days prior to the general meeting and will also be available for review at the general meeting or any reconvening thereof.

If you have any questions about this proxy statement, the general meeting or the Acquisition or need assistance with voting procedures, you should
contact:

——_,——
e e e

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this proxy statement. We have not authorized anyone to provide you
with information that is different from what is contained in this proxy statement. You should assume that the information in this proxy statement is accurate
only as of [DATE]. You should also assume that the information contained in any document incorporated by reference herein is accurate only as of the date of
such document. The mailing of this proxy statement to shareholders does not create any implication to the contrary.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR CWC

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with CWC'’s condensed consolidated interim financial statements as of September 30, 2015, March 31,
2015 and September 30, 2014 and for the six months ended September 30, 2015 and September 30, 2014 and the related notes (which we refer to as the CWC
Interim Financial Statements) and consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014 and for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2015, March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013 and the related notes (which we refer to as the CWC Annual Financial Statements), each included elsewhere in
this Proxy Statement.

Unless otherwise noted, the capitalized terms used below have been defined in the notes to the CWC Interim Financial Statements or CWC Annual Financial
Statements.

Except for the historical information contained herein, the discussions in this section contain forward-looking statements that reflect CWC'’s plans, estimates
and beliefs and involve risks and uncertainties. CWC'’s actual results could differ materially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements.

In this discussion, the years ended March 31, 2015, March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013 are also referred to as FY 2014/15, FY 2013/14 and FY 2012/13,
respectively, and the six months ended September 30, 2015 and September 30, 2014 are also referred to as HY 2015/16 and HY 2014/15, respectively.

We have completed a number of transactions that impact the comparability of the financial information for HY 2015/16 and HY 2014/15 and the financial
information for FY 2014/15, FY 2013/14 and FY 2012/13, including the Columbus Acquisition on March 31, 2015, the acquisition of Grupo Sonitel on
September 12, 2014 and a number of other less significant acquisitions during FY 2014/15 as well as significant dispositions during FY 2014/15 and FY
2013/14. Except for the statement of financial position data as of March 31, 2015, none of the historical information for FY 2014/15, FY 2013/14 and FY
2012/13 includes Columbus (see below). Columbus’ results are fully reflected in HY 2015/16 and, as a consequence, the impact of the Columbus Acquisition
accounts for most of the increases in CWC Group’s revenue and expenses from HY 2015/16 to HY 2014/15. In the following discussion, we quantify the
impact of the Columbus Acquisition on the results of operations for HY 2015/16. For additional information regarding the Columbus Acquisition, see note
3.11.1 of the CWC Annual Financial Statements and note 17 of the CWC Interim Financial Statements.

Overview
General

CWC is a leading provider of telecommunications-based services including mobile, high-speed broadband, traditional and IP-based voice services, and
advanced digital video services, as well as wholesale broadband capacity and managed IT services to consumers, businesses, telecommunications carriers and
governments in the Caribbean, Latin America and the Seychelles.

CWOC transformed its business in FY 2014/15 and FY 2013/14 to focus on the Caribbean and Latin America region including:

* In April 2013, CWC disposed of its operations in the Falkland Islands, Guernsey, Maldives, the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man, South Atlantic
and Diego Garcia for $501 million (which we refer to as the Islands Disposal).

+ InJune 2013, CWC disposed of its Macau operations for $807 million (which we refer to as the Macau Disposal).

+ In May 2014, CWC disposed of its 55% interest in Compagnie Monegasque de Communication SAM for $445 million and CWC'’s joint venture
in Roshan (which we refer to as the Monaco Disposal).

CWC has accounted for the these dispositions as discontinued operations and the related entities have been presented as discontinued operations in CWC'’s
condensed consolidated income statement and condensed
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consolidated statement of cash flows included in the CWC Interim Financial Statements and consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
cash flows included in the CWC Annual Financial Statements for all applicable periods presented. In the following discussion and analysis, the operating
statistics, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition that we present and discuss are those of our continuing operations unless otherwise
indicated.

CWC'’s ownership of its businesses varies—some are wholly-owned and others are partly-owned with public, governmental or corporate partners. The most
significant partly-owned businesses include the following:

+  the government of The Bahamas owns 49% and the BTC Foundation owns 2% of BTC;

+ the government of Panama owns 49% and the employees own 2% of Cable & Wireless Panama, SA (which we refer to as CWP);

*  18% of Cable & Wireless Jamaica Limited is held by public shareholders; and

+  third parties own 19% of Cable & Wireless (Barbados) Limited.

In addition, CWC owns a 77% economic interest in its business in Saint Kitts & Nevis, an 80% interest in its business in Dominica and a 70% interest in its
business in Grenada, as well as a 33.4% interest in the Seychelles Cable System.

CWC has management control of both BTC and CWP, and therefore, despite holding only 49% of the respective equity, consolidates both BTC and CWP as
its subsidiaries in its financial statements.

CWC refers to the foregoing owners of interests in its partly-owned subsidiaries as the NCI Owners. The NCI Owners’ interests in its operating results are
included in the profit/(loss) attributable to non-controlling interests in its consolidated income statements that are part of the financial information included in
this Proxy Statement. CWC'’s partly owned subsidiaries paid $35 million as dividends to NCI Owners in HY 2015/16 (FY 2014/15: $86 million, FY 2013/14:
$72 million, FY 2012/13: $73 million).

At September 30, 2015, CWC'’s reportable segments comprise operations that are managed through five regional and customer-based operating segments (the
percentages are for HY 2015/16):
»  Panama—27% of CWC'’s revenue;

»  Caribbean—all of CWC’s Caribbean operations (other than BTC) and the operations in Curacao and Trinidad and Tobago—46% of CWC'’s
revenue;

*  BTC—14% of CWC’s revenue;

*  Networks and LatAm, which comprises of CWC’s Networks & Wholesale division and the Latin American operations of CWC’s Business
Solutions division, including Columbia, Guatemala, Honduras, El Salvador, Costa Rica and Dominican Republic—11% of CWC'’s revenue; and

*  Seychelles—2% of CWC'’s revenue. (1% of CWC’s revenue is eliminated when reconciling the reportable segment results to consolidated
results).

CWC refers to businesses in which it owns 50% or less of the share capital and does not exercise management control as joint ventures. CWC’s joint ventures
principally consist of the Seychelles Cable System Ltd.

CWC also has a 49% interest in Telecommunications Services of Trinidad and Tobago Limited (which we refer to as TSTT), which it records as an asset held
for sale rather than as a joint venture.

Proposed Acquisition of CWC by Liberty Global

On November 16, 2015, Liberty Global announced, pursuant to Rule 2.7 of the UK City Code on Takeovers and Mergers, the terms of a recommended
acquisition pursuant to which Liberty Global would acquire CWC for shares of Liberty Global in a scheme of arrangement. Under the terms of the
transaction, CWC shareholders will be entitled to receive up to, in the aggregate: 31,651,616 Liberty Global Class A Shares, 77,488,978 Liberty
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Global Class C Shares, 3,648,524 LiLAC Class A Shares and 8,939,328 LiLAC Class C Shares. Further, CWC shareholders would be entitled to receive a
special dividend in the amount of £0.03 ($0.0442) per CWC share promptly following the closing of the transaction, which would be in lieu of any
previously-announced CWC dividend. Completion of the acquisition, which is expected to occur during the second quarter of 2016, is subject to, among other
conditions, Liberty Global and CWC shareholder approvals, certain regulatory approvals and court sanction of the scheme of arrangement.

Principal Activities

CWC has five principal revenue streams: mobile, broadband, video, fixed voice, and managed services and other. The following table sets forth a breakdown
of the percentage contribution to revenue of CWC’s five principal revenue streams for the periods indicated:

For the six months ended September 30 For the year ended March 31

2015 2014 2015 2014 2013
Mobile 39% 54% 53% 53% 50%
Broadband 13% 10% 10% 10% 10%
Video 8% 2% 1% 1% 1%
Fixed voice 15% 21% 21% 22% 24%
Managed services and other 25% 13% _15% _ 14% _ 15%
Total 100% 100% ﬂ% ﬂ% ﬂ%
External Factors
Competition

CWC faces competition in many areas and markets in which it operates, with competition being particularly intense in Panama and Jamaica. Certain of
CWC'’s competitors in some of the markets in which it operates may have greater financial, capital, marketing or other resources, which may allow them to
provide services more effectively and at a lower cost than CWC can. These competitors may adopt more aggressive pricing policies combined with
promotional activity, offer better services and features, develop and deploy more rapidly new or improved technologies, services and products, expand and
enhance their networks and coverage more rapidly, undertake more extensive advertising and marketing campaigns or successfully replicate our business
model.

CWC expects, by the end of the first quarter of the financial year ending March 31, 2017, that a second competitor will enter the mobile market in The
Bahamas, where CWC currently is the only provider. In FY 2014/15, BTC accounted for $348 million of CWC'’s revenue. The anticipation of a new entrant to
the market has already had a negative impact on its revenue, as CWC has reduced its roaming charges significantly to defend its market share.

Technological Developments

The telecommunications industry is characterized by technological advances and the frequent introduction of new services and products. This drives demand
for new products and services, and churn from other products and services, such as the fixed to mobile and broadband substitution that has materially changed
CWC'’s revenue mix in recent years. The most significant recent advancements in telecommunications technology that have affected CWC’s results are the
introduction of new mobile technologies (including the iPhone and other smartphones), the growth of broadband and the advent of Internet-enabled
communication services such as voice over internet protocol (which we refer to as VoIP), e-mail and instant messaging. As of September 30, 2015, 46% of
CWC’s mobile customers had a smartphone. TV and entertainment programming are expected to become increasingly important sources of revenue to CWC
during the coming years. CWC has launched a number of value added services and new data plans to meet its customers’ increasing demands for data.
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Both mobile voice and fixed voice revenue are declining across CWC'’s industry, with mobile data growing strongly. CWC expects this secular shift in mix
from voice to data to continue, and is investing in high speed networks to be better positioned to meet customer demand. The shift to mobile data is
unfavorable to revenue because CWC'’s share of mobile services markets is typically lower than its share of fixed voice markets. CWC also expects over-the-
top services to continue to grow and present a competitive threat to its fixed voice, video and messaging services, although CWC intends to monetize over-
the-top network traffic to some extent.

The profit margins of CWC’s various products and from its various markets vary significantly. Fixed voice products tend to be more profitable than mobile
voice and mobile data products. Similarly, IT services tend to have lower profit margins than telecommunications services (albeit providing IT services may
assist with providing more value-added services to customers and gaining market share). As the product mix continues to shift to less profitable mobile
business and IT services, with the speed of the shift differing across the markets in which CWC operates, the profitability of CWC’s business is likely to
decline in the absence of other means of expanding its profit margins.

Economic Conditions

Overall economic growth prospects in CWC’s markets remain positive, with some variability between countries. Latin American countries such as Panama
and Colombia have relatively robust forecasted gross domestic product growth rates of 6% and 3%, respectively, while in the Caribbean markets there are
lower forecasted gross domestic product growth rates as the region continues to show a more modest pace of recovery following the previous economic
downturn. Certain markets in Latin America have experienced currency devaluation in the 2015 calendar year, however, 86% of CWC’s revenue in FY
2014/15 was generated in U.S. dollars or currencies pegged or linked to the U.S. dollar.

Market Size and Penetration

Market penetration measures the total number of customers in each market as a proportion of the addressable market and can therefore be an indicator of
future growth potential and desirability of the market to both CWC and other market participants. In addition, higher relative market share is strongly
correlated to greater pre-tax profit margins, both due to lower cost per customer (as a result of the economies of scale) and the virtuous cycle that market
share creates in terms of the ability to cross-sell services to customers. CWC has focused its investment in part on increasing its network coverage and, as a
result, has contributed to growing the size and penetration of its mobile and broadband markets, which has had the effect of growing its mobile and broadband
revenue. Some of the markets in which CWC operates, such as Panama, still have relatively low broadband penetration rates, offering further growth
opportunity. In The Bahamas, CWC expects to lose market share in the near- to medium-term following the expected entry of a mobile competitor.

F-5



Table of Contents

Results of Operations

The following table presents CWC’s selected historical income statement data, including as a percentage of revenue, for the periods indicated.

Continuing operations

Mobile

Broadband

Video

Fixed voice

Managed services and other

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross margin

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and
amortisation

Depreciation and impairment

Amortisation

Other operating expense

Group operating profit

Share of results of joint ventures and associates

Total operating profit

Finance income

Finance expense

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the period from continuing
operations

Discontinued operations

Profit for the period from discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit for the period

Six months ended September 30

Six months ended

September 30 Change excluding
2015 Change 2015 Columbus
% of % of Columbus
Total Revenue Total Revenue $ % Total $ %
(in millions of $, except percentages)

465 39 461 54 4 1 — 4 1

150 13 86 10 64 74 62 2 2

100 8 13 2 87 669 85 2 15
175 15 180 21 5) 3) — 5) 3)

289 25 108 13 181 168 160 21 19

1,179 100 848 100 331 39 307 24 3

(306) (26) (214) 25 _(92) 43 (76)  (16) 7

873 74 634 75 239 38 231 8 1

(476) (40)  (357) (42)  (119) 33 (96) (23 6
(149) (13) (104 (12) (45) 43 (48) 3 3)

(52) 4 (19) 2) (33) 174 (26) W) 37

(5) — ) — R C) 150 2) 1) 50
191 16 152 18 39 26 59 (20) (13)
(1) — 1 1 (12)  (109) — (12)  (109)
190 16 163 19 27 17 59 (32) (20)

B — 3 — — 0 — — 0

(194) (16) (34 4 (160) 471 (53)  (107) 315
1) — 132 15 (133) (101) 6 (139) (105)
(19) 2 _(29 3 _ 10 (34) 1) 11 (38)
(20) (2 103 12 (123) (119) 5 (128) (124
— — 34 42 (354) (100) — (354)  (100)
(20) () 457 54 (477)  (104) 5  (482)  (105)
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Year ended March 31
2015 2014 2013
Total % Total % Total %

(in millions of $, except percentages)
Continuing operations

Mobile 929 53 898 53 875 50
Broadband and video 198 11 194 11 187 11
Fixed voice 359 21 374 22 419 24
Managed services and other 267 15 223 14 269 15
Revenue 1,753 100 1,689 100 1,750 100
Cost of sales (458) (26) (418) (25 (464) (27)
Gross margin 1,295 74 1,271 75 1,286 73
Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation (814) (46) (899 (B3) (819 47
Depreciation and impairment (336) (199 (204) (12) (99 @17
Amortisation “47) 3) 31) ) 41) )
Other operating (expense)/income (20) @8 (15) 1) 4 —
Group operating profit 78 5 122 7 131 7
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 12 — (62) (@) 10 1
Total operating profit 90 5 60 3 141 8
Gain on sale of businesses 4 — — — — —
Finance income 26 1 6 — 8 —
Finance expense (121) (7) (@ae4) (@(10) (152 ®)
Loss before income tax a — (98) (6) B) —
Income tax expense (32) ) (32) ) (46) 3)
Loss for the period from continuing operations (33) 2 (130) ©)) (49) 3)
Discontinued operations

Profit for the period from discontinued operations 354 20 1,081 64 219 13
Profit for the period 321 18 951 56 170 10

Comparison of HY 2015/16 with HY 2014/15
CWC Group Results

Revenue. Revenue increased by $331 million, or 39%, from $848 million in HY 2014/15 to $1,179 million in HY 2015/16, driven primarily by the Columbus
Acquisition. Revenue increased by $24 million, or 3%, from $848 million in HY 2014/15 to $872 million for HY 2015/16 excluding the impact of the
Columbus Acquisition. Excluding the results of Grupo Sonitel and Columbus and adjusting for currency movements, the growth would have been $5 million,
or 1%. Excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition, revenue was driven by strong growth in managed services and growth in subscribers for CWC’s
broadband, mobile and video services. Excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition, fixed voice revenue continued to decline as customers substituted
to other products.
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The following table sets forth CWC'’s five revenue streams for the periods indicated.

Six months
. ended
Six months ended September 30 September 30 Change excluding
2015 2014 Change 2015 Columbus
Columbus
Total Total $ % Total $ %
(in millions of $, except percentages)
Mobile 465 461 4 1 — 4 1
Fixed voice 175 180 5) A3) — (5) 3)
Broadband 150 86 64 74 62 2 2
Video 100 13 87 669 85 2 15
Managed services and other 289 108 181 168 160 21 19
Total 1,179 848 331 39 307 24 3
The following table shows the contribution of each of CWC’s reportable segments to total revenue for the periods indicated.
Six months ended September 30
2015 2014 2015 % of revenue
% of Columbus excluding
Total Revenue Total % of Revenue Total Columbus
(in millions of $, except percentages)
Caribbean 547 47 337 40 194 40
Panama 322 27 302 36 — 37
BTC 162 14 171 20 — 19
Networks / LatAm 130 11 11 1 118 1
Seychelles 27 2 27 3 — 3
Other and eliminations(1) 9) (1) — — (5) —
Total 1,179 100 848 100 307 100

(1) CWC uses “other and eliminations” in order to reconcile the reportable segment results to its consolidated results. This item includes management,
royalty and branding fees, the costs of the London headquarters, the costs of the Miami operational hub, net UK defined benefit pension charge or
credit and intercompany eliminations.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales increased by $92 million, or 43%, from $214 million in HY 2014/15 to $306 million in HY 2015/16, principally due to the
Columbus Acquisition. Cost of sales excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition increased by $16 million, or 7%, from $214 million in HY 2014/15 to
$230 million in HY 2015/16, mainly due to increased costs in relation to TV content for the increased number of TV subscribers.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. These costs increased by $119 million, or 33%, from $357 million in HY 2014/15 to
$476 million in HY 2015/16, primarily due to the Columbus Acquisition. These costs, excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition increased by $23
million, or 6%, from $357 million in HY 2014/15 to $380 million in HY 2015/16 due to costs incurred to grow the C&W Business.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation in HY 2015/16 include $24 million of re-branding costs, integration, restructuring and
other costs and professional fees in relation to the Columbus Acquisition and integration of Columbus and its subsidiaries (which we refer to as the Columbus
Group) within the CWC Group.
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As of September 30, 2015, $92 million of the $110 million of total expected costs related to the integration of Columbus had been incurred, of which $34
million had been paid.

The following table sets forth the components of CWC’s operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation for the periods indicated.

Six months
Six months ended September 30 ended
September 30 Change excluding
2015 2014 Change 2015 Columbus
Total Total $ % Columbus Total $ %
(in millions of $, except percentages)

Employee and other staff expenses 176 110 66 60 48 18 16
Operating lease rentals 37 20 17 85 16 1 5
Other administrative expenses 159 126 33 26 25 8 6
Network costs 64 61 3 5 3 — —
Property and utility costs 40 40 — — 4 C) (10)
Total 476 357 119 33 96 23 6

Depreciation and impairment. Depreciation and impairment increased by $45 million, or 43%, from $104 million in HY 2014/15 to $149 million in HY
2015/16, principally due to the Columbus Acquisition. Depreciation and impairment excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition decreased by $3
million, or 3%, from $104 million in HY 2014/15 to $101 million in HY 2015/16 due to the impairment as at March 31, 2015 of legacy assets for copper
plant and facilities in the overlapping markets between CWC Group and Columbus Group.

Amortisation. Amortisation increased by $33 million, or 174%, from $19 million in HY 2014/15 to $52 million in HY 2015/16, principally due to the
Columbus Acquisition and amortisation of intangible assets purchased. Amortisation excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition increased by $7
million, or 37%, from $19 million in HY 2014/15 to $26 million in HY 2015/16 due to additional spectrum acquired in Jamaica.

Other operating expenses. Other operating expenses increased by $3 million, or 150%, from $2 million in HY 2014/15 to $5 million in HY 2015/16, in large
part due to the Columbus Acquisition. Other operating expenses excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition increased by $1 million, or 50%, from $2
million in HY 2014/15 to $3 million in HY 2015/16. The $5 million other operating expense in HY 2015/16 was related to foreign exchange translation gains
on CWC’s UK defined benefit pension schemes as the U.S. dollar strengthened against pounds sterling ($3 million), as well as the expenses incurred
following flooding in Dominica due to a hurricane ($1 million). In HY 2014/15, the $2 million other operating expense principally comprised losses on the
sale of property, plant and equipment in The Bahamas and Panama.

Group operating profit. Group operating profit increased by $39 million, or 26%, from $152 million in HY 2014/15 to $191 million in HY 2015/16,
principally due to the Columbus Acquisition. Excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition, group operating profit decreased by $20 million, or 13%,
from $152 million in HY 2014/15 to $132 million in HY 2015/16, principally due to costs incurred in connection with the integration of the Columbus Group.
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Share of results of joint ventures and associates. The following table sets forth the breakdown of CWC’s share of profits of joint ventures for the periods
indicated.

For the six months ended
September 30
2015 2014
(in millions of $)

Trinidad and Tobago (TSTT) — 9
Other 1) 2
Total 1) 11

CW(C’s share of profits from joint ventures and associates on a consolidated basis and excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition decreased by $12
million, from a $11 million profit in HY 2014/15 to a $1 million loss in HY 2015/16. This was mainly due to CWC complying with conditions to the
regulatory approval for the Columbus Acquisition, which requires CWC to divest its 49% stake in TSTT. CWC no longer retains significant influence over
TSTT’s management and its investment in TSTT has been transferred to assets held for sale. As such, CWC does not recognize any share of profit or loss
from its holding in TSTT since March 31, 2015.

Total operating profit. Total operating profit increased by $27 million, or 17%, from $163 million in HY 2014/15 to $190 million in HY 2015/16, principally
due to the Columbus Acquisition. Excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition, total operating profit decreased by $32 million, or 20%, from $163
million in HY 2014/15 to $131 million in HY 2015/16 mainly due to costs incurred as part of the integration of the Columbus Group.

Finance income. Finance income on a consolidated basis and excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition remained steady at $3 million in both
periods, and included primarily interest on loans receivable and cash balances.

Finance expense. Finance expense increased by $160 million, or 471%, from $34 million in HY 2014/15 to $194 million in HY 2015/16, principally due to:
additional debt and borrowing facilities resulting from the completion of the Columbus Acquisition; a $45 million charge incurred in connection with an $879
million liability that was recognized for put options that were issued in connection with the Columbus Acquisition (which we refer to as Put Options); and an
expense of $23 million related to unamortized capitalized fees written-off related to the refinancing of US$390 million secured term loan (which we refer to
as Senior Secured Term Loan) and US$300 million unsecured term loan (which we refer to as Senior Unsecured Term Loan) obtained in connection with the
Columbus Acquisition.

Profit/loss for the period from continuing operations. CWC’s loss from continuing operations was $20 million in HY 2015/16 compared to a profit of $103
million in HY 2014/15.

Profit for the period from discontinued operations. Profit for the period from discontinued operations includes $346 million related to the Monaco Disposal in
May 2014 and $8 million profit after tax from the Monaco operations during April and May 2014 prior to it being sold.

Segments
Panama

Revenue. Revenue increased by $20 million, or 7%, from $302 million in HY 2014/15 to $322 million in HY 2015/16, as video and managed services growth
(primarily due to the acquisition of Grupo Sonitel) offset the continued decline in fixed voice due to fixed to mobile substitution. Columbus has operations in
Panama that are recorded as part of the Network and LatAm segment.
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The following table sets forth the five revenue streams of CWC’s Panama segment for the periods indicated.

For the six months ended September 30

2015 2014 Change
(in millions of $) %

Mobile 175 176 1)
Broadband 25 25 —
Video 11 9 22
Fixed voice 49 54 )
Managed services and other 62 38 63
Total 322 302 7

Mobile revenue decreased by $1 million, or 1%, from $176 million in HY 2014/15 to $175 million in HY 2015/16, principally due to voice revenue decline
of 9% as competition and over-the-top voice substitution caused average revenue per user (which we refer to as ARPU) to fall. CWC saw a 3% increase in
prepaid customers and a 10% increase in postpaid customers, as it launched more affordable smart devices. Subscriber data penetration increased to 51% in
HY 2015/16, following a 32% increase in data subscribers, as a wider range of data plans and the launch of CWC’s long term evolution mobile service (which
we refer to as LTE) in March 2015 stimulated both prepaid and postpaid usage.

Broadband revenue was $25 million, in line with HY 2014/15, as an increase in subscribers of 3% to 136,000 was offset by a fall in ARPU.

Video revenue increased by $2 million, or 22%, from $9 million in HY 2014/15 to $11 million for HY 2015/16, largely due to growth in both hybrid fyber
coaxial (which we refer to as HFC) and direct-to-home (which we refer to as DTH) subscribers.

Fixed voice revenue decreased by $5 million, or 9%, from $54 million in HY 2014/15 to $49 million for HY 2015/16, driven mainly by lower domestic call
revenue, as well as a decline in subscriber numbers as customers substituted to other products.

Managed services and other revenue increased by $24 million, or 63%, from $38 million in HY 2014/15 to $62 million in HY 2015/16, primarily as a result
of the acquisition of Grupo Sonitel which was completed in September 2014. Without the impact of Grupo Sonitel, managed services and other revenue
would have fallen due to delays in awards of government contracts.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales increased by $18 million, or 18%, from $100 million in HY 2014/15 to $118 million in HY 2015/16, principally due to the
addition of the cost of sales of Grupo Sonitel, which was acquired in September 2014.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs increased by $4 million, or 5%, from $84 million in HY 2014/15 to
$88 million in HY 2015/16, principally due to the inclusion of Grupo Sonitel’s cost base.

Caribbean

Revenue. Revenue increased by $210 million, or 62%, from $337 million in HY 2014/15 to $547 million in HY 2015/16, principally as a result of the
Columbus Acquisition. Revenue excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition increased by $16 million, or 5%, from $337 million in HY 2014/15 to
$353 million in HY 2015/16, as a result of growth in mobile revenue following the increasing demand for mobile data.
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The following table sets forth the five revenue streams of CWC’s Caribbean segment for the periods indicated.

Six months ended September 30 Six months ended

September 30 Change excluding
2015 2014 Change 2015 Columbus
Total Total $ % Columbus Total $ %
(in millions of $, except percentages)

Mobile 158 143 15 10 — 15 10
Broadband 112 48 64 133 62 2 4
Video 89 4 85 2,125 85 — —
Fixed voice 98 98 — — — — —
Managed services and other 90 44 46 105 47 (1) ()

Total 547 337 210 62 194 16 5

Mobile revenue on a consolidated basis, increased by $15 million, or 10%, from $143 million in HY 2014/15 to $158 million in HY 2015/16 due to
increasing demand for mobile data. Revenue in the Jamaica business increased by 16% due to a 241% increase in mobile data traffic, and data traffic
increased by 73% in Barbados, 5% in the Cayman Islands and 102% across other markets. The increase in network speeds following investments made by
CWC in the region is expected to continue to drive the shift in mix from voice to data.

Broadband revenue increased by $64 million, or 133%, from $48 million in HY 2014/15 to $112 million in HY 2015/16, driven by the Columbus Acquisition
and subscriber growth in Trinidad, Barbados and Jamaica. Broadband revenue excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition increased by $2 million, or
4%, from $48 million in HY 2014/15 to $50 million in HY 2015/16.

Video revenue increased by $85 million, or 2,125%, from $4 million in HY 2014/15 to $89 million for HY 2015/16, as a result of the Columbus Acquisition.
Video revenue excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition was in line with HY 2014/15.

Fixed voice revenue on a consolidated basis and excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition, was $98 million in HY 2015/16, in line with HY
2014/15. Factors impacting the HY 2015/16 comparison with HY 2014/15 primarily include the recognition of $4 million of non-recurring transit revenue,
price increases in certain markets of the Caribbean segment, declines in usage, particularly international calls, and subscriber growth from the bundling of
products.

Managed services revenue increased by $46 million, or 105%, from $44 million in HY 2014/15 to $90 million in HY 2015/16, largely due to the Columbus
Acquisition and CWC’s continued focus towards recurring, value added, revenue products such as managed security (rather than the one-off provision of
firewalls), virtual servers in a CWC data center (rather than selling one-off server hardware) and providing disaster recovery as a service (which we refer to as
DRaaS) solutions (rather than backup systems hardware). Managed services revenue excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition was relatively in line
with HY 2014/15.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales increased by $54 million, or 75%, from $72 million in HY 2014/15 to $126 million in HY 2015/16 as a result of the Columbus
acquisition. Cost of sales excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition was in line with HY 2014/15.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs increased by $42 million, or 25%, from $165 million in HY 2014/15
to $207 million in HY 2015/16, principally due to the Columbus Acquisition. Operating costs excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition decreased by
$12 million, or 7%, from $165 million in HY 2014/15 to $153 million in HY 2015/16 due to improved efficiency within the businesses.
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BTC

Revenue. Revenue decreased by $9 million, or 5%, to $162 million in HY 2015/16, compared to revenue of $171 million in HY 2014/15, principally due to a
reduction in mobile revenue as a result of preparations for the entry of a mobile competitor. Columbus does not operate in The Bahamas.

The following table sets forth the five revenue streams of CWC’s BTC segment for the periods indicated.

For the six months ended September 30

2015 2014 Change
(in millions of $) %
Mobile 118 126 (6)
Broadband 7 8 (13)
Fixed voice 23 24 4
Managed services and other 14 13 8
Total 162 171 (5)

Mobile revenue decreased by $8 million, or 6%, from $126 million in HY 2014/15 to $118 million in HY 2015/16 due to renegotiation of lower roaming rates
in exchange for long-term contract extensions with international carriers in preparation for the entry of a second market competitor, which resulted in a 9%
decrease in ARPU. Data traffic grew by 137%, following the additional investment in evolved high speed packet access mobile standard (which we refer to as
HSPA+) and LTE sites in the prior year, which resulted in a 60% increase in mobile data revenue, excluding roaming. Smartphone penetration of CWC’s
subscribers was at 56%.

Fixed voice revenue decreased by $1 million, or 4%, from $24 million in HY 2014/15 to $23 million for HY 2015/16, driven mainly by a 7,000 decrease in
subscribers due to substitution of other products.

Broadband revenue decreased by $1 million, or 13%, from $8 million in HY 2014/15 to $7 million in HY 2015/16, as a decrease in ARPU associated with
CWC'’s competitive offers has more than offset an increase of 4,000 in the number of subscribers for broadband.

CWC does not yet offer video services in The Bahamas.

Managed services revenue increased by $1 million, or 8%, from $13 million in HY 2014/15 to $14 million in HY 2015/16, largely due to an increase in sales
of data products to medium and large corporate customers.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales increased by $1 million, or 3%, from $33 million in HY 2014/15 to $34 million in HY 2015/16.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs decreased by $4 million, or 5%, from $79 million in HY 2014/15 to
$75 million in HY 2015/16 as CWC began to realize the benefits of the ongoing cost reduction initiatives. CWC reduced headcount by 8% as part of the cost
reduction initiatives.

Networks and LatAm

Revenue. Revenue increased from $11 million in HY 2014/15 to $130 million, or 1,082%, in HY 2015/16 principally due to the Columbus Acquisition and
also reflecting strong growth by CWC’s Business Solutions in Latin America, driven by data services growth in Columbia, Guatemala, El Salvador and
Dominican Republic. Security and Disaster Recovery Services also grew strongly across all markets. Networks and Wholesale also grew due to the signing of
several long-term leases, tower backhaul and other services. Revenue excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition increased by $1 million, or 9%, from
$11 million in HY 2014/15 to $12 million in HY 2015/16.
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Cost of sales. Cost of sales increased by $20 million, or 400%, from $5 million in HY 2014/15 to $25 million in HY 2015/16 due to the Columbus
Acquisition. Cost of sales excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition decreased by $2 million, or 40%, from $5 million in HY 2014/15 to $3 million
in HY 2015/16, due to lower fees incurred for the wholesale business.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs increased by $43 million, or 538%, from $8 million in HY 2014/15 to

$51 million in HY 2015/16 due to the Columbus Acquisition and increased staff costs incurred while establishing CWC’s Business Solutions team. Operating
costs excluding the impact of the Columbus Acquisition were in line with HY 2014/15.

Seychelles

Revenue. Revenue was $27 million, in line with HY 2014/15, despite a 6% devaluation of the Seychelles rupee against the U.S. dollar during the course of
2015. Columbus does not operate in Seychelles.

The following table sets forth the five revenue streams of CWC'’s Seychelles segment for the periods indicated.

For the six months ended September 30

2015 2014 Change
(in millions of $) %
Mobile 14 16 (13)
Broadband 6 5 20
Fixed voice 5 4 25
Managed services and other 2 2 —

Total 27 27 —

Cost of sales. Cost of sales was $4 million and was in line with HY 2014/15.
Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs were $13 million and were in line with HY 2014/15.
Comparison of FY 2014/15 with FY 2013/14

CWC Group Results
Revenue. Revenue increased by $64 million, or 4%, from $1,689 million in FY 2013/14 to $1,753 million in FY 2014/15. CWC experienced growth in three

of its four revenue streams (with the exception of fixed voice). $44 million of the revenue growth was due to the September 2014 acquisition of Grupo
Sonitel.

The following table sets forth CWC'’s four revenue streams for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2015 2014 % change
(in millions of $) %
Mobile 929 898 3
Broadband and video 198 194 2
Fixed voice 359 374 (@)
Managed services and other 267 223 20
Total 1,753 1,689 4
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Mobile revenue increased by $31 million, or 3%, from $898 million in FY 2013/14 to $929 million in FY 2014/15 due to strong growth of mobile data ($48
million) following network improvements made as a result of Project Marlin (our capital expenditure plan to invest $1.05 billion in our fixed and mobile
networks over the course of the three years ending 31 March 2017). Traffic on CWC’s mobile networks increased by 39% during the year and 44% of its
customers had a smartphone.

Broadband and video revenue increased by $4 million, or 2%, from $194 million in FY 2013/14 to $198 million in FY 2014/15, principally due to growth of
video services. Broadband revenue increased by 1%.

Fixed voice revenue decreased by $15 million, or 4%, from $374 million in FY 2013/14 to $359 million in FY 2014/15 as substitution from fixed to mobile
continued.

Managed services and other revenue increased by $44 million, or 20%, from $223 million in FY 2013/14 to $267 million in FY 2014/15 mostly due to the
acquisition of Grupo Sonitel.

The following table shows the contribution of each of CWC’s reportable segments to total revenue for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2015 2014
(in millions of $) % (in millions of $) %
Panama 636 36 576 34
Caribbean 709 40 691 41
BTC 348 20 354 21
Seychelles 52 3 53 3
Other and eliminations(1) 8 1 15 1
Total 1,753 100 1,689 100

(1) CWHC uses “other and eliminations” in order to reconcile the reportable segment results to its consolidated results. This item includes the costs of the
London headquarters, the costs of the Miami operational hub, results of its subsea cable partnership with the Columbus Group (CNL-CWC), the results
of the wholesale solutions division and eliminations for inter-segment transactions, the results of its joint ventures and associates and inter-segment
management charges. CWC recognizes its share of the results of these joint ventures under a separate line item in its consolidated income statements.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales increased by $40 million, or 10%, from $418 million in FY 2013/14 to $458 million in FY 2014/15. This increase was mainly due
to the acquisition of Grupo Sonitel.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. These costs decreased by $85 million, or 9%, from $899 million in FY 2013/14 to
$814 million in FY 2014/15.

The following table sets forth the components of CWC’s operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2015 2014
(in millions of $)
Employee and other staff expenses 323 402
Operating lease rentals 39 47
Other administrative expenses 237 237
Network costs 136 122
Property and utility costs 79 91
Total 814 899

F-15



Table of Contents

The decrease in employee and other staff expenses and operating lease rentals was primarily due to cost reduction initiatives which resulted in the reduction
in CWC'’s staff numbers and a decrease in various property related expenses.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation in FY 2014/15 include:

+  Columbus integration, restructuring and other costs of $70 million, primarily related to implementation of the integration activities to achieve
cost synergies;

*  BTC restructuring costs of $25 million, primarily related to the voluntary separation agreement in BTC for approximately 62 employees; and

*  $9 million of Panama restructuring costs, primarily related to redundancies.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation in FY 2013/14 include:

»  charges of $132 million for the CWC’s cost reduction initiative primarily in relation to redundancy payments to the 36% of the workforce in the
Caribbean and BTC who exited CWC; (including charges of $67 million primarily related to a voluntary separation scheme in TSTT);

*  $39 million of restructuring and legal costs at the London headquarters, primarily related to the establishment of CWC’s Miami operational hub
and consequential redundancies, together with lease exit property costs and certain legal costs; and

*  $3 million of Panama restructuring costs.

Depreciation and impairment. Depreciation and impairment increased by $132 million, or 65%, from $204 million in FY 2013/14 to $336 million in FY
2014/15, principally due to a $49 million write-off and a $78 million impairment of CWC'’s property, plant and equipment assets in the Caribbean segment in
FY 2014/15 related to obsolete and redundant assets following the Columbus Acquisition as well as technological upgrades.

Amortisation. Amortisation increased by $16 million, or 52%, from $31 million in FY 2013/14 to $47 million in FY 2014/15, principally due to additional
licenses for spectrum in the Caribbean and Panama.

Other operating income. In FY 2014/15, other operating income was $42 million, principally composed of $25 million of income relating to CNL-CWC, $16
million of foreign exchange translation gains on CWC’s UK defined benefit pension schemes and $1 million of gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, compared to nil operating income in FY 2013/14.

Other operating expense. Other operating expense increased by $47 million, or 313%, from $15 million in FY 2013/14 to $62 million in FY 2014/15,
principally due to $55 million of acquisition costs relating to the acquisitions of Columbus and Grupo Sonitel. Other operating expense in FY 2014/15 also
included $3 million of integration costs related to Columbus, $2 million of transaction costs for the transfer of 2% of CWC’s shares in BTC to the BTC
Foundation and a $2 million loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment. The $15 million other operating expense in FY 2013/14 related to foreign
exchange translation losses on CWC’s UK defined benefit pension schemes.

Group operating profit/(loss). Group operating profit decreased by $44 million, or 36%, from $122 million in FY 2013/14 to $78 million in FY 2014/15,
principally due to asset impairment costs of $127 million.
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Share of results of joint ventures and associates. The following table sets forth the breakdown of CWC’s share of profits of joint ventures for the periods
indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2015 2014
(in millions of $)
Trinidad and Tobago (TSTT) 11 (62)
Other(1) 1 —
Total 12 (62)

(1) Other comprises CWC’s joint venture in the Solomon Islands, Soltel and the Seychelles Cable System. In October 2014, CWC sold its stake in Soltel.

CWC'’s share of results from joint ventures increased by $74 million, from a $62 million loss in FY 2013/14 to a $12 million profit in FY 2014/15. This was
mainly due to a $67 million charge recorded for TSTT in FY 2013/14 for TSTT’s voluntary separation scheme.

Total operating profit. Group operating profit increased by $30 million, or 50%, from $60 million in FY 2013/14 to $90 million in FY 2014/15, in large part
due to the $67 million charge recorded for TSTT in FY 2013/14 for TSTT’s voluntary separation scheme.

Gain on sale of businesses. In FY 2014/15, the $4 million gain on the sale of business related to the sale of Soltel.

Finance income. Finance income increased by $20 million, or 333%, from $6 million in FY 2013/14 to $26 million in FY 2014/15 primarily due to gains in
the foreign exchange rates ($11 million) and gains on balance sheet revaluation of derivative contracts ($9 million).

Finance expense. Finance expense decreased by $43 million, or 26%, from $164 million in FY 2013/14 to $121 million in FY 2014/15, principally due to the
redemption of the 7.75% $500 million senior notes due 2017 (which we refer to as the 7.75% Secured Notes) in February 2014. In connection with the
Columbus Acquisition, CWC incurred aggregate costs of $37 million related to the consent solicitation for the $400 million aggregate principal amount of

8 3/4% senior secured notes due 2020 (which we refer to as the Senior Secured Notes) of Sable International Finance Limited (which we refer to as SIFL), the
backstop facilities for the Senior Secured Notes, the commitment fees and ticking fees for the backstop facility in connection with the Columbus offer to the
holders of the Columbus Senior Notes upon the change of control of Columbus (were the consent solicitation not successful) and accelerated amortisation of
the then existing revolving credit facilities of CWC. Additionally, fees of $57 million were capitalized in the balance sheet as they related to debt issuance
costs incurred for the Columbus Acquisition.

Loss for the period from continuing operations. CWC'’s loss from continuing operations narrowed by $97 million, or 75%, from $130 million in FY 2013/14
to $33 million in FY 2014/15.

Profit for the period from discontinued operations. This consists primarily of profits or losses arising in FY 2014/15 and FY 2013/14 from the classification
of each of the operations in Macau, Monaco and the Islands as discontinued operations by virtue of the Macau Disposal, the Monaco Disposal and the Islands
Disposal, respectively. In FY 2014/15 and FY 2013/14, CWC recognized profit from discontinued operations of $354 million and $1,081 million,
respectively.

Segments
Panama

Revenue. Revenue increased by $60 million, or 10%, from $576 million in FY 2013/14 to $636 million in FY 2014/15 as mobile data growth offset the
continued decline in fixed and mobile voice, with $44 million of this growth attributable to managed services and other revenue resulting from the acquisition
of Grupo Sonitel in September 2014.
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The following table sets forth segment revenue of CWC’s four revenue streams for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2015 2014 Change
(in millions of $) %
Mobile 351 336 4
Broadband and video 69 64 8
Fixed voice 106 113 (6)
Managed services and other 110 63 75

Total 636 576 10

Mobile revenue increased by $15 million, or 4%, from $336 million in FY 2013/14 to $351 million in FY 2014/15, principally due to a 25% growth in data
revenue stemming from the growth in the number of subscribers and the growth in subscribers data penetration, partially offset by an 8% decline in voice
revenue. Subscriber data penetration increased by 13% to 52% in FY 2014/15, following a 43% increase in data subscribers as a wider range of data plans
stimulated both prepaid and postpaid usage. Mobile ARPU was lower than in the prior year due to lower rates and usage as a result of competitive pressures,
lower roaming traffic and voice substitution.

Broadband and video revenue increased by $5 million, or 8%, from $64 million in FY 2013/14 to $69 million in FY 2014/15, as the number of subscribers for
broadband increased by 1% and ARPU increased from $28.8 in FY 2013/14 to $29.2 in FY 2014/15, and as the number of video subscribers increased by
30% following the launch of an improved video product and a prepaid DTH service, resulting in video revenue of $3 million, which was 16% higher than the
video revenue in the prior year. Bundling of products was an effective retention tool with 84% of video and 82% of broadband subscribers taking more than
one service.

Fixed voice revenue decreased by $7 million, or 6%, from $113 million in FY 2013/14 to $106 million in FY 2014/15, as revenue related to domestic calls
declined due to market pressures as substitution to mobile continued. Subscriber numbers declined by 1% as customers substituted to other products, but the
rate of the substitution to other products was slowed by 2% by the effect of “triple play” packages, as 82% of CWC'’s customers take more than one product.

Managed services and other revenue increased by $47 million, or 75%, from $63 million in FY 2013/14 to $110 million in FY 2014/15, principally due to the
acquisition of Grupo Sonitel, which added $44 million to revenue compared to the prior year. Revenue not related to Grupo Sonitel was impacted by delays in
the award of government contracts following elections in May 2014.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales increased by $41 million, or 23%, from $182 million in FY 2013/14 to $223 million in FY 2014/15, principally due to the
acquisition of Grupo Sonitel.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs increased by $17 million, or 11%, from $155 million in FY 2013/14 to
$172 million in FY 2014/15, principally due to the inclusion of Grupo Sonitel’s cost base, restructuring costs due to the preparation for brand unification
within CWC’s consumer businesses, and also an increase in marketing spend to launch improved broadband services and a revamped video offering.
Operating costs also increased due to an increase in the minimum wage of up to 15%.

Caribbean

Revenue. Revenue increased by $18 million, or 3%, from $691 million in FY 2013/14 to $709 million in FY 2014/15 as a result of growth in mobile revenue
following the implementation of network improvements (both fixed and mobile) and a new marketing campaign. Revenue in CWC’s Jamaica business
increased by 19% due to growth in mobile subscribers.
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The following table sets forth segment revenue of CWC’s four revenue streams for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2015 2014 Change
(in millions of $) %
Mobile 299 273 10
Broadband and video 103 105 2
Fixed voice 196 207 5)
Managed services and other 111 106 5
Total 709 691 3

Mobile revenue increased by $26 million, or 10%, from $273 million in FY 2013/14 to $299 million in FY 2014/15 due to increasing demand for mobile
data. Revenue for mobile data increased by $13 million, or 24%, year-on-year, with voice also increasing by $10 million, or 5%, year-on-year. The increase in
network speeds following investments made by CWC in the region is expected to continue to drive the shift in mix from voice to data.

Broadband and video revenue decreased by $2 million, or 2%, from $105 million in FY 2013/14 to $103 million in FY 2014/15. The number of subscribers
increased 3% for broadband and 13% for video, however, the competitive pricing pressure resulted in a decrease in ARPU which offset the subscriber growth.
Delays in fiber roll-out also affected broadband revenue growth.

Fixed voice revenue decreased by $11 million, or 5%, from $207 million in FY 2013/14 to $196 million for FY 2014/15. A 4% fall in ARPU, driven mainly
by rate reductions due to competition and bundling, as well as by lower termination rates, was compounded by a 0.4% drop in the number of subscribers.

Managed services and other revenue increased by $5 million, or 5%, from $106 million in FY 2013/14 to $111 million in FY 2014/15, largely due to increase
in the number of contract wins.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales increased by $1 million, or 1%, from $153 million in FY 2013/14 to $154 million in FY 2014/15.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs decreased by $51 million, or 14%, from $368 million in FY 2013/14
to $317 million in FY 2014/15, principally due to improving efficiency within the business. Following a reduction in the number of employees, CWC focused
on reducing costs through, among others, exiting non-core property assets with associated utility cost savings and initiatives to reduce power consumption.

BTC

Revenue. Revenue decreased by $6 million, or 2%, to $348 million in FY 2014/15, compared to revenue of $354 million in FY 2013/14, principally due to
reduced mobile revenue as a result of reduced tariffs and updated roaming agreements in anticipation of the advent of mobile competition, as well as the
introduction of a value-added tax in The Bahamas.
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The following table sets forth segment revenue of CWC’s four revenue streams for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2015 2014 Change
(in millions of $) %
Mobile 250 258 ?3)
Broadband and video 15 15 —
Fixed voice 49 45 9
Managed services and other 34 36 (6)
Total 348 354 )

Mobile revenue decreased by $8 million, or 3%, from $258 million in FY 2013/14 to $250 million in FY 2014/15 due to price reduction mainly in prepaid
mobile revenue as CWC introduced a more competitive pricing strategy in anticipation of a new mobile entrant, which resulted in a decrease of 7% in ARPU.
Data traffic grew by 140%.

Broadband and video revenue was flat. Subscribers increased by 9% following increased uptake in fiber-based products due to higher speeds available.

Fixed voice revenue increased by $4 million, or 9%, from $45 million in FY 2013/14 to $49 million in FY 2014/15, principally as a result of higher rates.
ARPU increased from $34.7 to $40.2 as there was upselling of higher tariff products as part of bundled offers and CWC maintained a market share of 81%.

Managed services and other revenue decreased by $2 million, or 6%, from $36 million in FY 2013/14 to $34 million in FY 2014/15 due to a reduction in off
island capacity sales.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales increased by $2 million, or 3%, from $65 million in FY 2013/14 to $67 million in FY 2014/15, principally due to higher
subscriber acquisition costs.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs decreased by $2 million, or 1%, from $161 million in FY 2013/14 to
$159 million in FY 2014/15 due to the benefits of the ongoing cost reduction initiatives.

Seychelles

Revenue. Revenue decreased by $1 million, or 2%, to $52 million in FY 2014/15, compared to revenue of $53 million in FY 2013/14, primarily due to 10%
depreciation of the Seychelles rupee against the U.S. dollar during the course of FY 2014/15.

The following table sets forth the segment revenue of CWC'’s four revenue streams for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2015 2014 Change
(in millions of $) %
Mobile 29 31 (6)
Broadband and video 11 10 10
Fixed voice 8 9 (11)
Managed services and other 4 3 33
Total 52 53 )

Mobile revenue decreased by $2 million, or 6%, from $31 million in FY 2013/14 to $29 million in FY 2014/15 due to the increase in mobile data usage being
offset by a drop in mobile voice revenue. Subscribers increased by 5%.
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Broadband and video revenue increased by $1 million, or 10%, from $10 million in FY 2013/14 to $11 million in FY 2014/15, principally due to business
customer growth and a 3% increase in ARPU.

Fixed voice revenue declined by $1 million, or 11%, from $9 million in FY 2013/14 to $8 million in FY 2014/15, as the average incoming voice termination
rate was lower than in the prior year and as voice traffic continued to migrate to the Internet.

Managed services and other revenue increased by $1 million, or 33%, from $3 million in FY 2013/14 to $4 million in FY 2014/15 due to entry into the
hosting and international MPLS business.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales increased by $1 million, or 14%, from $7 million in FY 2013/14 to $8 million in FY 2014/15.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs decreased by $1 million, or 4%, from $26 million in FY 2013/14 to
$25 million in FY 2014/15 due to foreign currency revaluation gains in the prior year of $1 million.

Comparison of FY 2013/14 with FY 2012/13
CWC Group Results

Revenue. Revenue decreased by $61 million, or 3%, from $1,750 million in FY 2012/13 to $1,689 million in FY 2013/14 as growth in mobile and broadband
and video revenue across each of CWC’s businesses was more than offset by declining fixed voice and managed services and other revenue. Declining voice
traffic, lower activity levels and difficult macroeconomic environment contributed to the decreases in fixed voice and enterprise, data and other revenue. In
addition, a change in directories accounting in the Caribbean reduced revenue by $38 million in FY 2013/14.

The following table sets forth segment revenue of CWC’s four revenue streams for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2014 2013 Change
(in millions of $) %
Mobile 898 875 3
Broadband and video 194 187 4
Fixed voice 374 419 (11)
Managed services and other 223 269 17
Total 1,689 1,750 3)

Mobile revenue increased by $23 million, or 3%, from $875 million in FY 2012/13 to $898 million in FY 2013/14 due to growth in mobile data, following
increased market penetration and usage, which resulted in the addition of 110,000 new subscribers, a growth of 3%.

Broadband and video revenue increased by $7 million, or 4%, from $187 million in FY 2012/13 to $194 million in FY 2013/14, principally due to a 7%
increase in the number of customers signing up for these services.

Fixed voice revenue decreased by $45 million, or 11%, from $419 million in FY 2012/13 to $374 million in FY 2013/14 due to declining voice traffic.

Managed services and other revenue decreased $46 million, or 17%, from $269 million in FY 2012/13 to $223 million in FY 2013/14 due to the change in
directories accounting in the Caribbean. Lower activity levels and difficult macroeconomic environment also played a role in the decrease.
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The following table shows the contribution of each of CWC’s reportable segments to total revenue for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2014 2013

(in millions of $) % (in millions of $) %
Panama 576 34 586 33
Caribbean 691 41 758 43
BTC 354 21 362 21
Seychelles 53 3 44 3
Other and eliminations(1) 15 1 — —
Total 1,689 100 1,750 100

(1) CWC uses “other and eliminations” in order to reconcile the reportable segment results to its consolidated results. This item includes the costs of the
London headquarters, the costs of the Miami operational hub, the results of its subsea cable partnership with the CNL-CWGC, the results of the
wholesale solutions division and eliminations for inter-segment transactions, the results of its joint ventures and associates and inter-segment
management charges. CWC recognizes its share of the results from these joint ventures under a separate line item in its consolidated income statements.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales decreased by $46 million, or 10%, from $464 million in FY 2012/13 to $418 million in FY 2013/14. This decrease reflected the
decrease in revenue.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. These costs increased by $80 million, or 10%, from $819 million in FY 2012/13 to
$899 million in FY 2013/14.

The following table sets forth the components of CWC'’s operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
(in millions of $)
Employee and other staff expenses 402 339
Operating lease rentals 47 42
Other administrative expenses 237 231
Network costs 122 121
Property and utility costs 91 86
Total 899 819

The increases in employee and other staff expenses, operating lease rentals, and other administrative expenses were primarily due to redundancies in the
Caribbean in FY 2013/14.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation in FY 2013/14 include:

»  charges of $132 million for the CWC cost reduction initiative primarily in relation to redundancy payments to the 36% of the workforce in the
Caribbean who exited CWC (including charges of $67 million primarily related to a voluntary separation scheme in TSTT);

*  $39 million of restructuring and legal costs at the London headquarters, primarily related to the establishment of CWC’s Miami operational hub
and consequential redundancies, together with lease exit property costs and certain legal costs; and

*  $3 million of Panama restructuring costs.
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Depreciation and impairment. Depreciation and impairment decreased by $95 million from $299 million in FY 2012/13 to $204 million in FY 2013/14 as a
14% reduction in the Caribbean charge following impairments in the prior year was partly offset by the impact of increased investment in Panama, and an
impairment charge of $86 million in the Caribbean due to difficult trading and economic conditions.

Amortisation. Amortisation decreased by $10 million, or 24%, from $41 million in FY 2012/13 to $31 million in FY 2013/14, principally due to the reduction
in capital investment in intangible assets.

Other operating income. There was no other operating income in FY 2013/14, compared to $10 million of other operating income in FY 2012/13, which was
principally composed of a foreign exchange translation gain of $8 million related to CWC’s UK pension schemes, $1 million of gains on disposal of property,
plant and equipment and $2 million of compensation received from a supplier.

Other operating expense. Other operating expense increased by $9 million, or 150%, from $6 million in FY 2012/13 to $15 million in FY 2013/14 due to
foreign exchange translation losses related to CWC’s UK pension schemes in FY 2013/14. The $6 million other operating expense in FY 2012/13 included $4

million of hurricane related costs in the Caribbean and $2 million of transaction costs relating to the then proposed Monaco Disposal.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates. The following table sets forth the breakdown of CWC’s share of profits of joint ventures for the periods
indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2014 2013
(in millions of $)
Trinidad and Tobago (TSTT) (62) 8
Other(1) — 2
Total (62) 10

(1) Other comprises CWC’s joint venture in the Solomon Islands, Soltel and the Seychelles Cable System. In October 2014, CWC sold its stake in Soltel.

CW(C’s share of results from joint ventures decreased by $72 million from a $10 million profit in FY 2012/13 to a $62 million loss in FY 2013/14. TSTT
revenue was up 2% in the period as mobile data usage increased, but the profit declined significantly due to a $67 million charge largely related to a voluntary
separation scheme.

Total operating profit. Total operating profit decreased by $81 million, from $141 million in FY 2012/13 to $60 million in FY 2013/14, principally due to the
share of loss for TSTT, as well as a decrease in revenue.

Finance income. Finance income decreased by $2 million, or 25%, from $8 million in FY 2012/13 to $6 million in FY 2013/14 due to losses on balance sheet
revaluation of derivative contracts.

Finance expense. Finance expense increased by $12 million, or 8%, from $152 million in FY 2012/13 to $164 million in FY 2013/14, principally due to a
charge of $25 million reflecting additional interest, early redemption charges and capitalized finance transaction costs written off as a result of the early
redemption of the 7.75% Secured Notes in February 2014. This was partially offset by a decrease predominantly due to the redemption in FY 2012/13 of
£200 million principal amount of a sterling bond repaid in August 2012.

Loss for the period from continuing operations. CWC’s loss from continuing operations increased by $81 million from $49 million in FY 2012/13 to $130
million in FY 2013/14.

Profit for the period from discontinued operations. This consists primarily of profits or losses arising in FY 2013/14 and FY 2012/13 from the classification
of each of the operations in Macau, Monaco and the Islands as a discontinued operation by virtue of the Macau Disposal, Monaco Disposal and the Islands
Disposal, respectively. In FY 2013/14 and FY 2012/13, CWC recognized profit from discontinued operations of $1,081 million and $219 million,
respectively.
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Segments
Panama

Revenue. Revenue decreased by $10 million, or 2%, from $586 million in FY 2012/13 to $576 million in FY 2013/14, mainly driven by the transfer of
capacity services from the Panama segment to wholesale solutions in the other and eliminations segment.

The following table sets forth segment revenue of CWC’s four revenue streams for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2014 2013 Change
(in millions of $) %
Mobile 336 323 4
Broadband and video 64 60 7
Fixed voice 113 122 )
Managed services and other 63 81 (22)
Total 576 586 1)

Mobile revenue increased by $13 million, or 4%, from $323 million in FY 2012/13 to $336 million in FY 2013/14, principally due to the growth in the
number of subscribers and data revenue. Mobile ARPU was lower than in the prior year due to reduced inbound roaming traffic and lower rates due to
competitive pressures and voice usage.

Broadband and video revenue increased by $4 million, or 7%, from $60 million in FY 2012/13 to $64 million in FY 2013/14, as the number of subscribers for
broadband increased by 4% and the number of video subscribers increased by 14%.

Fixed voice revenue decreased by $9 million, or 7%, from $122 million in FY 2012/13 to $113 million in FY 2013/14, as an increase in international transit
traffic revenue was more than offset by lower national usage. Subscriber numbers continued to decrease as customers substituted to other products, but the
rate of decline slowed by 2% due to the impact of “triple play” offerings.

Managed services and other revenue decreased by $18 million, or 22%, from $81 million in FY 2012/13 to $63 million in FY 2013/14, principally due to the
transfer of capacity services from the Panama segment to wholesale solutions in the other and eliminations segment.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales decreased by $7 million, or 4%, from $189 million in FY 2012/13 to $182 million in FY 2013/14, principally due to the transfer of
capacity services from the Panama segment to wholesale solutions in the other and eliminations segment.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs decreased by $3 million, or 2%, from $158 million in FY 2012/13 to
$155 million in FY 2013/14, principally due to increased productivity following cost reduction initiatives.

Caribbean

Revenue. Revenue decreased by $67 million, or 9%, from $758 million in FY 2012/13 to $691 million in FY 2013/14. Declines in fixed voice and managed
services and other revenue were the main reasons for the decrease.
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The following table sets forth segment revenue of CWC’s four revenue streams for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2014 2013 Change
(in millions of $) %
Mobile 273 273 —
Broadband and video 105 106 (@]
Fixed voice 207 235 (12)
Managed services and other 106 144 (26)
Total 691 758 )

Mobile revenue was in line with the revenue in the prior year, with increasing demand for mobile data offset by declining voice activity. Jamaica momentum
continued following a further fall in mobile termination rates as a positive response to new pricing propositions. Over the year, there was a 31% rise in
Jamaica subscribers to 705,000, and mobile service revenue grew by $7 million or 12% (28% higher on a constant currency basis). ARPU for the Caribbean
was broadly in line with the prior year.

Broadband and video revenue was in line with the revenue in the prior year. The number of subscribers increased 8% for broadband and 21% for video;
however, the competitive pricing pressure resulted in a lower ARPU, resulting in flat revenue. TV subscribers have grown by 21% compared to the prior year
following the introduction of fiber-based services in Barbados and the Cayman Islands.

Fixed voice revenue decreased by $28 million, or 12%, from $235 million in FY 2012/13 to $207 million for FY 2013/14. A 10% fall in ARPU, driven
mainly by rate reductions due to competition and bundling, as well as by lower termination rates across the region, which was exacerbated by a 3% drop in
the number of subscribers.

Managed services and other revenue decreased by $38 million, or 26%, from $144 million in FY 2012/13 to $106 million in FY 2013/14 following the
outsourcing of CWC’s Caribbean directory businesses.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales decreased by $50 million, or 25%, from $203 million in FY 2012/13 to $153 million in FY 2013/14, principally due to the
decrease in revenue.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs decreased by $32 million, or 8%, from $400 million in FY 2012/13 to
$368 million in FY 2013/14 due to the benefits of the ongoing cost reduction initiatives.

BTC

Revenue. Revenue decreased by $8 million, or 2%, to $354 million in FY 2013/14, compared to revenue of $362 million in FY 2012/13, principally driven by
the movement from fixed voice to mobile voice and data services.

The following table sets forth segment revenue of CWC’s four revenue streams for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2014 2013 Change
(in millions of $) %
Mobile 258 254 2
Broadband and video 15 14 7
Fixed voice 45 54 17)
Managed services and other 36 40 (10)
Total 354 362 )
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Mobile revenue increased by $4 million, or 2%, from $254 million in FY 2012/13 to $258 million in FY 2013/14 due to the successful launch of LTE, which
led to the growth of mobile data by 13%. ARPU was broadly in line with the prior year.

Broadband and video revenue was flat. Subscribers increased by 7% following increased uptake in fiber-based products due to higher speeds available.

Fixed voice revenue decreased by $9 million, or 17%, from $54 million in FY 2012/13 to $45 million in FY 2013/14, principally as a result of rate reductions
due to competition and bundling as well as by lower termination rates, which was compounded by a 3% drop in the subscriber base.

Managed services and other revenue decreased by $4 million, or 10%, from $40 million in FY 2012/13 to $36 million in FY 2013/14 due to a reduction in off
island capacity sales.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales was in line with the prior year.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs decreased by $16 million, or 9%, from $177 million in FY 2012/13 to
$161 million in FY 2013/14 due to the benefits of the ongoing cost reduction initiatives.

Seychelles

Revenue. Revenue of $53 million in FY 2013/14 increased by $8 million, or 18% compared to revenue of $44 million in FY 2012/13 principally due to
increased mobile voice and data services and broadband services.

The following table sets forth segment revenue of CWC’s four revenue streams for the periods indicated.

For the year ended March 31

2014 2013 Change
(in millions of $) %
Mobile 31 25 24
Broadband and video 10 7 43
Fixed voice 9 8 13
Managed services and other 3 4 (25)
Total 53 44 20

Mobile revenue increased by $6 million, or 24%, from $25 million in FY 2012/13 to $31 million in FY 2013/14 due to increased demand for voice and data
services.

Broadband and video revenue increased by $3 million, or 43%, from $7 million in FY 2012/13 to $10 million in FY 2013/14 due to increased broadband
subscribers.

Fixed voice revenue was in line during FY 2012/13 and FY 2013/14.
Managed services and other revenue were in line during FY 2012/13 and FY 2013/14.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales increased by $1 million, or 17%, from $6 million in FY 2012/13 to $7 million in FY 2013/14 due to higher mobile subscriber
costs.

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation. Operating costs increased by $3 million, or 13%, from $23 million in FY 2012/13 to
$26 million in FY 2013/14 due to adverse currency movements.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

CWC’s principal source of liquidity is cash flow from operations, supported by bank financing and issuances of debt in the capital markets. As of
September 30, 2015, CWC had cash and cash equivalents of $151 million, external indebtedness of $2,832 million (net of cash and cash equivalents) and
undrawn credit lines of $465 million under its $570 million senior secured revolving credit facility terminating in 2020 (which we refer to as Revolving
Credit Facility). (However, the available commitment is reduced by the £100 million in bilateral letters of credit (which we refer to as CFA Letters of Credit)
in favor of the trustee of the Superannuation Fund (which we refer to as the Superannuation Fund Trustee). See “—Cable and Wireless Superannuation
Fund.”

Upon closing of the Columbus Acquisition, CWC incurred $1,896 million of indebtedness (net of issuance costs), including the assumption of Columbus
Senior Notes of $1,234 million and borrowings to finance the Columbus Acquisition of $662 million. Following the application of the net proceeds of the
offering of SIFL’s $750 million 6.875% Senior Notes due 2022 (which we refer to as Senior Notes), the indebtedness incurred in connection with the
Columbus Acquisition was reduced to $1,234 million (reflecting only the Columbus Senior Notes). The indenture governing the Columbus Senior Notes
restrict CWC’s ability to access the liquidity of Columbus and its subsidiaries. In addition, CWC’s ability to access the liquidity of its subsidiaries may be
limited by tax and legal considerations and other factors.

In addition, CWC will incur reimbursement obligations if the CFA Letters of Credit are drawn upon by the Superannuation Fund Trustee. The financial
institutions that issued the CFA Letters of Credit may require CWC, while the CFA Letters of Credit are outstanding, to collateralize its reimbursement
obligations thereunder.

CWC’s principal uses of funds are cost of sales (primarily costs associated with network and interconnecting services) and operating costs (primarily
employee costs and network maintenance). CWC also invests in fixed assets to enhance its networks where it will increase future revenue. See “—Capital
Expenditure for Continuing Businesses.”

CWC’s Treasury manages its net interest-bearing debt and cash balances on a day-to-day basis. The Treasury is mandated to ensure that CWC has adequate
funding at all times to meet its projected requirements, and that funding is arranged on the most appropriate terms taking into account the circumstances of
CWC'’s funding requirements. Where appropriate, the Treasury will look to match the currency of debt with the carrying value of foreign currency
investments in order to hedge CWC'’s foreign currency net asset exposures. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, short-term deposits and other liquid
investments with maturity not exceeding three months. For a discussion of CWC'’s policies relating to the management of market risk, see “—Qualitative and
Quantitative Disclosures on Market Risk.”

Dividends

CWC declared a dividend of 4.00 U.S. cents per share for FY 2014/15, of which 1.33 U.S. cents per share was paid in January 2015. At CWC'’s annual
general meeting held July 21, 2015, shareholders approved a final dividend (being the balance of the 4.00 U.S. cents per share) for FY 2014/15 of 2.67 U.S.
cents per share. The final dividend payment of approximately $115.6 million was made on August 7, 2015 and was funded by borrowing under the Revolving
Credit Facility and cash on hand.
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Cash Flow for the Periods Indicated

For the six months ended
September 30 For the year ended March 31
2015 2014 2015 2014 2013
(in millions of $)

In respect of continuing operations

Net cash from operating activities 118 150 379 367 429
Net cash used in investing activities (262) (225) (1,169) (351) (264)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (108) (98) 582 (1,289) (273)
In respect of discontinued operations
Net cash from operating activities — 1 1 113 274
Net cash used in investing activities — 1) (1) (53) (85)
Net cash used in financing activities — — — 4) 93)
Disposal proceeds (net of cash disposed and transaction costs) for discontinued

operations — 403 403 1,127 —
Net
Net cash from operating activities 118 151 380 480 703
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (262) 177 (767) 723 (349)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (108) (98) 582 (1,293) (366)

Cash Flow from Operations
Comparison of HY 2015/16 with HY 2014/15

Cash flows from operating activities. Net cash generated from operating activities decreased by $32 million, or 21%, from $150 million in HY 2014/15 to
$118 million in HY 2015/16. The decrease was driven by the effect of the tax prepayment in Panama, an increase in receivables related to the Columbus
Carve-Out Entities, and increased inventory ahead of anticipated higher smartphone sales during the holiday season.

CWC generated $1 million in cash from discontinued operations in HY 2014/15, compared to $ nil in HY 2015/16.

Cash flows from investing activities. Net cash used in investing activities increased by $37 million, or 16%, from $225 million in HY 2014/15 to $262 million
in HY 2015/16, primarily reflecting purchases of property, plant and equipment.

In addition, CWC generated $403 million from disposals in HY 2014/15, offset by the use of $1 million, compared to $ nil in HY 2015/16.

Cash flows from financing activities. Net cash used in financing activities increased by $10 million, or 10%, from $98 million in HY 2014/15 to $108 million
in HY 2015/16, reflecting the borrowings incurred and repaid in connection with the Columbus Acquisition, an increase in dividends paid to shareholders
($49 million increase), a decrease in non-controlling interests ($10 million decrease) and higher interest (higher by $64 million) due to the increase in CWC'’s
total debt following the Columbus Acquisition and the Columbus integration into the CWC Group.

The net cash outflow during HY 2015/16 included $77 million of integration costs for the Columbus Group and the restructuring programmes in the
Caribbean, The Bahamas and Panama. CWC also made a $48 million contribution to the Superannuation Fund and does not anticipate making further
payments to the Superannuation Fund until the first half of the year ending March 31, 2017. (See “—Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund”). CWC also
spent $47 million to settle the Columbus Group’s employee incentivization programmes following the completion of the Columbus Acquisition. Columbus
Acquisition related fees of $67 million, expensed in FY 2014/15, were paid during HY 2015/16.
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Comparison of FY 2014/15 with FY 2013/14

Cash flows from operating activities. Net cash generated from operating activities increased by $12 million, or 3%, from $367 million in FY 2013/14 to $379
million in FY 2014/15. The increase was driven by improved operating profit before taxes.

CWC generated $1 million in cash from discontinued operations in FY 2014/15, compared to $113 million in FY 2013/14.

Cash flows from investing activities. Net cash used in investing activities increased by $818 million from $351 million in FY 2013/14 to $1,169 million in FY
2014/15, primarily reflecting the use of cash to purchase Columbus.

In addition, CWC generated $403 million from disposals in FY 2014/15, compared to the $1,127 million generated from disposals in FY 2013/14, offset by
use of $1 million of cash in FY 2014/15 (FY 2013/14: ($53 million)).

Cash flows from financing activities. Net cash used in financing activities increased by $1,871 million from outflow of $1,289 million in FY 2013/14 to
inflow of $582 million in FY 2014/15, reflecting the early redemption of the 7.75% Secured Notes and the repayment of the borrowings under a revolving
credit facility, under which $360 million was drawn as of March 31, 2013, in FY 2013/14, which was not repeated in FY 2014/15.

Comparison of FY 2013/14 with FY 2012/13

Cash flows from operating activities. Net cash generated from operating activities decreased by $62 million, or 14%, from $429 million in FY 2012/13 to
$367 million in FY 2013/14. CWC also generated $113 million in discontinued operations in FY 2013/14, compared to $274 million in FY 2012/13.

Cash flows from investing activities. Net cash used in investing activities increased by $87 million, or 33%, from $264 million in FY 2012/13 to $351 million
in FY 2013/14, reflecting the purchase of intangible assets comprised of spectrum licenses in Panama and the Caribbean.

In addition, CWC generated $1,127 million from disposals in FY 2013/14, compared to an outflow of $85 million from discontinued operations in FY
2012/13.

Cash flows from financing activities. Net cash used in financing activities increased by $1,016 million from $273 million in FY 2012/13 to $1,289 million in
FY 2013/14, reflecting the early redemption of the 7.75% Secured Notes in February 2014 and the repayment of the borrowings under a revolving credit
facility, under which $360 million was drawn as of March 31, 2013.
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Historical Cash and Debt

The following table sets forth CWC'’s cash and debt position as of the dates indicated.

As of
September 30 As of March 31
2015 2015 2014 2013
(in millions of $)
Cash and cash equivalents 151 402 205 152
Interest-bearing debt:
Senior Notes 725 — — —
Senior Secured Notes 394 394 393 391
7.75% Secured Notes — — — 493
Revolving Credit Facilities 105 — — 360
2019 Sterling Bonds 223 219 242 224
Columbus Senior Notes 1,235 1,234 — —
Senior Secured Term Loan — 374 — —
Senior Unsecured Term Loan — 288 — —
Other regional debt facilities 301 259 220 335
Total debt 2,983 2,768 855 1,803
Net debt 2,832 2,366 650 1,651
Capital Expenditures
For the six months ended
September 30 For the year ended March 31
2015 2014 2015 2014 2013
(in millions of $)
Cash capital expenditures 265 190 442 251 263

Comparison of HY 2015/16 with HY 2014/15

Cash capital expenditures for HY 2015/16 were $265 million, an increase of $75 million, or 39%, compared to $190 million for HY 2014/15. Mobile
investment accounted for the majority of the capital expenditures in HY 2015/16 (40% of the capital expenditures in balance sheet terms), the next largest
investment area was in fixed networks (35% of the capital expenditures in balance sheet terms), spent on fiber upgrades and fiber roll-out to additional areas,
11% of the capital expenditures (in balance sheet terms) was spent on increasing international capacity and improving CWC’s portfolio of business-to-
business and business-to-governments products. Six percent of the capital expenditures were investments in video infrastructure, as the video products were
prepared for launch in new geographies. The remainder of capital expenditures were spent on back office and IT systems as part of the integration process for
the Columbus Group.

Comparison of FY 2014/15 with FY 2013/14

Cash capital expenditures for FY 2014/15 were $442 million, an increase of $191 million, or 76%, compared to $251 million in FY 2013/14, driven by the
capital expenditures under the first year of CWC’s Project Marlin capital expenditure plan. CWC’s principal investments in FY 2014/15 related to the
improvement of its mobile networks and accounted for 49% of the capital expenditures: the launch of LTE services in several markets and HSPA+ services in
all 13 Caribbean markets. CWC also improved its fixed networks, which included the roll-out of over two thousand kilometers of terrestrial fiber optic cables
across all of CWC’s markets and accounted for 27% of its capital expenditures. CWC also made capital investments to increase its range of products
(accounting for 12%) and strengthen its back office infrastructure (accounting for 12%). Key projects included expenditures of $126 million in Panama, $206
million in the Caribbean markets and $75 million in The Bahamas.
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Comparison of FY 2013/14 with FY 2012/13

Cash capital expenditures for FY 2013/14 were $251 million, a decrease of $12 million, or 5%, compared to $263 million in FY 2012/13. The capital
expenditures in FY 2012/13 also included $15 million spent on the Monaco operations, which CWC has since sold. In FY 2013/14, its principal mobile
investments were in HSPA+ mobile data networks supporting smartphone sales in Panama, The Bahamas and Antigua & Barbuda, as well as upgrades to the
faster LTE networks in The Bahamas and the Cayman Islands. CWC also made selective fiber network investments in Barbados and the Cayman Islands to
offer high speed broadband services. CWC also continued to advance its billing and customer relationship management systems.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

CWC has no off-balance sheet arrangements. CWC does, however, have capital and operating commitments, guarantees and contingent liabilities not
reflected in its financial statements.

Commitments

CWC had capital commitments at September 30, 2015 relating to the purchase of plant and equipment of $117 million (March 31, 2015: $45 million,
March 31, 2014: $92 million). No provision was made for these commitments.

By reason of the Columbus Acquisition, CWC has a commitment based on an arrangement entered into in 2012 by Columbus with one of its customers
(which we refer to as the Columbus Counterparty) whereby the Columbus Counterparty transferred ownership of the Haiti Link to Columbus. In exchange for
transferring ownership, the Columbus Counterparty received capacity on the Haiti Link and other consideration, which is recorded as deferred revenue. Also
as part of the arrangement, Columbus and the Columbus Counterparty are entitled to 50% each of the revenue collected from the sale or lease of capacity on
the Haiti Link until such time as the Columbus Counterparty has recovered the $12 million cost it incurred to construct the Haiti Link, after which Columbus
is entitled to all revenues generated from the Haiti Link.

On October 22, 2004, one of CWC’s subsidiaries became a party to the ACMA. ACMA is a consortium of subsea cable systems that collectively share the
standing costs of subsea cable system maintenance based on the number of kilometers of cable that comprises their respective cable system. If the costs of
repairing individual cable faults are in excess of the standing charges, they are borne by the respective cable system. The original ACMA contract was twice
renewed and recently extended for an additional period expiring on December 31, 2017. The subsidiary’s estimated annual minimum payments related to
standing charges, net of any credits per contractual terms are approximately $3 million.

In addition, CWC has a number of operating commitments arising in the ordinary course of its business. The most significant of these relate to network
operating and maintenance costs, including for outsourced services and minimum spending commitments thereunder. In the event of default of another party,
CWC may be liable for additional contributions under the terms of the agreements.

CWOC leases land and buildings and networks under various lease agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalations, clauses and renewal rights. The
aggregate future minimum lease payments under operating leases as of September 30, 2015, March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014 were as follows:

As of September 30 As of March 31
2015 2015 2014
(in millions of $)
No later than one year 44 49 35
Later than one year but not later than five years 106 107 76
Later than five years 29 30 20
Total minimum operating lease payments 179 186 131
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Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

Guarantees as of September 30, 2015 for which no provision has been made in the financial statements are as follows (in millions of $):

Trading guarantees 38
Other guarantees 477
Total guarantees 515

Trading guarantees principally comprise performance bonds issued in the normal course of business, guaranteeing that CWC will meet its obligations to
complete projects in accordance with the contractual terms and conditions. The guarantees contain a clause that they will be terminated on final acceptance of
work to be done under the contract.

Other guarantees include guarantees for financial obligations principally in respect of business disposals, letters of credit, property and other leases.

CWC has, as is customary in such agreements, given guarantees and indemnities in relation to a number of disposals of subsidiary undertakings in prior years.
Generally, liability has been capped at no more than the value of the sales proceeds, although some uncapped indemnities have been given. In relation to the
Islands Disposal, CWC has provided a guarantee for tax and all other liabilities up to a cap of $300 million until April 2020 in respect of tax-related claims.
CWC also provided indemnities in respect of the Monaco Disposal, for up to $150 million in respect of tax-related claims (until May 20, 2020) and for all
other indemnity claims (until March 31, 2016). CWC also gives warranties and indemnities in relation to certain agreements, including facility sharing
agreements. Some of these agreements do not contain liability caps. In the ordinary course of business, CWC is engaged in litigation proceedings, regulatory
claims, investigations and reviews.

CWC may also be required to provide performance and payment guarantees in respect of its contractual obligations under key supplier or customer
arrangements. Such guarantees terminate upon full satisfaction of the relevant performance and/or payment obligations.

CWC considers that adequate allowance has been made in respect of these matters and does not expect the ultimate resolution of the actions to which CWC
was a party to have a materially adverse impact on its financial position.

Under a funding agreement with the Superannuation Fund Trustee, CWC has procured the delivery of the CFA Letters of Credit to the Superannuation Fund
Trustee in the aggregate amount of £100 million. CWC may be required to collateralize its reimbursement obligations thereunder.

As part of the demerger in March 2010 of Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc and its subsidiaries (which we refer to as the Cable & Wireless Worldwide Group)
from the group comprising Cable and Wireless plc (subsequently renamed Cable & Wireless Limited after the demerger) and its subsidiaries, CWC and

Cable & Wireless Worldwide agreed pursuant to a separation agreement to provide certain customary indemnities on a reciprocal basis in respect of liabilities
that CWC may incur but that relate exclusively to the Cable & Wireless Worldwide Group and vice versa and in respect of an agreed proportion of liabilities
that do not relate exclusively to one or the other. One source of potential indemnification claims involves a former insurance operation (Pender), which ceased
to underwrite new business in April 2003. Potentially significant insurance claims have been made against Pender, which have given rise to uncertainties and
potential disputes with reinsurers. Significant progress has been made in resolving these claims. Details of these insurance claims and potential claims are not
disclosed as such disclosure may be prejudicial to the outcome of such claims. CWC does not have any significant special purpose vehicles used for financing
that are not consolidated or disclosed.

F-32



Table of Contents

Taxation

The jurisdictions in which CWC operates have a wide range of tax rates in place, from nil to 37.6%. In addition, CWC incurs withholding taxes on certain of
its internal recharges and dividends received from its subsidiaries and joint ventures. The result is that the effective tax rate for the whole business varies from
year to year based on the mix of profits from the individual businesses, the extent to which profits are remitted as dividends and the distribution of recharges
across individual businesses. The effective tax rate was 9% in FY 2014/15, 4% in FY 2013/14 and 30% in FY 2012/13. The change in the effective tax rates
during the periods presented is mostly attributed to reduction in corporate tax rates in certain jurisdictions in which CWC operates and favorable changes in
tax reserves and audit resolutions. In addition, as CWC is domiciled in the United Kingdom, it is subject to UK tax on any profits realized or deemed to be
realized in the United Kingdom. CWC is subject to routine audits in the various jurisdictions where it operates.

Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures on Market Risk
Treasury Policy

CWC’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. CWC’s
overall risk management program seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

CWC’s treasury operations are managed on the basis of policies and authorities approved by the Board. Day-to-day management of treasury activities is
delegated to the Treasury, within specified financial limits for each type of transaction and counterparty.

To the extent that subsidiaries undertake treasury transactions, these are governed by Group policies and delegated authorities. Material subsidiary positions
are monitored by the Treasury. Where appropriate, transactions are reported to the Board. All subsidiaries are required to report details of their cash and debt
positions to the Treasury on a monthly basis.

The key responsibilities of the Treasury include funding, investment of surplus cash and the management of interest rate and foreign currency risk. The
majority of CWC’s cash resources and borrowings are managed centrally by the Treasury.

From time to time, CWC uses derivatives, including forward foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps and options where
appropriate in the management of its foreign currency and interest rate exposures. The use of these instruments is in accordance with strategies agreed from
time to time by the Treasury, subject to policies approved by the Board. Derivatives are not used for trading or speculative purposes and derivative
transactions and positions are monitored and reported by the Treasury on a regular basis and are subject to policies adopted by the Board.

Exchange Rate Risk

The U.S. dollar is CWC’s presentational currency, as it is its predominant transaction currency.

CWC trades in many countries and territories and a proportion of its revenue is generated in currencies other than U.S. dollars, notably the Jamaican dollar
and the Seychelles rupee. CWC is exposed to movements in exchange rates in relation to non-U.S. dollar currency payments (including external dividends,
the London headquarters costs, pension and share repurchase costs), dividend income from foreign subsidiaries, reported profits of foreign subsidiaries and
the net asset carrying value of non-U.S. dollar investments. Exchange risk is managed centrally (by the Treasury) on a matching cash flow basis including
forecast foreign currency cash repatriation inflows from subsidiaries and forecast foreign currency payments.
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Where appropriate, CWC manages its exposure to movements in exchange rates on a net basis and uses forward foreign exchange contracts and other
derivative and financial instruments to reduce the exposures created where currencies do not naturally offset in the short term. CWC also undertakes hedges
to minimize the exposure to individual transactions that create significant foreign exchange exposures for the CWC Group, where appropriate. Where cost-
effective and possible, foreign subsidiaries are financed in their domestic currency to minimize the impact of translation of foreign currency denominated
borrowings.

The reported income and expenses of CWC’s foreign operations are translated at exchange rates closely approximating the rate at the date of the transaction.
See note 5.1.1 of the CWC Annual Financial Statements for the key exchange rates used. In broad terms, based on financial assets and liabilities as of
September 30, 2015, the impact of a unilateral 10% weakening of the U.S. dollar would have been to decrease profit for HY 2015/16 by $38 million (FY
2014/15: decreased by $34 million; FY 2013/14: decreased by $42 million).

Due to the Columbus Acquisition, CWC has also become exposed to fluctuations in the value of other currencies, including the Colombian Peso and gained
increased levels of exposure to certain currencies, including the Trinidad and Tobago dollar, the Barbadian dollar and Jamaican dollar.

As part of the overall policy of managing the exposure arising from foreign exchange movements relating to the net carrying value of overseas investments,
CWC may, from time to time, elect to match certain foreign currency liabilities against the carrying value of foreign investments.

Interest Rate Risk

CWC is exposed to movements in interest rates on its surplus cash balances and variable rate loans, although there is a degree of offset between the two. The
Treasury may seek to reduce volatility by fixing a proportion of this interest rate exposure while taking account of prevailing market conditions as
appropriate. There were no interest rate derivatives in place during any of the historical periods presented.

At September 30, 2015, 91% of CWC'’s loans were at a fixed rate. A reduction in interest rates would have an unfavorable impact upon the fair value of
CWC’s fixed-rate borrowings. However, no debt is held for trading purposes and it is intended that it will be kept in place until maturity. As a result, there is
no exposure to fair value loss on fixed-rate debt and as such, it has not been modeled.

A one percentage point increase in interest rates would have a $2 million impact on the income received from CWC’s surplus cash balances and a $(3) million
impact on CWC’s floating rate borrowings as of September 30, 2015. The impact on equity would be limited to the impact on profit or loss.

Credit Risk

Cash deposits and similar financial instruments give rise to credit risk, which represents the loss that would be recognized if the counterparty failed to perform
as contracted. Management seeks to manage this risk by ensuring that the counterparties to all but a small proportion of CWC’s financial instruments are its
core relationship banks, which are rated A1 short-term and/or AA- long-term (or better) by Standard & Poor’s Credit Market Services Europe Limited (or
equivalent by Moody’s Investors Service Limited and/or Fitch Ratings Ltd). The credit rating of these counterparties is monitored on a continuing basis.

The types of instruments used for investment of funds are prescribed in CWC’s treasury policies approved by the Board. These policies contain limits on
exposure for the Group as a whole to any one counterparty of approximately $100 million.

Liquidity Risk
At September 30, 2015, CWC had cash and cash equivalents of $151 million. These amounts are highly liquid and are a significant component of its overall

liquidity and capital resources. At that date, CWC also has available undrawn commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility of $465 million. However,
the available commitment is reduced by the £100 million CFA Letters of Credit.
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Liquidity forecasts are produced on a regular basis to ensure the utilization of current facilities is optimized, to ensure covenant compliance and that medium-
term liquidity is maintained and for the purpose of identifying long-term strategic funding requirements. The Directors also regularly assess CWC’s balance
of capital and debt funding.

At September 30, 2015, approximately 15% of CWC'’s cash was invested in short-term bank deposits and money market funds.

Certain foreign subsidiaries operate in jurisdictions that may restrict the ability to repatriate cash to CWC from time to time. Where restrictions are severe,
local cash balances are excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes contractual obligations, commercial commitments and principal payments under debt instruments as of September 30, 2015
and is based on exchange rates at that date.

Payments due by period

Less than 1- 2- 1- More than
Total 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years 5 years
(in millions of $)
Long-term debt obligations(1)(2) 2,983 257 51 703 — 1,972
Capital commitments(3) 117 117 — — — —
Operating leases(4) 179 44 — — 106 29
Total contractual obligations(5) 3,279 418 51 703 106 2,001

(1) Amounts include principal related to the Columbus Senior Notes, the Senior Notes, the Senior Secured Notes, the Sterling Bonds due 2019 issued by
Cable and Wireless International Finance B.V. (which we refer to as the 2019 Sterling Bonds), the amounts due under the Revolving Credit Facility and
the subsidiary level debt of $301 million, primarily U.S. dollar-denominated (as of September 30, 2015), held by various subsidiaries, with the majority
in Panama (excluding the Columbus Senior Notes). These amounts do not include interest.

(2) Comprises amounts as presented under IFRS on the statement of financial position, in which indebtedness is stated as net proceeds received (i.e.,
including any premium or discount and after deducting issuance costs). Actual amounts payable at maturity will be based on the outstanding principal
amount at such time.

(3) Comprises commitments relating to purchases of property, plant and equipment.

(4)  Primarily comprises property leases.

(5) Amounts do not reflect minimum order commitments under supply agreements. Also does not reflect CWC’s potential obligations under the Put
Options to repurchase shares issued to certain sellers of Columbus, the exercise of which is in the sole discretion of the option holders and not CWC,
and the obligations in respect of which are unquantifiable as they are dependent on the number of CWC Shares with respect to which the option holders
elect to exercise their Put Options. The exercise price per a CWC Share under the Put Options is $0.7349. The decision by the option holders whether
or not to exercise their individual Put Options will be driven, in large part, by the price of CWC Shares. The Put Options are expected to cease to be
effective upon the completion of the Acquisition.

Pensions

CWC operates defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes for its current and former UK and overseas employees.

Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund

In the United Kingdom, Cable & Wireless Limited is the principal employer of the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund, a multi-employer pension
scheme that provides defined benefits and defined contribution
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pension benefits for certain current and former employees of the Group. The Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund has been closed to new defined benefit
members since 1998. The Lifetime Benefits Plan is a section of the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund that provides defined contribution benefits to
members.

The assets of the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund are held by the Superannuation Fund Trustee separately from the Group. The Superannuation Fund
Trustee has the power to trigger the winding-up of the Superannuation Fund if it resolves that it is in the best interests of the fund members as a whole. If the
Superannuation Fund Trustee uses this power, the participating employers would become liable by statute to make contributions to the pension scheme to
remove any deficit calculated on the conservative, buy-out basis, enabling the trustee of the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund to purchase individual
annuity policies for all members of the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund.

The latest full actuarial valuation of the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund was carried out as of March 31, 2013 by the Cable and Wireless
Superannuation Fund’s independent actuaries. On an ongoing basis, there was a deficit of $166 million and on a buy-out basis, there was a deficit of $488
million. The ongoing funding position is expected to have deteriorated since the valuation as of March 31, 2013 and the next actuarial valuation may therefore
result in higher ongoing funding obligations of the Group companies that participate in the scheme. On an ongoing basis, at September 30, 2015, the Cable
and Wireless Superannuation Fund had a deficit of £94 million ($158 million).

Funding of the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund

CWC made a payment of £30 million in July 2014 and a payment of £31 million in April 2015, as previously agreed with the Superannuation Fund Trustee,
and agreed to make a further payment of £33 million in April 2016 to the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund.

In addition, CWC concluded a supplementary funding agreement with the Superannuation Fund Trustee whereby CWC has agreed to eliminate the ongoing
funding deficit by April 2019, with payments in 2017, 2018 and 2019 being based on the outcome of the next triennial actuarial valuation and being in the
range of £0 — £23 million each year as necessary to eliminate the ongoing funding deficit. The next triennial actuarial valuation of the Cable and Wireless
Superannuation Fund is due as of March 31, 2016. As mentioned above, however, even if the ongoing funding deficit in the Cable and Wireless
Superannuation Fund is eliminated, there would still be substantial exposure for Cable and Wireless Communications and other group companies as a result
of the continuing deficit in the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund on a buy-out basis.

CWC and SIFL are parties to a funding agreement with respect to the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund with the Superannuation Fund Trustee, which
we refer to as the Contingent Funding Agreement. The Contingent Funding Agreement entitles the Superannuation Fund Trustee to require CWC or SIFL to
provide it with letters of credit or a cash escrow arrangement in the amount of £100 million upon the occurrence of certain events. Such events occurred in
connection with the Columbus Acquisition. CWC provided to the Superannuation Fund Trustee the CFA Letters of Credit in the aggregate amount of

£100 million, which were provided under the Revolving Credit Facility by certain of the lenders thereunder.

Pursuant to the Contingent Funding Agreement, any CFA Letters Of Credit would remain in place until the earlier of such time as, among other things, in the
case of certain triggering events (including the incurrence of secured debt above an agreed level), the relevant triggering event is cured, in the case of certain
other triggering events, the end of the twelve-month period ending March 31 or September 30, respectively, during which the relevant triggering event is
cured, the Superannuation Fund Trustee has agreed to an earlier lapse or there is no longer a deficit in the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund. Further,
upon the occurrence of certain other default or insolvency-related events and provided there is a deficit in the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund, the
Contingent Funding Agreement entitles the Superannuation Fund Trustee to draw on any such CFA Letters of Credit to fund the deficit of the Cable and
Wireless Superannuation Fund at such time and return any
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remaining balance to CWC or, if unable to make such a drawing, require CWC or SIFL, as the case may be, to make a cash contribution of an amount of up to
£100 million to the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund to fund the deficit thereunder at such time. As mentioned above, however, even if the ongoing
funding deficit in the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund is eliminated there would still be substantial exposure for CWC and other group companies as
a result of the continuing deficit in the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund on a buy-out basis.

In addition, CWC and certain other CWC Group companies have agreed to guarantee the pension obligations of the principal employer and other Group
companies of the Cable and Wireless Superannuation Fund.

Merchant Navy Officers Pension Fund (MNOPF)

CWC has participated in the MNOPF, which is a defined benefit multiemployer pension plan available to certain of its former British shipboard officers. The
MNOFPF is divided into two sections, the New Section and the Old Section, each of which covers a different group of participants, with the Old Section closed
to further benefit accrual and the New Section only closed to new membership. As of March 31, 2015, the New Section was estimated to have a funding
deficit.

The MNOPF trustee had previously determined that the New Section funding was inadequate based on CWC'’s actuarially determined deficit. All of any New
Section deficit liability that CWC may have relates to the obligations of Cable & Wireless Marine Limited (CWC’s cable-laying operation) between April
1978 and April 26, 1999, i.e., the date Cable & Wireless Marine Limited was sold to Global Crossing. CWC has not been able to record its estimated share of
the ultimate New Section deficit, as the deficit was and remains uncertain. The amount of CWC'’s share of the New Section’s ultimate deficit could vary
considerably if different assumptions and estimates are used to estimate the deficit. Therefore, CWC expenses its portion of any deficit as amounts are
invoiced by, and become due and payable to, the MNOPF trustee. As of September 30, 2015, CWC has scheduled payments to MNOPF through September
2020 totaling £1.7 million, relating to the actuarial valuations made by the MNOPF trustee as of March 31, 2006, 2009 and 2012 by installments. It is
possible that the MNOPF trustee may invoice CWC in the future for additional amounts.

As of September 30, 2015, the MNOPF’s Old Section was estimated to have a funding surplus. If the Old Section has a funding deficit in the future, then it
could result in the MNOPF trustee also invoicing CWC for amounts covering its share of the deficit if they believe that the Old Section requires further
contributions. CWC will record any required Old Section contributions in the same manner as the New Section. CWC'’s share of the Old Section deficit, if
any, which covers employees employed prior to 1978, is not currently known and, accordingly, its share of any such contribution is not currently
determinable.

In addition, its share of any deficit under either the Old Section or the New Section would increase to the extent that other employer participants are allowed
to leave the scheme or become insolvent. It is believed that there are currently over 350 participating employers in the MNOPF. Currently, the known
estimated outflow in respect of the MNOPF is not expected to have a materially adverse impact on its financial position; however, due to the uncertainty as to
potential liability were CWC to be required to make further contributions to the Old Section, New Section and/or were other participating employers to exit or
become insolvent, the potential size of its ultimate liability is not quantifiable.

Other Schemes

CWC operates defined benefit pension schemes in Jamaica and Barbados. The schemes are closed to new entrants and the Jamaican scheme is also closed to
future accrual. The Jamaican scheme owns an insurance policy which matches in full the value of the defined benefit liabilities. CWC’s other defined benefit
pension scheme had a surplus as of September 30, 2015 on an ongoing basis of $10 million ($14 million as of March 31, 2015; $17 million as of March 31,
2014).
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CWC also has unfunded liabilities in the United Kingdom relating to pension provisions for former directors and other senior employees in respect of their
earnings in excess of the previous Inland Revenue salary cap. As of September 30, 2015, on an ongoing basis, CWC’s liabilities to its UK unfunded schemes
were £30 million (£32 million as of March 31, 2015; £29 million as of March 31, 2014). The Group holds investments in gilts of £24 million as at
September 30, 2015 to partially back the UK unfunded pension liabilities.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying its accounting policies. The Directors consider that of CWC'’s significant IFRS accounting policies, the following are important to its
financial condition and results and involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity, and are therefore considered critical.

Revenue Recognition

Judgment is required in assessing the application of revenue recognition principles and the specific guidance in respect of CWC'’s revenue. This includes the
allocation of revenue between multiple deliverables, such as the sale value of telecommunications equipment and ongoing service where such items are sold
as part of a bundled package.

Revenue, which excludes discounts, value added tax and similar sales taxes, represents the amount receivable in respect of services provided to customers. It
includes sales to joint ventures but does not include sales by joint ventures or sales between CWC’s group companies.

Revenue from services is recognized as the services are provided. In respect of services invoiced in advance, amounts are deferred until provision of the
service.

Amounts payable by other telecommunications operators are recognized as the services are provided. Charges are negotiated separately and are subject to
continual review. Revenue generated through the provision of these services is accounted for gross of any amounts payable to other telecommunications
operators for interconnect fees.

Revenue from mobile, broadband, video and fixed voice products represents amounts charged to customers in respect of monthly access charges, airtime and
usage, messaging, and other telecommunications services. This includes data services and information provision and revenue from the sale of equipment,
including handsets.

Monthly access charges from mobile, broadband, video and fixed voice products are invoiced and recorded as part of a periodic billing cycle. Airtime, either
from contract customers as part of the invoiced amount or from prepaid customers through the sale of prepaid cards, is recorded in the period in which the
customer uses the service. Unbilled revenue resulting from services provided to contract customers from the billing cycle date to the end of each period is
accrued. Unearned monthly access charges relating to periods after each accounting period are deferred.

CWC earns revenue from the transmission of content and traffic on its network originated by third-party providers. CWC assesses whether revenue should be
recorded gross as principal or net as agent, based on the features of such arrangements including the following factors:

*  whether CWC holds itself out as an agent;
»  whether CWC has latitude for establishing the price, either directly or indirectly, for example by providing additional services;

+  provision of customer remedies;
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*  whether CWC has the primary responsibility for providing the services to the customer or for fulfilling the order; and

+  assumption of credit risk.
Revenue from sales of telecommunications equipment is recognized upon delivery to the customer.

The total consideration on arrangements with multiple revenue generating activities (generally the sale of telecom equipment and ongoing service) is
allocated to those components that are capable of operating independently, based on the estimated fair value of the components. The fair value of each
component is determined by amounts charged when sold separately and by reference to sales of equivalent products and services by third parties.

Revenue arising from the provision of other services, including maintenance contracts, is recognized over the periods in which the service is provided.

Customer acquisition costs including dealer commissions and similar payments are expensed immediately.

Valuation of Assets for Acquisition Accounting

Where CWC undertakes business combinations, CWC accounts for them using the acquisition method in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations
revised. The recognition of business combinations requires the purchase price of acquisitions to be allocated to the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in the acquisition. CWC makes judgments and estimates in relation to the fair value allocation of the purchase price. If any unallocated portion is
positive, it is recognized as goodwill, and if negative, it is recognized in the income statement.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of CWC’s share of identifiable net assets acquired. All transaction costs are
expensed as incurred.

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

CWC assigns useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment based on periodic studies of actual asset lives and the intended use for those
assets. Changes in circumstances such as technological advances, prospective economic utilization and physical condition of the assets concerned could result
in the actual useful lives or residual values differing from initial estimates. Where CWC determines that the useful life of property, plant and equipment
should be shortened or residual value reduced, it depreciates the net book value in excess of the residual value over the revised remaining useful life, thereby
increasing depreciation expense. Any change in an asset’s life or residual value is reflected on a prospective basis in its financial statements when the change
in estimate is determined.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

CWC assesses property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (excluding goodwill) for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable or otherwise as required by accounting standards. Factors that are considered important and which could
trigger an impairment review include the following:

»  obsolescence or physical damage;

» significant changes in technology and regulatory environments;

» significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
» significant changes in the use of the assets or the strategy for the overall business;
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+ significant negative industry or economic trends; and

» significant decline in the market capitalization relative to net book value for a sustained period.
In addition, CWC tests goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite life, which are not amortized, at least annually for impairment.

The identification of impairment indicators, the estimation of future cash flows and the determination of the recoverable amount for assets or cash generating
units requires significant judgment concerning the identification and validation of impairment indicators, the timing and amount of expected cash flows and
applicable discount rates.

CWC determines any impairment by comparing the carrying values of each of its assets (or cash generating units to which such asset belongs) to their
recoverable amounts, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. Fair value represents market value in an active market.
Value in use is determined by discounting future cash flows arising from the asset (or the cash generating unit to which it refers). Future cash flows are
determined with reference to its own projections using pre-tax discount rates which represent the estimated weighted average cost of capital for the respective
businesses.

Receivables Allowance

The impairment allowance for trade receivables reflects CWC’s estimates of losses arising from the failure or inability of its customers to make required
payments. The allowance is based on the ageing of customer accounts, customer credit worthiness and its historical write-off experience. Changes to the
allowance may be required if the financial condition of CWC’s customers improves or deteriorates. An improvement in financial condition may result in
lower actual write-offs. Historically, changes to the estimate of losses have not been material to its financial position and results.

Customer and Supplier Commitments

The nature of the telecommunications industry is such that estimates are often required to be made in relation to customer or supplier commitments, including
where CWC interconnects with other telecommunications operators. CWC uses estimates of price or usage to determine the revenue and expense recognized
in the period based on historical experience. The prices at which these services are charged are sometimes regulated and may be subject to retrospective
adjustment. These estimates are periodically adjusted to reflect actual pricing or usage as such information becomes available or is agreed. As issues arise or
are resolved, accruals are created or released as appropriate. The net impact of this is included in operating profit within the relevant line item.

Tax

The calculation of CWC’s total tax charge involves a degree of estimation in respect of certain items where the tax treatment cannot be finally determined
until a resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, if necessary, through a formal legal process. The final resolution of some of these items
may give rise to material income statement and/or cash flow variances.

The resolution of issues is not always within CWC’s control and is often dependent on the efficiency of the administrative and legal processes in the relevant
tax jurisdictions in which CWC operates. Issues can, and often do, take many years to resolve. Payments in respect of tax liabilities for an accounting period
result from payments on account and on the final resolution of open items. As a result, there can be substantial differences between the tax charge in profit or
loss and tax payments made.
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Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

The recognition of deferred tax assets is dependent on whether it is probable that future taxable profits will be available, against which the temporary
differences can be utilized. Recognition therefore involves estimates regarding the future financial performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognized.

Provisions

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount. They are recognized when CWC has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, and it is more likely than not that an outflow or resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. CWC
presented the provisions in the statement of financial position at present value of the estimated future outflows expected to be required to settle the obligation.
CWC determines the rate for discounting the expected future cash outflows through current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. These provisions are estimates for which the amount and timing of actual cash flows are dependent on future events.

Pensions

CWC provides several defined benefit pension schemes for its employees. The asset (or liability) recognized in the statement of financial position in respect
of defined benefit pension plans represents the fair value of plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit obligations at the reporting date. The
expected cost of providing these defined benefit pensions will depend on an assessment of such factors as:

+ the life expectancy of the members;
» the length of service;
» the rate of salary progression;
+  the rate of return earned on assets in the future;
+ the rate used to discount future pension liabilities; and
» future inflation rates.
The assumptions CWC used are estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions that may not necessarily be borne out in practice but are

comparable to the median estimates in this regard used by FTSE 250 companies. Changes to these assumptions could materially affect the defined benefit
schemes’ liabilities and assets.

Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of non-derivative financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives or trading and available-for-sale securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market price used for traded financial assets held by CWC is the current bid price. The
appropriate quoted market price for traded financial liabilities is the current offer price. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined
using forward exchange market rates at the reporting date.

The fair value of non-derivative financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. CWC uses a variety
of methods which include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models which reflect the specific instrument.

The nominal value of receivables (less estimated impairments) and payables are assumed to approximate to their fair values. The fair value of financial
liabilities measured at amortized cost is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to CWC
for similar financial instruments. Discounted cash flows are used to determine the fair value for the majority of remaining financial instruments.
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The fair value of derivative financial instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market rates at the
reporting date.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of recently issued standards under IFRS and new standards announced but not yet effective, see note 1.2.2 of CWC Annual Financial
Statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
Cable & Wireless Communications Plc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc and its subsidiaries, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 March 2015 and the related consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cable & Wireless
Communications Plc and its subsidiaries as of 31 March 2015 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2015 in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

KPMG LLP
London, United Kingdom
20 January 2016
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Cable & Wireless Communications Plc
Consolidated income statement
for the years ended 31 March 2015, 2014 and 2013

Note

Continuing operations

Revenue 2.1
Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation 2.3.1
Depreciation and impairment 3.4, 3.6
Amortisation 3.5
Other operating income 2.3.4
Other operating expense 2.3.4
Group operating profit

Share of results of joint ventures and associates 3.7
Total operating profit

Gain on sale of businesses 24
Finance income 4.1
Finance expense 4.1

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense 2.6
Loss for the year from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Profit after tax for the year from discontinued operations 2.84
Profit for the year
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests
Profit for the year
Earnings per share attributable to the owners of the Parent Company during the year (cents per
share) 2.5
—basic
—diluted
Loss per share from continuing operations attributable to the owners of the Parent Company during
the year (cents per share) 2.5
—basic
—diluted
Earnings per share from discontinued operations attributable to the owners of the Parent Company
during the year (cents per share) 2.5
—basic
—diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Audited Unaudited Unaudited
US$m US$m US$m

1,753 1,689 1,750
(1,272) (1,317) (1,283)
(336) (204) (299)
47) 31) “41)

42 — 10
(62) (15) (6)

78 122 131

12 (62) 10

90 60 141

4 _ _

26 6 8
(121) (164) (152)
1) (98) 3)
(32) 32) (46)
(33) (130) (49)

354 1,081 219

321 951 170

253 859 11

68 92 159

321 951 170

9.7 34.3 0.4

9.7 34.3 0.4
(3.8) (8.4) (5.2)
(3.8) (8.4) (5.2)
13.5 42.7 5.6
13.5 42.7 5.6
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Cable & Wireless Communications Plc

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the years ended 31 March 2015, 2014 and 2013

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year comprised:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Actuarial losses in the value of defined benefit retirement plans

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive loss not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Foreign currency translation reserves recycled on disposal of operations

Foreign currency translation reserves recycled on held for sale associate

Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale financial assets

Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive (loss)/profit to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:

Owners of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Note

3.10

3.8
4.4

2013/14 2012/13
Unaudited Unaudited
US$m US$m
951 170
(8) (30)
— 1
®) (29)
(3) 5
(7) =
(3) 4
(13) 9
(21) (20)
930 150
836 (10)
94 160
930 150
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Cable & Wireless Communications Plc
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the years ended 31 March 2015, 2014 and 2013

Attributable to the owners of the Parent Company

Foreign
currency
translation Capital
and and Non-
Share Share hedging other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity
US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m
Balance at 1 April 2012 (Unaudited) 133 97 61 3,321 (3,689) 77) 493 416
Profit for the year — — — — 11 11 159 170
Net actuarial losses recognised (net of tax) — — — — (26) (26) 3) (29)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations — — 1 — — 1 4 5
Fair value movements in available-for-sale financial assets — — — 4 — 4 — 4
Total comprehensive (income)/(expense) for the year — — 1 4 (15) (10) 160 150
Equity share-based payments — — — — 4 4 — 4
Dividends — — — — (166) (166) — (166)
Transfers to retained earnings — — (30) (4) 34 — — —
Total dividends and other transactions with Cable & Wireless Communications Plc
shareholders — — (30) 4) (128) (162) — (162)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests — — — — — — (152) (152)
Total dividends and other transactions with non-controlling interests — — — — — — (152) (152)
Balance at 31 March 2013 (Unaudited) 133 97 32 3,321 (3,832) (249) 501 252
Profit for the year — — — — 859 859 92 951
Actuarial losses recognised (net of tax) — — — — (6) (6) ) ®)
Foreign currency translation reserves recycled on disposal of operations — — 7) — — 7) — 7)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations — — ) — — @) 4 3)
Fair value movements in available-for-sale financial assets — — — 3) — 3) — 3)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year — — 14) 3) 853 836 94 930
Equity share-based payments — — — — 6 6 — 6
Dividends — — — — (100) (100) — (100)
Total dividends and other transactions with Cable & Wireless Communications Plc
shareholders — — — — (94) (94) — (94)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests — — — — — — (76) (76)
Transfers on sale of subsidiaries — — — (30) 26 4) (169) (173)
Total dividends and other transactions with non-controlling interests — — — (30) 26 4 (245) (249)
Balance at 31 March 2014 (Unaudited) 133 97 18 3,288 (3,047) 489 350 839
Profit for the year — — — — 253 253 68 321
Actuarial losses recognised (net of tax) — — — — (76) (76) 1) (77)
Foreign currency translation reserves recycled on disposal of operations — — (94) — — (94) — (94)
Foreign currency translation reserves recycled on held for sale associate — — (30) — — (30) — (30)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations — — 14) — — 14 3 (11)
Fair value movements in available-for-sale financial assets — — — 3 — 3 — 3
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year — — (138) 3 177 42 70 112
Put option arrangements — — (879) — (879) — (879)
Issuance of ordinary shares 91 163 — 1,312 — 1,566 — 1,566
Equity share-based payments — — — 28 28 — 28
Dividends — — — — (104) (104) — (104)
Total dividends and other transactions with Cable & Wireless Communications Plc
shareholders 91 163 — 433 (76) 611 — 611
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests — — — — — — (86) (86)
Transfer of BTC non-controlling interests — — — — (6) (6) 6 —
Total dividends and other transactions with non-controlling interests — — — — (6) (6) (80) (86)
Balance at 31 March 2015 (Audited) 224 260 (120) 3,724 (2,952) 1,136 340 1,476

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Assets

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investments in joint ventures and associates
Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Retirement benefit assets

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Loans to related parties
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Provisions

Current tax liabilities

Liabilities held for sale

Net current assets/(liabilities)
Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Deferred tax liabilities

Provisions

Retirement benefit obligations

Net assets
Equity

Cable & Wireless Communications Plc
Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2015 and 2014

Capital and reserves attributable to the owners of the Parent Company

Share capital
Share premium
Reserves

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Note

3.5
3.6
3.7
4.4
4.5
3.1
2.7
3.10

3.3
4.3
4.6
3.9

3.3
4.3
4.8
2.7
BiY
3.10

4.10

31 March 31 March
2015 2014
Audited Unaudited
US$m US$m

2,965 526
2,587 1,418
1 188
59 58

14 —
155 170
39 34
17 20
5,837 2,414
557 433
50 36

56 —
402 205
1,065 674
165 70
1,230 744
7,067 3,158
851 612
82 58
— 274
129 140
125 121
1,187 1,205
— 23
1,187 1,228

43 (484)

305 26
2,686 797

879 —
215 27
110 42
209 199
4,404 1,091
1,476 839
224 133
260 97
652 259
1,136 489
340 350
1,476 839
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Cable & Wireless Communications Plc
Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the years ended 31 March 2015, 2014 and 2013

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated—continuing operations
Cash generated—discontinued operations
Income taxes paid—continuing operations
Income taxes paid—discontinued operations
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Finance income
Dividends received
Purchase of available-for-sale assets
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash disposed)
Loans to related parties 3.1
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) 3.11
Net cash used in continuing operations
Disposal proceeds (net of cash disposed and transaction costs) for discontinued operations
Other discontinued operations
Discontinued operations 2.8
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities
Net cash flow before financing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to the owners of the Parent Company
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Repayments of borrowings
Finance costs
Proceeds from borrowings
Proceeds on issuance of shares
Proceeds on sale of CMC shares
Unwind of sale of CMC shares
Net cash from/(used in) continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents—continuing operations
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents—discontinued operations

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 4.2
Exchange movements on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 4.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Audited Unaudited Unaudited
US$m US$m US$m
431 421 487
1 116 355
(52) (54) (113)
— 3) (26)
380 480 703
4 6 4
_ 4 6
1 — 10
1 5 4
(399) (234) (234)
(57) (132) )
16 — —
(56) = =
(677) — —
(1,169) (351) (219)
403 1,127 —
(1) (53) (130)
402 1,074 (130)
(767) 723 (349)
(387) 1,203 354
(104) (100) (166)
(86) (72) (73)
(176) (1,138) (760)
(128) (141) (156)
900 162 882
176 — —
— 100 —
— (100) —
582 (1,289) (273)
— @) 93)
582 (1,293) (366)
(208) (1,273) (108)
403 1,183 96
208 297 312
1) 1 3
402 208 297




Table of Contents

Cable & Wireless Communications Plc
Reconciliation of net loss to cash generated from operations

for the years ended 31 March 2015, 2014 and 2013

Loss for the year

Adjustments for:

Tax expense

Depreciation

Amortisation

Impairment

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on sale of businesses

Finance income

Finance expense

Other income and expenses

Increase in provisions

Employee benefits

Defined benefit pension scheme contributions
Defined benefit pension scheme other contributions
Share of results of joint ventures and associates
Operating cash flows before working capital changes
Changes in working capital (excluding effects of acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in payables

Cash generated from continuing operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Note

2.6
3.6
3.5
3.6
3.6
24
4.1
4.1

3.7

2014/15
Audited
US$m

(33)

32
210
47
127

4
(26)
121
(16)

38

13

(6)
(52)
(12)
440

(4)
(39)
34
431

2013/14 2012/13
Unaudited Unaudited
US$m US$m
(130) 49)
32 46
204 213
31 41
— 86
— 1
(6) ®)
164 152
15 (10)
52 21
11 3
(6) (7)
62 (10)
429 479
(6) 2
38 16
(40) (10)
421 487
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Cable & Wireless Communications Plc
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the years ended 31 March 2015, 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013

Section one—Basis of preparation

1.1 General information

Cable & Wireless Communications Plc (the Company, CWC or the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries (together the Cable & Wireless Communications
Group or the Group) is an international telecommunications company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. On 31 March 2015 the Group
acquired control of Columbus International Inc. (Columbus) (see note 3.11.1 for further detail).

In these consolidated financial statements, the years ended March 31, 2013, March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2015 are also referred to as 2012/13, 2013/14 and
2014/15, respectively.

1.1.1 The Company

The Company is a public limited company, which is listed on the London Stock Exchange and is incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The address of its
registered office is 2nd Floor, 63-65 Chandos Place, London WC2N 4HG.

1.2 Basis of preparation and recent accounting changes
1.2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared for inclusion in a proxy statement of Liberty Global plc (Liberty Global) meeting the
requirements of Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The proxy statement is being filed by Liberty Global in connection with the
acquisition by Liberty Global of the Group (see note 5.9). These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. Comparative period amounts at 31 March 2014 and for the
years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 have not been audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and are
therefore presented in these consolidated financial statements as unaudited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars (US$) and rounded to the nearest million.

They have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments held at fair value. Non-current assets and disposal groups are
stated at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The Directors have prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are considered to be reasonable under the circumstances. They form the basis of judgements about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily available from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a continuing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. Critical judgements and areas where the use of estimates is significant are discussed in note 5.2.
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The accounting policies have been applied consistently by Group entities.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise a consolidation of the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries and include the Group’s share of the
results and net assets of its joint ventures and associates. The results of the Group’s main trading subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates have been
prepared to align with the Group’s reporting date.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by and forming part of the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its investment with the entity and has the ability to affect these returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group effectively takes control until the date that control ceases. Accounting policies of subsidiaries are aligned with the policies adopted
by the Group to ensure consistency.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for an acquisition is the fair value of the assets
transferred, and liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Goodwill is initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred over the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. The determination of the fair values of acquired assets and liabilities is based on judgement and the Directors have 12 months from the date of the
business combination to finalise the allocation of the purchase price. The allocation of the purchase price between finite lived assets and indefinite lived assets
affects the results of the Group as finite lived intangible assets are amortised, whereas indefinite lived intangible assets, including goodwill, are not amortised.
Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Joint ventures and associates

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence. Investments in joint ventures and
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group’s share of its joint ventures’ and associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised through profit or loss. Its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in equity. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture and/or associate exceeds its investment (including any other unsecured long-term receivables), the Group
does not recognise further losses unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
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1.2.2 Application of recently issued International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The Group applied for the first time the following new standards and amendments to IFRS during the three years ended 31 March 2015, a number of new and
amended IFRS standards became effective and were adopted by the Group, including IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements and IFRS 11, Joint
arrangements, none of which had a material impact on the Group’s total comprehensive income, financial position, net cash flows or earnings per share. The
nature and impact of each new standard and amendment is described below:

Title

Effective date

Description and impact on the Group

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial
statements, IFRS 11 Joint arrangements
and IFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in
other entities

Amendments to TAS 27 Separate
financial statements

Amendments to IAS 32
Financial statements: presentation

Amendments to IAS 36
Recoverable amount disclosures for non-
financial assets

Amendments to IAS 39
Financial instruments: recognition and
measurement

Annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

Annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

Annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

Annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

Annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

F-53

IFRS 10 Builds on existing principles of control and provides further
guidance where control may be difficult to assess. IFRS 11 expands
on the assessment of joint arrangements to consider all facts and
circumstances surrounding the arrangements in addition to the
structure of the arrangement as previously required.

There was no impact on the Group from adopting IFRS 10 and IFRS
11.

IFRS 12 requires disclosures for all forms of interests in other
entities. Disclosures required by IFRS 12 are included in notes 3.7
and 5.8.

Covers all disclosure requirements for financial statements prepared
by a parent, or an investor in a joint venture or associate, where those
investments are accounted for at cost or in accordance with IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or IFRS 9
Financial Instruments.

Provides clarifications on the application of offsetting of assets and
liabilities.

This does not have an impact on the Group.

Reverses the unintended requirement in IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurements to disclose the recoverable amount of every cash-
generating unit to which significant goodwill or indefinite-lived
intangible assets have been allocated. The recoverable amount is
required to be disclosed only when an impairment loss has been
recognised or reversed.

Allows hedge accounting to continue in a situation where a
derivative is novated.

This does not have an impact on the Group.
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Title Effective date Description and impact on the Group
Amendment to IAS 19 Annual periods beginning on or after 1 ~ There will be an impact on the Group results due to the change in
Employee benefits January 2013 calculating the income statement charge. Interest cost and expected

return on plan assets will be replaced with a net amount calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined pension liability.

Had the group applied the new standard from 1 April 2012, the
Group profit before tax from continuing operations would have been
US$8 million lower.

There was no material impact on the Group upon adoption of any of these new IFRS standards and amendments.

New and amended standards and interpretations to be adopted by the Group in subsequent periods:

Title

Effective date

Description and impact on the Group

Amendment to IFRS 8 Operating
segments

Amendment to IAS 16 Property, plant
and equipment and 1AS 38 Intangible
Assets

Amendment to IAS 19
Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation—
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38

Annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014

Annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014

Annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016
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Requires an entity to disclose the judgements made by management
in applying the aggregation criteria to operating segments.

This does not have an impact on the Group as there are no operating
segments aggregated.

Clarifies when an item of property, plant and equipment or intangible
asset requires restatement of accumulated depreciation or
amortisation on revaluation.

This does not have an impact on the Group as the Group does not
have a revaluation policy.

Amended the requirements for contributions from employees or third
parties that are linked to services.

This should not have an impact on the Group as there are no
contributions from employees or third parties linked to services.

The amendments introduce a rebuttable presumption that the use of
revenue-based amortisation methods for intangible assets is
inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome only when revenue
and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset
are ‘highly correlated’, or when the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue. While this is not an outright ban, it creates a
high hurdle for when these methods may be used for intangible
assets.
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Description and impact on the Group

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 with early adoption
permitted

Annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 with early adoption
permitted

The amendments also ban the use of revenue-based amortisation for
property, plant and equipment.

This does not have an impact on the Group as the Group does not
use revenue-based amortisation or depreciation.

Establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether,
how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces IAS 18
Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer
Loyalty Programmes.

The Group is still assessing the impact of IFRS 15 but the new
standard could have significant impact on customer acquisition costs
and large Managed Services contracts.

Revises the existing accounting concerning classification and
measurement, impairment (introducing an expected-loss method),
hedge accounting, and on the treatment of gains arising from the
impact of credit risk on the measurement of liabilities held at fair
value.

This is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s net
results or net assets, although the full impact will be subject to
further assessment.

There are no other new or amended standards that are considered to have a material impact on the Group.

Section two—Results for the year

This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group. On the following pages you will find disclosures explaining the Group’s results for
the year, segmental information, taxation and earnings per share.

2.1 Revenue

Accounting policy detailed in note 5.1.14.

Continuing operations

Sales of telecommunications services and related operations
Sales of telecommunications equipment and accessories

Total revenue
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2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Audited Unaudited Unaudited

US$m US$m US$m
1,680 1,623 1,694
73 66 56
1,753 1,689 1,750
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2.2 Segment information

This section analyses our performance for the year by reference to our businesses in Panama, Caribbean (excluding The Bahamas Telecommunications
Company (BTC)), BTC and Seychelles for 2014/15, 2013/14 and 2012/13.

Cable & Wireless Communications Group is an international telecommunications service provider. It operates integrated telecommunications companies
offering mobile, broadband, video, fixed line and Managed Services and other to residential and business customers. During the year the Group had four
principal operations which have been identified as the Group’s reportable segments, being Panama, the Caribbean (excluding BTC), BTC and Seychelles. Our
Business-to-Business and Business-to-Government operations are included in the results of the region to which they relate.

The Group also has another operating segment, which is comprised of the corporate centre, operational hub, results of our subsea cable partnership, wholesale
solutions business, the results of our joint ventures and associates and eliminations for inter-segment transactions. This segment does not meet the definition
of a reporting segment as it earns revenue from its activities that are less than 10% of overall Group revenue. This function primarily acts as an operational
support provider for the reportable segments.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and before exceptional items (EBITDA) is the primary measure used to evaluate segment
operating performance. EBITDA is a key factor that is used by our internal decision makers to determine how to allocate resources to the Company’s
segments.

The Board considers the performance of each of these operations in assessing the performance of the Group and making decisions about the allocation of
resources. Accordingly, these are the operating segments disclosed. There are no other operating segments identified by the Board. The operating segments
are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Board.

Year ended 31 March 2015 (Audited) Panama Caribbean BTC Seychelles el?ntl]il:;tii‘;ll?sl Total
US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m

Continuing operations
Revenue 636 709 348 52 8 1,753
Cost of sales (223) (154) (67) 8) (6) (458)
Gross margin 413 555 281 44 2 1,295
Pre-exceptional operating costs, before depreciation and impairment and

amortisation (172) (317) (159) (25) (37) (710)
EBITDA 241 238 122 19 (35) 585
Depreciation and impairment and amortisation (101) (88) (43) (10) (14) (256)
Net other operating income/(expense) 21 (10) — — 31) (20)
Exceptional operating costs2 ) (175) (25) — (22) (231)
Group operating profit/(loss) 152 (35) 54 9 (102) 78
Share of results of joint ventures and associates — — — (1) 13 12
Total operating profit/(loss) 152 (35) 54 8 (89) 90
Gain on sale of businesses — — — — 4 4
Net finance (expense)/income (8) 24 — 1 (112) (95)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 144 11) 54 9 (197) (@)
Income tax (expense)/credit (36) 9) (1) 8) 22 (32)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 108 (20) 53 1 (175) (33)
Income taxes paid3 (24) (16) () (6) 5) (52)

F-56



Table of Contents

Cable & Wireless Communications Plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — Continued

for the years ended 31 March 2015, 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013

Year ended 31 March 2014 (Unaudited) Panama Caribbean BTC Seychelles el?ntllil:;t?:l?sl Total
US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m

Continuing operations
Revenue 576 691 354 53 15 1,689
Cost of sales (182) (153) (65) 7) (11) (418)
Gross margin 394 538 289 46 4 1,271
Pre-exceptional operating costs, before depreciation and impairment and

amortisation (155) (368)  (161) (26) (15) (725)
EBITDA 239 170 128 20 11 546
Depreciation and impairment and amortisation (94) (89) (44) — () (235)
Net other operating expense — — — — (15) (15)
Exceptional operating costs?2 3) (120) (12) — (39) (174)
Group operating profit/(loss) 142 (39) 72 20 (73) 122
Share of results of joint ventures and associates — — — 2) (60) (62)
Total operating profit/(loss) 142 (39) 72 18 (133) 60
Net finance (expense)/income (11) 14 1 1 (163) (158)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 131 (25) 73 19 (296) (98)
Income tax (expense)/credit (28) (5) 1) (5) 7 32)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 103 (30) 72 14 (289) (130)
Income taxes paid3 27) 17) ) “4) (@) (54)

Other and
Year ended 31 March 2013 (Unaudited) Panama Caribbean BTC Seychelles eliminations1 Total
US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m

Continuing operations
Revenue 586 758 362 44 — 1,750
Cost of sales (189) (203) (65) (6) (1) (464)
Gross margin 397 555 297 38 (1 1,286
Pre-exceptional operating costs, before depreciation and impairment and

amortisation (158) (401) (177) (23) (10) (769)
EBITDA 239 154 120 15 11) 517
Depreciation and impairment and amortisation (85) (115) (40) (6) ©) (254)
Net other operating income/(expense) — 2 4) — 6 4
Exceptional operating costs2 — (136) — — — (136)
Group operating profit/(loss) 154 95) 76 9 (13) 131
Share of results of joint ventures and associates — — — — 10 10
Total operating profit/(loss) 154 (95) 76 9 3) 141
Net finance expense 9) 28 1 2) (162) (144)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 145 (67) 77 7 (165) 3)
Income tax (expense)/credit (42) 1 = 2 3 (46)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 103 (66) 77 5 (169) (49)
Income taxes paid3 (81) 23) — 2 (6) (112)
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1 ‘Other and eliminations’ primarily includes the corporate centre and operational hub expenses, results of our subsea cable partnership, wholesale
solutions business, eliminations for inter-segment transactions and the results of our joint ventures and associates and, for 2015/14, eliminations for
inter-segment management charges of US$44 million.

2 The following table indicates items identified by management as exceptional for purposes of excluding from the calculation of EBITDA:
2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Audited Unaudited Unaudited
US$m US$m US$m
Exceptional items:
Staff-related restructuring costs 77 128 50
Legal and property costs 27 46 —
Impairment and write off of property, plant and equipment 127 — 86
Total exceptional items 231 174 136

Exceptional items are material items within profit or loss that derive from individual events that fall within the ordinary activities of the Group, but are
not included in the EBITDA measure used to evaluate segment performance and determine allocation of resources. Exceptional items are identified by
virtue of their size, nature or incidence. Significant management judgment is required in the identification of exceptional items.

The exceptional items within operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortization for 2014/15 consist of Columbus and integration,
restructuring and other costs of US$70 million (primarily in the Caribbean and corporate centre), Panama restructuring costs of US$9 million and BTC
restructuring costs of US$25 million. In addition, a write-off of property, plant and equipment of US$49 million and impairment of $78 million were
recorded in the Caribbean. Further information regarding exceptional items relating to impairment and write off of property, plant and equipment
charges can be found in note 3.4.

In 2013/14, the exceptional costs consisted of the Caribbean and BTC restructuring costs of US$132 million, Panama restructuring costs of US$3
million and restructuring and legal costs at the corporate centre of US$39 million.

In 2012/13, exceptional costs of US$136 million related to restructuring and asset impairment charges in the Caribbean.

3 Income taxes paid represents cash tax paid during the year by consolidated subsidiaries.
There are no differences in the measurement of the reportable segments’ results and the Group’s results.

There is no significant trading between the segments. Transactions between the segments are on commercial terms similar to those offered to external
customers.

There are no differences in the measurement of the reportable segments’ assets and liabilities and the Group’s assets and liabilities. Furthermore, there are no
asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments.
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Entity-wide disclosures for continuing operations

The revenue from external customers are analysed by product below. Our Business-to-Business and Business-to-Government operations and the results of our
subsea cable partnership are included in the results of the product category to which they relate.

2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Audited Unaudited Unaudited

US$m US$m US$m
Mobile 929 898 875
Broadband and video 198 194 187
Fixed voice 359 374 419
Managed Services and other 267 223 269
Total 1,753 1,689 1,750

Revenue for continuing operations from external customers can be classified by country as follows:

2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Audited Unaudited Unaudited

US$m US$m US$m

United Kingdom (country of domicile) — — —
The Bahamas 348 354 362

Barbados 149 157 —
Jamaica 182 181 211
Panama 636 576 586
Seychelles 51 53 44
All other countries and eliminations 387 368 547
Total 1,753 1,689 1,750

Revenue has been allocated to a country based on the location in which the telecommunications services were provided. The Group does not have any
external customers from which revenue exceeds 10% of consolidated Group revenue.
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Non-current assets (other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets and defined benefit pension assets) are classified by country and include the
preliminary allocation of non-current assets of Columbus as at 31 March 2015:

31 March
2015
Audited
US$m
United Kingdom (country of domicile) 13
The Bahamas 405
Barbados 933
British Virgin Islands 82
Colombia 567
Curacao 213
Jamaica 685
Monaco —
Panama 935
Seychelles 47
Trinidad & Tobago 835
United States of America 36
All other countries and eliminations (includes non-operating assets and liabilities) 957
Total 5,708

2.3 Operating costs and other operating income and expenses

2.3.1 Operating costs

31 March 31 March
2014 2013
Unaudited Unaudited
US$m US$m

17 17
380 371
157 —

72 —
130 121
456 410
662 554
159 —

7 J—
262 698
2,302 2,171

Detailed below are the key expense items charged in arriving at our operating profit. Outpayments are amounts paid to other operators when our customers

call customers connected to a different network.

An analysis of the operating costs from continuing operations incurred by the Group is presented below, classified by the nature of the cost:

Continuing operations

Outpayments and direct costs

Employee and other staff expenses

Operating lease rentals:

—Networks

—Property

Other administrative expenses

Network costs

Property and utility costs

Operating costs before depreciation and impairment and amortisation
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Operating costs

2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Audited Unaudited Unaudited
US$m US$m US$m
457 417 464
323 402 339
17 18 21
22 29 21
238 238 231
136 122 121
79 91 86
1,272 1,317 1,283
336 204 299
47 31 41
1,655 1,552 1,623
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Operating costs are stated net of credits or charges arising from the release or establishment of accruals.

2.3.2 Auditor’s remuneration

2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Audited Unaudited Unaudited
US$m US$m US$m
Audit services:
Statutory audit services—in respect of the Group’s accounts 2.3 2.2 2.5
Audit of the Group’s annual accounts 2.3 2.2 2.5
Amounts receivable by auditors and their associates:
Statutory audit services—in respect of other statutory accounts 1.2 1.4 1.8
Audit related regulatory reporting 0.4 0.5 0.8
3.9 4.1 5.1
Tax services—compliance 0.2 — 0.1
Tax services—advisory 0.3 0.6 0.2
Services related to corporate finance activities 0.3 0.6 0.9
Other services (including other assurance services) 0.1 0.1 —
4.8 5.4 6.3

Auditor’s remuneration for audit and other services in respect of discontinued operations was US$ nil in both 2014/15 and 2013/14 (2012/13—US$1.6
million). This amount is included in the table above.

All amounts in 2014/15 and 2013/14 related to KPMG LLP (2012/13—KPMG Audit plc). Fees paid to KPMG LLP for audit and other services to the
Company are included in the table above and are not disclosed in its individual accounts as the Group accounts are required to disclose such fees on a
consolidated basis.

2.3.3 Employee and other staff expenses
This note shows the average number of people employed by the Group during the year and where they are based. It also shows total employment costs.

Accounting policy detailed in note 5.1.11.
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The employee and other staff expenses for continuing operations are set out below:

2014/15 2013/14 2012/13

Audited Unaudited Unaudited

US$m US$m US$m
Wages and salaries 229 247 276
Social security costs 13 15 16
Share-based payments 5 6 2
Pension costs:
—defined benefit plans 9 12 1
—defined contribution plans 6 7 9
Temporary labour and recruitment 19 17 16
Less: Staff costs capitalised (35) (30) (31)
Staff costs 246 274 289
Staff-related restructuring expenses 77 128 50
Total staff costs for continuing operations 323 402 339

Total staff costs in respect of discontinued operations in 2014/15 was US$4 million (2013/14—US$42 million and 2012/13—US$107 million).

The average number of persons, excluding Columbus and including Executive Directors, employed in continuing operations by the Group during the year
was:

2014/15 2013/14 2012/13

Audited Unaudited Unaudited
Corporate centre and operational hub 232 144 130
Panama 1,547 1,434 1,478
Caribbean (excluding BTC) 1,392 2,045 2,861
BTC 787 824 757
Seychelles 207 242 253
Total 4,165 4,689 5,479

The average number of employees in discontinued operations up until disposal was 269 (2013/14—548 and 2012/13—2,250).

Directors’ and key management remuneration and directors’ share awards

Key management are represented by Directors only as those that have authority and responsibility for managerial decisions affecting the future development

and business prospects of the Cable & Wireless Communications Group.

Included within employee costs is key management remuneration relating to continuing operations as follows:

Salaries and other short-term employment benefits
Post-employment benefits

Total Directors’ remuneration

Share-based payments

Total key management remuneration
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2014/15
Audited
US$m

11.9
0.6
12.5
1.5
14.0

2013/14
Unaudited
US$m

7.7
0.6
8.3
3.5
11.8

2012/13
Unaudited
US$m
6.2
0.6
6.8
3.0

9.8
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Directors’ share awards for the year ended 31 March 2015, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Executive Directors
Nick Cooper

Performance Shares
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS
Performance Shares1
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS
Performance Shares
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS

Phil Bentley

Performance Shares2
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS
Performance Shares
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS

Perley McBride

Performance Shares
Performance SharesDS
Performance SharesDS

DS Dividend shares
The number of shares awarded under the PSP 2011 was calculated based on the average share price for the period 24 to 30 May 2012 (inclusive) which is the period immediately
after the 2011/12 full year results and would ordinarily have been used to calculate the award price had the Company not been in an extended close period until January 2013.
Share award of 4,288,011 CWC shares were granted to Phil Bentley on 2 January 2014 in order to secure his appointment as Chief Executive Officer. The PSP award based on
300% of base salary is subject to performance measured over three years and continued service, and the award of which was contingent on Phil Bentley purchasing shares with a
value of at least 200% of salary. This requirement has been met by the acquisition of 4,300,000 shares on 2 January 2014 (over 300% of his salary at the date of purchase).

1

2

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — Continued
for the years ended 31 March 2015, 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013

Shares Shares
Shares lapsed, under
Market price on under cancelled award at
Award Vesting date of award of award at 1 Shares Shares or 31 March
date date CWC (pence) April 2014 awarded vested forfeited 2015

02/06/2011 02/06/2014 43.29 1,592,718 — 1,592,718 — —

12/08/2011 02/06/2014 33.88 154,260 — 154,260 — —

12/01/2012 02/06/2014 37.99 71,984 — 71,984 — —

10/08/2012 02/06/2014 32.54 166,075 — 166,075 — —

11/01/2013 02/06/2014 39.40 33,192 — 33,192 — —

09/08/2013 02/06/2014 40.08 69,840 — 69,840 — —

10/01/2014 02/06/2014 56.50 22,988 — 22,988 — —
14/01/2013 14/01/2016 37.72 1,812,761 — — — 1,812,761
11/08/2013 14/01/2016 40.08 79,489 — — — 79,489
11/01/2014 14/01/2016 56.50 26,164 — — — 26,164
08/08/2014 14/01/2016 47.37 — 59,751 — — 59,751
09/01/2015 14/01/2016 49.12 — 31,328 — — 31,328
30/05/2013 30/05/2016 43.89 1,267,462 — — — 1,267,462
11/08/2013 30/05/2016 40.08 55,577 — — — 55,577
11/01/2014 30/05/2016 56.50 18,294 — — — 18,294
08/08/2014 30/05/2016 47.37 — 41,777 — — 41,777
09/01/2015 30/05/2016 49.12 — 21,904 — — 21,904
5,370,804 154,760 2,111,057 — 3,414,507
02/01/2014 02/06/2017 57.40 4,288,011 — — — 4,288,011
11/01/2014 02/06/2017 56.50 61,891 — — — 61,891
08/08/2014 02/06/2017 47.37 — 141,340 — — 141,340
09/01/2015 02/06/2017 49.12 — 74,106 — — 74,106
29/05/2014 29/05/2017 53.00 — 2,932,013 — — 2,932,013
08/08/2014 29/05/2017 47.37 — 96,644 — — 96,644
09/01/2015 29/05/2017 49.12 — 50,671 — — 50,671
4,349,902 3,294,774 — — 7,644,676
30/06/2014 30/06/2017 49.25 — 1,452,376 — — 1,452,376
08/08/2014 30/06/2017 47.37 — 47,872 — — 47,872
09/01/2015 30/06/2017 49.12 — 25,100 — — 25,100
— 1,525,348 — — 1,525,348
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Shares Shares
Shares lapsed, under
Market price on under cancelled award at
Award Vesting date of award of award at Shares Shares or 31 March
date date CWC (pence) 1 April 2013 awarded vested forfeited 2014
Executive Directors
Nick Cooper
Performance Shares 04/06/2010 04/06/2013 60.30 1,160,862 — — 1,160,862 —
Performance SharesDS 12/08/2010 04/06/2013 60.70 67,962 — — 67,962 —
Performance SharesDS 13/01/2011 04/06/2013 49.95 39,722 — — 39,722 —
Performance SharesDS 12/08/2011 04/06/2013 33.88 112,433 — — 112,433 —
Performance SharesDS 12/01/2012 04/06/2013 37.99 52,466 — — 52,466 —
Performance SharesDS 10/08/2012 04/06/2013 32.54 121,045 — — 121,045 —
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2013 04/06/2013 39.40 24,192 — — 24,192 —
Performance Shares 02/06/2011 02/06/2014 43.29 1,592,718 — — — 1,592,718
Performance SharesDS 12/08/2011 02/06/2014 33.88 154,260 — — — 154,260
Performance SharesDS 12/01/2012 02/06/2014 37.99 71,984 — — — 71,984
Performance SharesDS 10/08/2012 02/06/2014 32.54 166,075 — — — 166,075
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2013 02/06/2014 39.40 33,192 — — — 33,192
Performance SharesDS 09/08/2013 02/06/2014 40.08 — 69,840 — — 69,840
Performance SharesDS 10/01/2014 02/06/2014 56.50 — 22,988 — — 22,988
Performance Shares1 14/01/2013 14/01/2016 37.72 1,812,761 — — — 1,812,761
Performance SharesDS 11/08/2013 14/01/2016 40.08 — 79,489 — — 79,489
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2014 14/01/2016 56.50 — 26,164 — — 26,164
Performance Shares 30/05/2013 30/05/2016 43.89 — 1,267,462 — — 1,267,462
Performance SharesDS 11/08/2013 30/05/2016 40.08 — 55,577 — — 55,577
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2014 30/05/2016 56.50 — 18,294 — — 18,294
5,409,672 1,539,814 — 1,578,682 5,370,804
Tim Pennington
Performance Shares 04/06/2010 04/06/2013 62.85 2,321,724 — — 2,321,724 —
Performance SharesDS 12/08/2010 04/06/2013 60.70 135,925 — — 135,925 —
Performance SharesDS 13/01/2011 04/06/2013 49.95 79,445 — — 79,445 —
Performance SharesDS 12/08/2011 04/06/2013 33.88 224,867 — — 224,867 —
Performance SharesDS 12/01/2012 04/06/2013 37.99 104,932 — — 104,932 —
Performance SharesDS 10/08/2012 04/06/2013 32.54 242,090 — — 242,090 —
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2013 04/06/2013 39.40 48,384 — — 48,384 —
Performance Shares 02/06/2011 02/06/2014 43.29 3,185,437 — — — 3,185,437
Performance SharesDS 12/08/2011 02/06/2014 33.88 308,521 — — — 308,521
Performance SharesDS 12/01/2012 02/06/2014 37.99 143,969 — — — 143,969
Performance SharesDS 10/08/2012 02/06/2014 32.54 332,150 — — — 332,150
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2013 02/06/2014 39.40 66,384 — — — 66,384
Performance SharesDS 09/08/2013 02/06/2014 40.08 — 139,680 — — 139,680
Performance SharesDS 10/01/2014 02/06/2014 56.50 — 45,977 — — 45,977
Performance Sharesl 14/01/2013 14/01/2016 37.72 3,222,687 — — — 3,222,687
Performance SharesDS 11/08/2013 14/01/2016 40.08 — 141,314 — — 141,314
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2014 14/01/2016 56.50 — 46,515 — — 46,515
Performance Shares 30/05/2013 30/05/2016 43.89 — 2,253,267 — — 2,253,267
Performance SharesDS 11/08/2013 30/05/2016 40.08 — 98,805 — — 98,805
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2014 30/05/2016 56.50 — 32,522 — — 32,522
10,416,515 2,758,080 — 3,157,367 10,017,228
Tony Rice
Performance Shares 04/06/2010 04/06/2013 62.85 3,250,414 — — 3,250,414 —
Performance SharesDS 12/08/2010 04/06/2013 60.70 190,295 — — 190,295 —
Performance SharesDS 13/01/2011 04/06/2013 49.95 111,223 — — 111,223 —
Performance SharesDS 12/08/2011 04/06/2013 33.88 314,814 — — 314,814 —
Performance SharesDS 12/01/2012 04/06/2013 37.99 146,906 — — 146,906 —
Performance SharesDS 10/08/2012 04/06/2013 32.54 338,926 — — 338,926 —
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2013 04/06/2013 39.40 67,738 — — 67,738 —
Performance Shares 02/06/2011 02/06/2014 43.29 4,459,613 — — — 4,459,613
Performance SharesDS 12/08/2011 02/06/2014 33.88 431,929 — — — 431,929
Performance SharesDS 12/01/2012 02/06/2014 37.99 201,557 — — — 201,557
Performance SharesDS 10/08/2012 02/06/2014 32.54 465,011 — — — 465,011
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2013 02/06/2014 39.40 92,938 — — — 92,938
Performance SharesDS 09/08/2013 02/06/2014 40.08 — 195,553 — — 195,553
Performance SharesDS 10/01/2014 02/06/2014 56.50 — 64,368 — — 64,368
Performance Sharesl 14/01/2013 14/01/2016 37.72 4,511,762 — — — 4,511,762
Performance SharesDS 11/08/2013 14/01/2016 40.08 — 197,839 — — 197,839
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2014 14/01/2016 56.50 — 65,121 — — 65,121
Performance Shares 30/05/2013 30/05/2016 43.89 — 3,154,574 — — 3,154,574
Performance SharesDS 11/08/2013 30/05/2016 40.08 — 138,327 — — 138,327
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2014 30/05/2016 56.50 — 45,531 — — 45,531
14,583,126 3,861,313 — 4,420,316 14,024,123
Phil Bentley
Performance Shares2 02/01/2014 02/06/2017 57.40 — 4,288,011 — — 4,288,011
Performance SharesDS 11/01/2014 02/06/2017 56.50 — 61,891 — — 61,891
— 4,349,902 — — 4,349,902
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DS Dividend shares

1

2

The number of shares awarded under the PSP 2011 was calculated based on the average share price for the period 24 to 30 May 2012 (inclusive) which is the period immediately
after the 2011/12 full year results and would ordinarily have been used to calculate the award price had the Company not been in an extended close period until January 2013.
Share award of 4,288,011 CWC shares were granted to Phil Bentley on 2 January 2014 in order to secure his appointment as Chief Executive Officer. The PSP award based on
300% of base salary is subject to performance measured over three years and continued service, and the award of which was contingent on Phil Bentley purchasing shares with a
value of at least 200% of salary. This requirement has been met by the acquisition of 4,300,000 shares on 2 January 2014 (over 300% of his salary at the date of purchase).
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Cable & Wireless Communications Plc
Notes to the consolidated financial statements — Continued

for the years ended 31 March 2015, 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013

Shares Shares Shares
under lapsed, under
Market price on award at cancelled award at
Award Vesting date of award of 1 April Shares Shares or 31 March
date date CWC (pence)l 20122 awarded vested forfeited 2013
02/06/2009 02/06/2012 51.00 461,584 — — 461,584 —
07/08/2009 02/06/2012 48.70 20,398 — — 20,398 —
22/01/2010 02/06/2012 52.30 10,595 — — 10,595 —
12/08/2010 02/06/2012 60.70 27,023 — — 27,023 —
13/01/2011 02/06/2012 49.95 15,794 — — 15,794 —
12/08/2011 02/06/2012 33.88 44,706 — — 44,706 —
12/01/2012 02/06/2012 37.99 20,861 — — 20,861 —
04/06/2010 04/06/2013 60.30 1,160,862 — — — 1,160,862
12/08/2010 04/06/2013 60.70 67,962 — — — 67,962
13/01/2011 04/06/2013 49.95 39,722 — — — 39,722
12/08/2011 04/06/2013 33.88 112,433 — — — 112,433
12/01/2012 04/06/2013 37.99 52,466 — — — 52,466
10/08/2012 04/06/2013 32.54 — 121,045 — — 121,045
11/01/2013 04/06/2013 39.40 — 24,192 — — 24,192
02/06/2011 02/06/2014 43.29 1,592,718 — — — 1,592,718
12/08/2011 02/06/2014 33.88 154,260 — — — 154,260
12/01/2012 02/06/2014 37.99 71,984 — — — 71,984
10/08/2012 02/06/2014 32.54 — 166,075 — — 166,075
11/01/2013 02/06/2014 39.40 — 33,192 — — 33,192
14/01/2013 14/01/2016 37.72 — 1,812,761 — — 1,812,761
3,853,368 2,157,265 — 600,961 5,409,672
02/06/2009 02/06/2012 51.00 655,151 — — 655,151 —
07/08/2009 02/06/2012 48.70 28,953 — — 28,953 —
22/01/2010 02/06/2012 52.30 15,039 — — 15,039 —
12/08/2010 02/06/2012 60.70 38,355 — — 38,355 —
13/01/2011 02/06/2012 49.95 22,418 — — 22,418 —
12/08/2011 02/06/2012 33.88 63,453 — — 63,453 —
12/01/2012 02/06/2012 37.99 29,610 — — 29,610 —
02/06/2009 02/06/2012 51.00 1,725,527 — — 1,725,527 —
07/08/2009 02/06/2012 48.70 76,255 — — 76,255 —
22/01/2010 02/06/2012 52.30 39,609 — — 39,609 —
12/08/2010 02/06/2012 60.70 101,021 — — 101,021 —
13/01/2011 02/06/2012 49.95 59,044 — — 59,044 —
12/08/2011 02/06/2012 33.88 167,123 — — 167,123 —
12/01/2012 02/06/2012 37.99 77,987 — — 77,987 —
04/06/2010 04/06/2013 62.85 2,321,274 — — — 2,321,274
12/08/2010 04/06/2013 60.70 135,925 — — — 135,925
13/01/2011 04/06/2013 49.95 79,445 — — — 79,445
12/08/2011 04/06/2013 33.88 224,867 — — — 224,867
12/01/2012 04/06/2013 37.99 104,932 — — — 104,932
10/08/2012 04/06/2013 32.54 — 242,090 — — 242,090
11/01/2013 04/06/2013 39.40 — 48,384 — — 48,384
02/06/2011 02/06/2014 43.29 3,185,437 — — — 3,185,437
12/08/2011 02/06/2014 33.88 308,521 — — — 308,521
12/01/2012 02/06/2014 37.99 143,969 — — — 143,969
10/08/2012 02/06/2014 32.54 — 332,150 — — 332,150
11/01/2013 02/06/2014 39.40 — 66,384 — — 66,384
14/01/2013 14/01/2016 37.72 — 3,222,687 — — 3,222,687
9,603,915 3,911,695 — 3,099,545 10,416,065
02/06/2009 02/06/2012 51.00 5,490,320 — — 5,490,320 —
07/08/2009 02/06/2012 48.70 242,634 — — 242,634 —
22/01/2010 02/06/2012 52.30 126,029 — — 126,029 —
12/08/2010 02/06/2012 60.70 321,431 — — 321,431 —
13/01/2011 02/06/2012 49.95 187,868 — — 187,868 —
12/08/2011 02/06/2012 33.88 531,757 — — 531,757 —
12/01/2012 02/06/2012 37.99 248,141 — — 248,141 —
04/06/2010 04/06/2013 62.85 3,250,414 — — — 3,250,414
12/08/2010 04/06/2013 60.70 190,295 — — — 190,295
13/01/2011 04/06/2013 49.95 111,223 — — — 111,223
12/08/2011 04/06/2013 33.88 314,814 — — — 314,814
12/01/2012 04/06/2013 37.99 146,906 — — — 146,906
10/08/2012 04/06/2013 32.54 — 338,926 — — 338,926
11/01/2013 04/06/2013 39.40 — 67,738 — — 67,738
02/06/2011 02/06/2014 43.29 4,459,613 — — — 4,459,613
12/08/2011 02/06/2014 33.88 431,929 — — — 431,929
12/01/2012 02/06/2014 37.99 201,557 — — — 201,557
10/08/2012 02/06/2014 32.54 — 465,011 — — 465,011
11/01/2013 02/06/2014 39.40 — 92,938 — — 92,938
14/01/2013 14/01/2016 37.72 — 4,511,762 — — 4,511,762
16,254,931 5,476,375 — 7,148,180 14,583,126
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DS Dividend shares

1 The market price on the date of awards made prior to demerger has been adjusted in proportion to the market price value of CWC to the combined share price of CWC and Cable & Wireless
Worldwide plc over the five days following demerger. This adjustment resulted in the market price on the date of award for all awards being adjusted to 38% of their original value.

2 The total number of shares comprised in each Performance Share award has been adjusted as a result of the demerger and has been included in the table as at 1 April 2010 notwithstanding that
the equivalent value of these Performance Share awards was determined by reference to the average closing price of CWC ordinary shares and Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc ordinary
shares over the five trade days commencing on the demerger effective date, being 26 March 2010 and concluding on 1 April 2010. The adjusted awards were granted by the Trust on 13 May
2010.

3 Performance is measured on the absolute TSR performance of Cable and Wireless plc up to demerger and the combined CWC and Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc thereafter.

4 The award of 1,310,302 Performance Shares granted to Tim Pennington on 2 June 2009 was split so that half the award is measured over TSR for Cable and Wireless plc prior to demerger and
the combined CWC and Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc thereafter. The remaining half is measured over TSR for CWC. Subsequent to demerger one half of the award was adjusted in line
with note 2 above.

5  The number of shares awarded under the PSP 2011 was calculated based on the average share price for the period 24 to 30 May 2012 (inclusive) which is the period immediately after the
2011/12 full year results and would ordinarily have been used to calculate the award price had the Company not been in an extended close period until January 2013.

2.3.4 Other operating income and expense

In 2014/15, other operating income of US$42 million included US$25 million of income relating to the subsea cable partnership with Columbus which
existed pre-acquisition, US$16 million of foreign exchange translation gains on our UK defined benefit pension schemes and US$1 million of gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment. Other operating expense of US$62 million included US$55 million of acquisition costs relating to Columbus and
Sonitel, US$3 million of integration costs relating to Columbus, US$2 million of transaction costs for the transfer of 2% of our shares to the BTC Foundation
and US$2 million of loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment.

In 2013/14, other operating expense of US$15 million related to foreign exchange translation losses on our UK defined benefit pension schemes.

In 2012/13, other operating income of US$10 million included US$8 million of foreign exchange translation gains on our UK defined benefit pension
schemes, US$1 million of gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment and US$2 million of compensation received from a supplier.

In 2012/13, other operating expense of US$6 million included US$2 million of transaction costs relating to the proposed disposal of Monaco Telecom (note
2.8.1) and US$4 million of hurricane rectification costs.

2.4 Gains on sale of businesses
This represents the profit or loss recorded on the sale of smaller businesses as we simplify our portfolio.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group disposed of its 32.577% shareholding in Solomon Telekom Company Limited (‘Soltel”) to the Solomon

Islands National Provident Fund Board for total cash proceeds of US$16.5 million. The transaction resulted in a gain on disposal of US$4 million. This
divestment marks the Group’s exit from the South Pacific region as interests in Vanuatu and Fiji have previously been sold.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group disposed of its African enterprise subsidiary, Afinis Communications SA. The disposal took place on
3 August 2012 for consideration of US$3 million resulting in a loss of US$16 million on disposal which is included in discontinued operations. Afinis
Communications SA was classified within the Monaco reportable segment.
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Each of the businesses disposed does not constitute a discontinued operation in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations due to its size.

2.5 Earnings per share
Earnings per share (EPS) is the amount of profit after tax attributable to each share.

Basic EPS is calculated on the Group profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of US$253 million (2013/14—US$859 million and 2012/13—
US$11 million) divided by 2,615 million (2013/14—2,502 million and 2012/13—2,494 million) being the weighted average number of shares in issue during
the year.

Diluted EPS takes into account the dilutive effect of all share options being exercised.

2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Audited Unaudited Unaudited
US$m US$m US$m
Profit for the financial year attributable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company 253 859 11
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (millions) 2,615 2,502 2,494
Dilutive effect of share options (millions) 12 — —
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue used to calculate diluted earnings per share (millions) 2,627 2,502 2,494
Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 9.7 34.3 0.4
Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 9.7 34.3 0.4
Basic loss per share (cents per share) for continuing operations (3.8) 8.4 (5.2)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) for continuing operations (3.8) 8.4) (5.2)
Basic earnings per share (cents per share) for discontinued operations 13.5 42.7 5.6
Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) for discontinued operations 13.5 42.7 5.6

2.6 Income tax expense

This section explains how the Group’s tax charge arises. The current and deferred tax charges or credits in the year together make up the total tax charge in
the income statement. The deferred tax section also provides information on our expected future tax charges. A reconciliation of profit or loss before tax to
the tax charge is also provided.
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Accounting policy detailed in note 5.1.12

2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Audited Unaudited Unaudited
US$m US$m US$m
Current tax charge for continuing operations
UK tax at 21% (2013/14—23% and 2012/13—24%) — — 3
Double tax relief — = 3
Overseas tax 27 49 67
Adjustments relating to prior years 10 (11) 3
Total current tax charge for continuing operations 37 38 70
Deferred tax credit for continuing operations
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 4) (5) (25)
Adjustments relating to prior years (1) (1) 1
Total deferred tax credit for continuing operations 5) (6) (24)
Total tax charge for continuing operations 32 32 46
Income tax charge relating to discontinued operations (note 2.8.4) 1 6 26
Total income tax charge 33 38 72
The Group’s effective tax rate differs from the UK statutory tax rate as follows:
2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Audited Unaudited Unaudited
Continuing Discontinued Total Continuing Discontinued Total Continuing Discontinued Total
US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m
Profit/(loss) before income tax (1) 355 354 (98) 1,087 989 3) 245 242
Income tax (credit)/charge at UK

statutory tax rate: 21% (2013/14—

23% and 2012/13—24%) — 75 75 (22) 250 228 1) 61 60
Effect of overseas tax rates 7) 1 (16) 27) ) (29) (14) (18) (32)
Effect of accounting for joint ventures

and associates ) — 2) 15 — 15 ) — )
Effect of withholding tax and intra-

Group dividends 16 — 16 6 — 6 18 — 18
Net effect of expenses not

deductible/(income not taxable) 8 (75) (67) 18 (240) (222) (10) (12) (22)
Effect of changes in unrecognised

deferred tax assets 17 — 17 53 2) 51 50 “4) 46
Adjustments relating to prior years 10 — 10 (11) — (11) 5 1) 4
Total income tax charge 32 1 33 32 6 38 46 26 72
Effective tax rate on profit nm 0.3% 9.3% (32.7)% 0.6% 3.8% nm 10.6% 29.8%
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A change in tax legislation from 1 January 2015 meant that Cable & Wireless Dominica’s corporate tax rate will be reduced from 30% to 28%.
A change in tax legislation from 1 January 2014 meant that Cable & Wireless Panama’s corporate tax rate will be reduced from 30% to 25%.
For the analysis of the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at the reporting date, including factors affecting the future tax rates, see note 2.7.
2.7 Deferred tax

Accounting policy detailed in note 5.1.12.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:

Capital
allowances
on Financial
non-current Tax position
assets losses P Other offset Total
US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m
Deferred tax assets 15 19 3 10 7) 30
Deferred tax liabilities (37) — €)] — 17 (29)
At 1 April 2013 (22) 19 (6) 10 — 1
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss1 2 5 — 1 — 4
Exchange differences — — 1 1 — 2
At 31 March 2014 (Unaudited) (24) 24 (5) 12 — 7
Deferred tax assets 12 24 1 12 (15) 34
Deferred tax liabilities (36) — (6) — 15 27)
At 1 April 2014 (24) 24 5) 12 — 7
Acquisitions (158) 9 — 27) — (176)
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss1 6 1 — ?3) — 4
Disposals — ) — 3) — (10)
Exchange differences (@)) — — — — (@)
At 31 March 2015 (Audited) (177) 27 (5) (21) — (176)
Deferred tax assets — 27 — 14 ) 39
Deferred tax liabilities (177) — (5) (35) 2 (215)
At 31 March 2015 (Audited) 177) 27 (5) (21) — (176)
1 Including US$1 million in relation to discontinued operations (2013/14—USS$ nil and 2012/13—US$1 million credit).
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following temporary differences:
Capital
allowances
available on
non-current Tax
assets losses Pensions Other Total
US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m
At 31 March 2015 (Audited) 156 7,339 205 70 7,770
At 31 March 2014 (Unaudited) 144 6,643 196 37 7,020
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Tax losses (recognised and unrecognised) which exclude Columbus, expire as follows:

31 March 31 March
2015 2014
Audited Unaudited
US$m US$m
Within 1 year 13 3
Within 3 years 89 —
Within 5 years 124 2
Within 10 years 505 58
After more than 10 years 1,136 —

Other tax losses are not subject to expiry.

The US$7,339 million (31 March 2014—US$6,643 million) tax losses include UK capital losses of US$5,507 million (31 March 2014—US$5,421 million).
Tax losses have not been recognised as there are insufficient taxable profits to utilise those losses in future periods.

Deferred tax is not provided on unremitted earnings of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates where the Group controls the timing of remittance and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, branches, joint ventures and associates for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised is US$47 million (31 March 2014—US$136
million). These temporary differences relate to unremitted earnings.

2.8 Discontinued operations

The following section outlines what the Group is either holding for sale or has disposed of in the year. When the Group has assets and liabilities that are likely
to be sold rather than being held for continuing use and when accounting standards require, these assets and liabilities are included in current assets and
liabilities and denoted as held for sale, rather than in their usual categories.

If they represent a significant enough portion of the Group, they are also treated as discontinued operations. This means that their trading performance is no
longer reported in the income statement and are instead reported in a separate line, net of tax, called ‘discontinued operations’. These amounts no longer form
part of continuing earnings per share.

Accounting policy detailed in note 5.1.10.

2.8.1 Monaco Telecom

At a General Meeting on 15 May 2014, shareholders of the Company approved the sale (the Monaco Disposal) of Compagnie Monégasque de
Communication SAM (CMC), the holding company for the Group’s 55% stake in Monaco Telecom SAM (Monaco) to a private investment vehicle controlled
by Xavier Niel. Monaco also owned 36.75% of Telecom Development Company Afghanistan Limited (Roshan). The sale of the business was completed on
20 May 2014 for a total consideration of US$445 million. In addition, the Group received US$8.6 million relating to the estimated cash, debt and working
capital at completion.
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2.8.2 Islands

The significant aspects of the Islands transaction are described below:

*  We completed the sale (the Islands Disposal) of the Islands sub-group (the Islands), including the Group’s interests in operations in the Maldives,
the Channel Islands and Isle of Man, South Atlantic, Diego Garcia, for US$470 million on 3 April 2013. The Group received cash proceeds of
US$501 million representing consideration of US$470 million plus US$31 million of proportionate net cash in the businesses attributable to
Cable & Wireless Communications;

*  We also agreed to sell a 25% interest in Compagnie Monégasque de Communication SAM (CMC), the holding company of the Group’s interests
in Monaco, for US$100 million, which was completed on 3 April 2013; and

*  We also granted to Batelco a put option over the 25% of CMC shares transferred to Batelco (the CMC put option, refer to note 4.6.2) which was
recognised as a financial liability and the Group unwound the put option and repurchased the 25% CMC shareholding for US$100 million on
30 December 2013.

2.8.3 Macau

At a General Meeting on 28 February 2013, the shareholders of the Group approved the sale (the Macau Disposal) of the Macau operating segment (Macau)
for US$750 million to CITIC Telecom International Holdings Limited. This sale took place on 20 June 2013. The Group received cash proceeds of US$807
million comprising consideration of US$750 million plus US$57 million of proportionate net cash in the business attributable to CWC.

2.8.4 Results of discontinued operations

The results of all discontinued operations are shown below:

Total
discontinued
Year ended 31 March 2015 (Audited) Monaco operations
US$m US$m
Revenue 29 29
Expenses (20) (20)
Profit before tax 9 9
Tax 1) 1)
Profit after tax 8 8
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations 346 346
Profit for the year 354 354
Disposal costs 8) 8)
346 346
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Total
discontinued
Year ended 31 March 2014 (Unaudited) Islands Macau Monaco operations
US$m US$m US$m US$m
Revenue — 121 237 358
Expenses — (92) (184) (276)
Profit before tax — 29 53 82
Tax — 4 2 (6)
Profit after tax — 25 51 76
Profit/(loss) on disposal of discontinued operations 274 737 (6) 1,005
Profit for the year 274 762 45 1,081
Disposal costs 3) 4 €y ®)
271 758 44 1,073
Total
discontinued
Year ended 31 March 2013 (Unaudited) Islands Macau Monaco operations
US$m US$m US$m US$m
Revenue 277 624 236 1,137
Expenses (214) 479) (199) (892)
Profit before tax 63 145 37 245
Tax (12) (17) 3 (26)
Profit after tax 51 128 40 219
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations — — — —
Profit for the year 51 128 40 219
Disposal costs 4) 4) — 8)
47 124 40 211

Assets held for sale in 2012/13 included cash and cash equivalents of US$181 million in relation to the Islands, Macau and Monaco.

Section three—OQOperating assets and liabilities

This section shows the assets used to generate the Group’s trading performance and the liabilities incurred as a result. Assets and liabilities relating
to the Group’s financing activities are addressed in section four. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are shown in section two.

3.1 Trade and other receivables

Our trade and other receivables mainly consist of amounts owed to us by customers and amounts that we pay to our suppliers in advance. Trade receivables
are shown net of an allowance for bad or doubtful debts.
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Accounting policy detailed in note 5.1.4.

31 March 31 March
2015 2014
Audited Unaudited
US$m US$m
Gross trade receivables 370 276
Impairment allowance (70) (77)
Net trade receivables 300 199
Other receivables 88 71
Prepayments and accrued income 153 146
Taxation and social security receivables 15 15
Loans to related parties 56 —
Amounts receivable from joint ventures and associates 1 2
Trade and other receivables—current 613 433
Other receivables 31 46
Prepayments and accrued income 124 124
Other receivables—non-current 155 170
Total trade and other receivables 768 603

The maximum exposure to credit risk for receivables is equal to their carrying value. There is no material difference between the carrying value and fair value
of trade and other receivables presented.

Concentrations of credit risks with respect to trade receivables are small as the Group customer base is large and unrelated. Receivables predominantly relate
to retail customers, governments and corporate entities as well as other telecommunications operators.

Credit risk procedures vary depending on the size or type of customer. These procedures include such activities as credit checks, payment history analysis and
credit approval limits. Based on these procedures, management assessed the credit quality of those receivables that are neither past due nor impaired as low
risk. There have been no significant changes to the composition of receivables counterparties within the Group that indicate this would change in the future.
During the periods presented there was a continued economic weakness in some of the markets in which the Group operated. This would indicate an
increased credit risk on receivables that are neither past due nor impaired. However, management assessed this risk and, after providing valuation allowance
where necessary, continued to support the assessment of credit quality as low risk.
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An ageing analysis of the current ‘trade receivables’ and current ‘other receivables’ that are not impaired is as follows (excludes prepayments and accrued
income, taxation and social security and amounts receivable from joint ventures and associates):

31 March 31 March

2015 2014
Audited Unaudited

US$m US$m
Not yet due 68 20
Overdue 30 days or less 141 124
Overdue 31 to 60 days 48 39
Overdue 61 to 90 days 32 19
Overdue 91 days to 180 days 44 30
Overdue 181 days or more 55 38
Current ‘net trade receivables’ and current ‘other receivables’ 388 270

Based on historical default rates, the Group believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade and other receivables not past due or past
due by up to 30 days. Due to the nature of the telecommunications industry, balances relating to interconnection with other carriers often have lengthy
settlement periods. Generally, interconnection agreements with major carriers result in both receivables and payables balances with the same counterparty.
Industry practice is that receivable and payable amounts relating to interconnection revenue and costs for a defined period are agreed between counterparties
and settled on a net basis.

An analysis of movements in the trade receivables impairment allowance during the year is as follows:

2014/15 2013/14
Audited Unaudited
US$m US$m
At 1 April 77 78
Reclassification from held for sale 2 —
Business disposals (6) —
Bad debts written off (22) (30)
Increase in allowance 20 29
Transfers to assets held for sale — —
Exchange differences @) —
At 31 March 70 77

In a small number of the Group’s operations it is customary and practice to collect security deposits from customers as collateral. These are recorded as
liabilities within other payables.

3.2 Inventories
Our inventory primarily consists of mobile handsets, equipment and consumables and is presented net of an allowance for obsolete products.

Accounting policy detailed in note 5.1.6.
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Inventories of US$50 million (31 March 2014—US$36 million) are presented net, after recording an allowance of US$7 million (31 March 2014—US$8
million) made against slow moving or obsolete items.

The cost of inventories held for sale that were expensed within operating costs in 2014/15 was US$148 million (2013/14—US$140 million and 2012/13—
US$126 million). Inventories of the Group are not pledged as security or collateral against any of the Group’s borrowings.

3.3 Trade and other payables

Our trade and other payables mainly consist of amounts we owe to our suppliers that have been invoiced or are accrued. They also include deferred income
which is amounts we have billed to our customers where we have yet to provide the service. Taxes and social security amounts are due in relation to our role
as an employer.

31 March 31 March
2015 2014
Audited Unaudited
US$m US$m
Trade payables 188 141
Other tax and social security costs 17 6
Accruals 436 339
Deferred income 88 58
Other payables 122 68
Trade and other payables—current 851 612
Accruals 13 —
Deferred incomel 290 23
Other payables 2 3
Trade and other payables—non-current 305 26
Total trade and other payables 1,156 638
1 Deferred income of US$298 million primarily relates to long-term capacity sales contracts that were acquired through a business combination (note

3.11).

There is no material difference between the carrying value and fair value of trade and other payables presented. For liquidity risk exposure analysis purposes,
the carrying amount of trade and other payables is the same as the contractual cash flows, with the contractual maturities of these financial liabilities all due in
less than one year.

3.4 Impairment review

Impairment occurs when the carrying value of an asset or group of assets is greater than the present value of the cash they are expected to generate.

We perform annual impairment reviews of the carrying value of goodwill. We consider the carrying value of other assets at least annually. If there are triggers
that indicate an impairment of other assets is possible, we then perform a full impairment review. US$78 million impairment charges were recorded in
2014/15 (2013/14—USS$ nil and 2012/13—US$86 million).

Accounting policy detailed in note 5.1.5.
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Goodwill

A review of the carrying value of goodwill has been performed as at 31 March 2015, 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013. In performing this review, the
recoverable amount has been determined by reference to the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use of related businesses. The key
assumptions used by the Group in the calculation of value in use for its goodwill balances are the discount rate, revenue growth, operating cost margin and the
level of capital expenditure required to maintain the network at its current level.

The Group’s significant goodwill balances which are not impaired are discussed below:

Carrying
value at Terminal
Reporting 31 March growth Pre-tax
Year ended 31 March 2015 (Audited) segment 2015 rate discount rate
US$m
BTC1 BTC 63 0% 10.0%
Carrying
value at Terminal
Reporting 31 March growth Pre-tax
Year ended 31 March 2014 (Unaudited) segment 2014 rate discount rate
US$m
BTC1 BTC 63 0% 10.1%
Monaco group? Monaco 292 Between 0% Between 8.0%
and 1.5% and 27.0%
Carrying
value at Terminal
Reporting 31 March growth Pre-tax
Year ended 31 March 2013 (Unaudited) segment 2013 rate discount rate
US$m
BTC1 BTC 63 0% 9.3%
Monaco group2 Monaco 246 Between 0% Between 8.0%
and 2.5% and 23.0%

1 BTC:
One relevant cash-generating unit (CGU) has been identified for the purpose of assessing the carrying value of the BTC business.
2 Monaco group:

Three relevant CGUs were identified for the purpose of assessing the carrying value of Monaco (domestic including the cable television business;
international business and other services).

The value in use was determined for each CGU by discounting management forecasts of future cash flows (based on the approved three-year business
plan extrapolated at long-term growth rates) at pre-tax discount rates dependent on the risk-adjusted cost of capital of the different parts of the business.
Management forecasts take account of the historical trading experience of the relevant business.

Sensitivity

The value in use is sensitive to a number of input assumptions, in particular relating to net cash flow and the discount rates. While the Group does not
consider these scenarios to be reasonably possible, the value in use of the various CGUs in aggregate would not support the carrying value of the goodwill if:

*  BTC—net cash flows decreased by more than US$15 million per year or the discount rate increased by more than 4% above the pre-tax discount
rate.
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Acquisitions

On 31 March 2015, goodwill of US$2,009 million was recognised as a result of the Columbus Acquisition. As the Columbus Acquisition was completed on
the last day of the financial year, the goodwill has not been allocated to individual cash-generating units. This allocation will be performed in 2015/16 with a
corresponding impairment review.

During 2014/15, Cable & Wireless Panama acquired Sonitel, which generated goodwill of US$17 million. Goodwill in respect of Sonitel was reviewed as
part of the Panama CGU goodwill review.

Property, plant and equipment, indefinite lived intangible assets and other intangibles

The indefinite lived intangibles acquired during 2014/15 of US$5 million relate to the Sonitel and Sonset brands from the Sonitel acquisition. These brands
are long-established in the Panama/Central American IT marketplace.

As at 31 March 2015, no events or circumstances were identified during the year to indicate that the carrying value of property, plant and equipment had been
impaired.

However, as a result of the Columbus Acquisition and also technological upgrades as part of Project Marlin (our capital expenditure plan to invest $1.05
billion in our fixed and mobile networks over the course of the three years ending 31 March 2017), certain specific assets in the Columbus overlapping
markets and also islands which were upgraded as part of Project Marlin were reviewed for the impact on the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
following those events. As a result of the review, a write-off of US$49 million and impairment of US$78 million was recorded across the Caribbean islands
noted below.

Reporting ;:s(_)tlil:t Asset

Year ended 31 March 2015 (Audited) segment rate write-offs Impairment Total

US$m US$m US$m
Continuing operations
Barbados Caribbean 15.8%
Plant and equipment 25 23 48
Cayman Caribbean 8.7%
Plant and equipment 12 — 12
Grenada Caribbean 15.8%
Plant and equipment 2 8 10
Jamaica Caribbean 11.8%
Plant and equipment 2 30 32
St Lucia Caribbean 20.0%
Land and buildings — 8 8
Plant and equipment 1 6 7
St Vincent Caribbean 21.2%
Plant and equipment 3 3 6
Turks & Caicos Caribbean 12.6%
Plant and equipment 3 — 3
Other Caribbean Caribbean 14.3%
Plant and equipment 1 — 1
Total 49 78 127
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The value in use after impairment was not considered significant.

As at 31 March 2014, there were no events or changes in circumstances during the year to indicate that the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
and other intangible assets were impaired.

As at 31 March 2013, following a difficult year of trading and in the midst of challenging economic conditions, the Directors considered the performance of a
number of our smaller island markets in the eastern Caribbean and the impact on the carrying value of property, plant and equipment. As a result of the review
an impairment charge of US$86 million was recorded across the islands noted below.

Reporting CGUs (fi:s;)t::t
Year ended 31 March 2013 (Unaudited) segment identified rate ImEUaSigl:lent
Continuing operations
Anguilla Caribbean One 10.6%
Land and buildings 4
Plant and equipment 8
12
British Virgin Islands Caribbean One 9.3%
Plant and equipment 10
10
Dominica Caribbean One 14.4%
Plant and equipment 7
Montserrat Caribbean One 15.6%
Land and buildings 1
Plant and equipment 2
3
St. Lucia Caribbean One 14.4%
Plant and equipment 22
22
St. Vincent Caribbean One 14.9%
Plant and equipment 15
15
Turks & Caicos Caribbean One 10.6%
Land and buildings 5
Plant and equipment 12
17
Total 86

Associates

Refer to note 3.7 for discussion on impairment considerations.
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3.5 Intangible assets

The following section sets forth the non-physical assets used by the Group to generate revenues and profits.

These assets include goodwill, software, licences and operating agreements and customer contracts. Within licence and operating agreements we include the
cost of any acquired spectrum we use for our mobile services. The cost of intangible assets is the amount that the Group has paid or, where there has been an
acquisition of a business, the fair value of the specific intangible assets that could be sold separately or which arise from legal rights. Goodwill arises when

we acquire a business and pay a higher amount than the fair value of the net assets of that business. Goodwill is not amortised but subject to annual

impairment tests. The value of goodwill is an ‘intangible’ value that comes from, for example, synergies we expect to gain and the value of its employees.

The value of other intangible assets reduces over the number of years the Group expects to use the asset via an annual amortisation charge. Should an asset’s

value fall below its carrying value an additional impairment charge is recorded.

Accounting policy detailed in note 5.1.3.

Licences and

Customer

operating contracts and
Goodwill Software agreements relationship Brands Other Total

US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m
Cost
At 1 April 2013 (Unaudited) 309 237 160 31 — 61 798
Additions 31 10 7 — — 8 56
Transfer from tangible assets — 19 1 — — — 20
Disposals — 1) — @) — 2) )
Exchange differences 15 5) 8 — — 3 21
At 31 March 2014 (Unaudited) 355 260 176 27 — 70 888
Acquisitions 2,029 19 15 625 86 1 2,775
Additions — 19 39 — — 1 59
Transfer from tangible assets — 28 — — — — 28
Reclassification from held for sale — 5 — — — — 5
Business disposals (291) 3) (135) — — (70) (499)
Disposals — — — (6) — — (6)
Exchange differences (@)) 4) @)) — — — (6)
At 31 March 2015 (Audited) 2,092 324 94 646 86 2 3,244
Amortisation
At 1 April 2013 (Unaudited) — 182 75 7 — 49 313
Charge for the yearl — 35 10 4 — 6 55
Disposals — 1) — 4) — ) 7)
Exchange differences — (5) 4 — — 2 1
At 31 March 2014 (Unaudited) — 211 89 7 — 55 362
Charge for the yearl — 33 8 7 — 1 49
Reclassification from held for sale — 3 — — — — 3
Business disposals — 2) (68) — — (56) (126)
Disposals — — — (6) — — (6)
Exchange differences — 3) — — — — 3)
At 31 March 2015 (Audited) — 242 29 8 — — 279
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 (Audited) 2,092 82 65 638 86 2 2,965
At 31 March 2014 (Unaudited) 355 49 87 20 — 15 526

1 The charge for the year includes US$2 million (2013/14—US$24 million and 2012/13—US$9 million) in relation to discontinued operations. Refer to

note 2.8 for more information.
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Goodwill balances are allocated to the following cash-generating units:

Grupo Dekal
Monacol BTC2 Columbus3 Sonitel4 Wireless5 Total

US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m
At 1 April 2013 (Unaudited) 246 63 — — — 309
Acquisition of non-controlling interest (note 4.9) 3